From: Jayme Fraser

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB; BORT Alison * PSRB
Subject: ?s regarding study you had started
Date: Saturday, September 01, 2018 10:02:39 AM

Good morning, Juliet.

I've talked with Alison a bit about the fact you had started a study of PSRB recidivism before
leaving, work she hopes to continue. Can you spare 15 or 30 minutes to talk me through what
you hoped to measure and what insights could it provide to improve board practices or the
mental health system in Oregon as a whole? I'd also like to confirm basic details, like when you
started it, why, if you had other research partners lined up or in mind, and how far the project

got before you left.
| hope you have a great holiday weekend.

Best,
Jayme

Reporter, Malheur Enterprise
(541) 362-1393

call, text, Signal, WhatsApp
Twitter | Instagram | Facebook
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: jsfollansbee@HOTMAIL.COM
Subject: FW: new job.
Date: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:47:00 AM

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director

Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St. Ste 420

Portland, OR 97205

Phone: (503) 229-5596

After-Hours Cell: (503) 781-3602

Fax: (503) 224-0215

http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx

From: Joseph Bloom [mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 4:41 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: new job.

Thanks Juliet, enjoyed working with you very much.

Interestingly they have a very formal process down here in the evaluation of competency to stand trial
and in competency restoration called Measure 11. It is cumbersome and time consuming and violates
many patient rights. The last legislative session here just gave the municipal judges jurisdiction over
measure 11 evaluations of misdemeanor cases because the measure 11 courts in the superior court were
overloaded with tons of cases. It is a real problem here.

Also wrote a paper couple years ago with our fellows on an interesting wrinkle in Washington County and
a municipal judge who participated in a civil commitment hearing in the county court when there was no
provision for such a hearing. resulted in a bar complaint for the wa county DA and pubic defender. I will
find it and send it to you. Don't go making up some civil commitment law on your own.

You should meet Mary Monet if you don't know her....she is the ex. director of Lifeworks NW and a
terrific person. You may know Lifeworks. they are a major metro community mental health program
originating in Wa county. probably they take care of some PSRB clients. They could be very helpful in
your work with the court and the mentally ill.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 4:15 PM

To: Joseph Bloom

Subject: Re: new job.

Thank you Joe- | am interested in finishing the recidivism paper if it works out with my new
duties. | appreciate your guidance and wisdom as we have worked together the last few years.
Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.
Executive Director
Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board


mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
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610 SW Alder St., Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On Jan 2, 2018, at 4:05 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj@ohsu.edu> wrote:

Julliet,

Congratulations on the new job. You did a terrific job at PSRB and you will be missed.
Certainly I will miss you and your dedication to doing an excellent job for all of the various
people associated with PSRB including most of all the clients.

Please tell Sid that | would be happy to answer any questions along the way that | might
help with.

Keep in touch.

Joe


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: GIPSON-KING Rebeka
Cc: MOORE Sid * PSRB; MOELLER Laura * PSRB; BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: FW: Quick question
Date: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 12:15:36 PM
Attachments: imaqge001.png
image002.png

Keeping you in the loop on media.

Jayme Fraser from Malheur Enterprise as well as Michael Ollove will be visiting Portland soon and
are learning about how PSRB works and attending hearings. | interviewed with Mike this morning
and gave a systems overview. It went well —the typical 101 questions. Jayme requested all 300
Discharge Orders over the last five years — | anticipate an investigative story about how ex PSRB
clients fare after supervision. Coincidentally, we are trying to get a research paper off the ground
that would study recidivism post PSRB. The usual barriers — not enough staff for a big research
project.

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

From: Jayme Fraser [mailto:jayme@malheurenterprise.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 12:04 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Cc: MOORE Sid * PSRB; MOELLER Laura * PSRB

Subject: Re: Quick question

Sid and Laura,

I'm looking at one of the following hearings as possibilities: Jan. 24, Feb. 7 or Feb. 14. I'm
trying to schedule a few other interviews while on that side of the state, so I'll let you know as
soon as | zero in on a day. (I'm doubtful | can pull everything together in time for a trip next
week.) I'm not traveling for any particular case. Just wanting to get a better sense for what the
PSRB's work is like and maybe meet a few folks while there.

Thanks for your help on this and the request in the works. Call anytime with questions.

Best,
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Jayme

From: Jayme Fraser

Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 11:05 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Cc: MOORE Sid * PSRB; MOELLER Laura * PSRB
Subject: Re: Quick question

Perfect. Thank you!

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB <Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 10:49:22 AM

To: Jayme Fraser
Cc: MOORE Sid * PSRB; MOELLER Laura * PSRB
Subject: RE: Quick question

Jayme

Attached is a slide that | think answers your question. | also included a second slide that may be

helpful. We don’t track SHRP’s discharges though so you may need to get that data from OSH or
OHA. Note that on July 1, 2018, there will no longer be a SHRP — all GEI defendants will be under
PSRB supervision whether they live in the community or at OSH.

I've cc’d Sid and Laura who can assist in the hearing attendance logistics. We will be getting you the
orders you previously requested this week.
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
Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 9:23 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: Quick question

Good morning, Juliet. | hope you enjoyed the long weekend.

Reading through past PSRB reports, | see current census figures and you had previously
provided me estimates of how many people are placed on CR or discharged each year. Can


http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx
mailto:jayme@malheurenterprise.com

you tell me how many people are added to PSRB supervision each year? I'm just trying to get a
sense of the overall inflow-outflow.

And FYI, I'm starting to plan a trip out there in the next month or so just to observe a day of
board hearings and get a better sense of how things work. I'll let you know as soon as | pin
down dates.

Best,
Jayme Fraser

Reporter, Malheur Enterprise
(541) 362-1393

call, text, Signal, WhatsApp
Twitter | Instagram | Facebook
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: MOORE Sid * PSRB

Subject: Re: Recidivism Study

Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 1:43:11 PM
Ok

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director, Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)

(503) 224-0215 (fax)

Website: http://www.oregon.gov/PRB/pages/index.aspx

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS: juliet.britton@oregon.gov

On Jan 10, 2018, at 1:35 PM, MOORE Sid * PSRB <Sid.M oore@oregon.gov> wrote:

| think that’d be great, if you're still up for it (I didn’t want to assume). Ashley
has some of the records queued at Archives; I’ll ask her to have them sent.

Sid

Sid Moore, J.D., Deputy Director
Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St., Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205
503-229-5596

Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 10, 2018, at 1:24 PM, BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
<Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov> wrote:

| think the agency should continue with it. I don’t mind consulting if
you al want me to stay on as an author.

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

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS:
juliet.britton@oregon.gov

On Jan 10, 2018, at 1:09 PM, MOORE Sid * PSRB
<Sid.Moore@oregon.gov> wrote:

Have you heard back/decided on whether we're going to
continue with the recidivism study?

Thanks!

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
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 1:24:43 PM

| think the agency should continue with it. I don’t mind consulting if you all want me to stay
on as an author.

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

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS: juliet.britton@or egon.gov

On Jan 10, 2018, at 1:09 PM, MOORE Sid * PSRB <Sid.M oore@oregon.gov> Wrote:
Have you heard back/decided on whether we' re going to continue with the
recidivism study?

Thanks!

Sid

Sd Moore, J.D., Deputy Director
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
Date: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 10:23:29 AM

| think the task force is still in the early stages of meeting. | haven’t really heard of an update
lately. Juliet

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

On Jan 3, 2018, at 10:01 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Julliet

Thanks,

On the court of appeals....all i would need is the cases....we want to see if the change in
criteria did anything in the cases of of those unable to care for basic personal needs. |
would write the first draft if there is anything to write about.

Did anything ever come of the civil commitment task force?

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 7:47 AM

To: Joseph Bloom
Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: Re: new job.

Yes, I’'m interested in continuing to write papers and study but don’t want to

commit until 1 get into the new job and see the workload. My personal email is JS
I -  c-! - I

| am CC’ing Shelley regarding the year end summary Sheets. We have them and
can send to you.

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

On Jan 3, 2018, at 6:48 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet

You will like her. | was on her board for 1 or 2 terms. She could be a big
resource for your court.

Would also like to look at all the 2017 court of appeals civil commitment
cases sometime when all the 2017 cases are reported out....any interest in
continuing this?

One other thing, | would ask you if this is possible and that is the 2015, 2016
and 2017 years end summary sheets of psrb activity, would very much like
to see the data in the time since | left. If this is not possible, no worries,
plenty to do here.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 10:07 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.

| will reach out to Mary- | don’t think I’ve met her. Juliet

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

On Jan 2, 2018, at 4:40 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu>
wrote:

Thanks Juliet, enjoyed working with you very much.

Interestingly they have a very formal process down here in the
evaluation of competency to stand trial and in competency
restoration called Measure 11. It is cumbersome and time
consuming and violates many patient rights. The last
legislative session here just gave the municipal judges


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu
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mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

jurisdiction over measure 11 evaluations of misdemeanor cases
because the measure 11 courts in the superior court were
overloaded with tons of cases. It is a real problem here.

Also wrote a paper couple years ago with our fellows on an
interesting wrinkle in Washington County and a municipal judge
who participated in a civil commitment hearing in the county
court when there was no provision for such a hearing. resulted
in a bar complaint for the wa county DA and pubic defender. |
will find it and send it to you. Don't go making up some civil
commitment law on your own.

You should meet Mary Monet if you don't know her....she is the
ex. director of Lifeworks NW and a terrific person. You may
know Lifeworks. they are a major metro community mental
health program originating in Wa county. probably they take
care of some PSRB clients. They could be very helpful in your
work with the court and the mentally ill.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 4:15 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.

Thank you Joe- | am interested in finishing the
recidivism paper if it works out with my new duties. |
appreciate your guidance and wisdom as we have
worked together the last few years. Juliet

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

On Jan 2, 2018, at 4:05 PM, Joseph Bloom
<bloomj@ohsu.edu> wrote:

Julliet,

Congratulations on the new job. You did a terrific
job at PSRB and you will be missed. Certainly I
will miss you and your dedication to doing an
excellent job for all of the various people
associated with PSRB including most of all the
clients.

Please tell Sid that | would be happy to answer
any questions along the way that | might help


mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov
mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

with.
Keep in touch.

Joe



From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom

Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: Re: new job.

Date: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 7:47:12 AM

Yes, I'm interested in continuing to write papers and study but don’t want to commit until |

get into the new job and see the workload. My personal email isJS
and my o i< SN

| am CC’ing Shelley regarding the year end summary Sheets. We have them and can send to
you.

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

You will like her. | was on her board for 1 or 2 terms. She could be a big resource for your
court.

Would also like to look at all the 2017 court of appeals civil commitment cases sometime
when all the 2017 cases are reported out....any interest in continuing this?

One other thing, | would ask you if this is possible and that is the 2015, 2016 and 2017
years end summary sheets of psrb activity, would very much like to see the data in the
time since | left. If this is not possible, no worries, plenty to do here.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 10:07 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.

| will reach out to Mary- | don’t think 1’ve met her. Juliet

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

On Jan 2, 2018, at 4:40 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Thanks Juliet, enjoyed working with you very much.

Interestingly they have a very formal process down here in the evaluation of
competency to stand trial and in competency restoration called Measure 11.
It is cumbersome and time consuming and violates many patient rights. The
last legislative session here just gave the municipal judges jurisdiction over
measure 11 evaluations of misdemeanor cases because the measure 11
courts in the superior court were overloaded with tons of cases. It is a real
problem here.

Also wrote a paper couple years ago with our fellows on an interesting
wrinkle in Washington County and a municipal judge who participated in a
civil commitment hearing in the county court when there was no provision for
such a hearing. resulted in a bar complaint for the wa county DA and pubic
defender. I will find it and send it to you. Don't go making up some civil
commitment law on your own.

You should meet Mary Monet if you don't know her....she is the ex. director
of Lifeworks NW and a terrific person. You may know Lifeworks. they are a
major metro community mental health program originating in Wa county.
probably they take care of some PSRB clients. They could be very helpful in
your work with the court and the mentally ill.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 4:15 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.

Thank you Joe- | am interested in finishing the recidivism paper if it
works out with my new duties. | appreciate your guidance and
wisdom as we have worked together the last few years. Juliet

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

On Jan 2, 2018, at 4:05 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu>
wrote:
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Julliet,

Congratulations on the new job. You did a terrific job at PSRB
and you will be missed. Certainly I will miss you and your
dedication to doing an excellent job for all of the various people
associated with PSRB including most of all the clients.

Please tell Sid that | would be happy to answer any questions
along the way that I might help with.

Keep in touch.

Joe



From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.
Date: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 10:07:40 PM

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

Interestingly they have a very formal process down here in the evaluation of competency
to stand trial and in competency restoration called Measure 11. It is cumbersome and time
consuming and violates many patient rights. The last legislative session here just gave the
municipal judges jurisdiction over measure 11 evaluations of misdemeanor cases because
the measure 11 courts in the superior court were overloaded with tons of cases. Itis a real
problem here.

Also wrote a paper couple years ago with our fellows on an interesting wrinkle in
Washington County and a municipal judge who participated in a civil commitment hearing
in the county court when there was no provision for such a hearing. resulted in a bar
complaint for the wa county DA and pubic defender. I will find it and send it to you. Don't
go making up some civil commitment law on your own.

You should meet Mary Monet if you don't know her....she is the ex. director of Lifeworks
NW and a terrific person. You may know Lifeworks. they are a major metro community
mental health program originating in Wa county. probably they take care of some PSRB
clients. They could be very helpful in your work with the court and the mentally ill.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 4:15 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.

Thank you Joe- | am interested in finishing the recidivism paper if it works out
with my new duties. | appreciate your guidance and wisdom as we have worked
together the last few years. Juliet

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

On Jan 2, 2018, at 4:05 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Julliet,

Congratulations on the new job. You did a terrific job at PSRB and you will be
missed. Certainly I will miss you and your dedication to doing an excellent
job for all of the various people associated with PSRB including most of all the
clients.

Please tell Sid that | would be happy to answer any questions along the way
that I might help with.

Keep in touch.

Joe


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: new job.
Date: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 4:15:32 PM

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

To: Wil Berry; BANFE Shelley * PSRB; Joseph Bloom; SETHI SIMRAT; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD
Subject: RE: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination
Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 12:18:18 PM

1. Will any of us be interacting with any human subjects? No

2. Will we be obtaining identifiable private information, or obtaining any informed consent? Y es, we will be
obtaining private information (from PSRB records and LEDS)- no, not getting consent

3. Or, will we (especially me, as the OHSU person) be only obtaining de-identified data or specimens. Shelley will
take the identifiable info and assign a unique number to each person ....that is how we will manage the data so aswe
analyze, we will be working with de-identified data.

~~ SERVICE EXCELLENCE ~~ LEADERSHIP ~~ INTEGRITY ~~ PARTNERSHIP ~~ INNOVATION ~~
JUSTICE ~~

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

----- Original Message-----

From: Wil Berry [mailto:Wil.Berry @deschutes.org]

Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 12:07 PM

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB; Joseph Bloom; BRITTON Juliet * PSRB; SETHI SIMRAT; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD
Subject: Re: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination

Hi everyone,

Great to see this going again (thanks Juliet). | may share some further thoughts later, but right now I'm going to
commit some energy to one of my jobs (namely, dealing with whatever is necessary with the OHSU IRB). | have

been going back and forth with them, and | will be getting afinal determination if we need to develop a protocol (or
not).

Juliet (and others), here are some questions that | need to get answersfor:

1. Will any of us be interacting with any human subjects? (I'm pretty sure thisis no)

2. Will we be obtaining identifiable private information, or obtaining any informed consent?

3. Or, will we (especially me, as the OHSU person) be only obtaining de-identified data or specimens?
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Thanks,

Wil

From: BANFE Shelley * PSRB <Shelley.Banfe@oregon.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 23, 2017 6:27 PM

To: Joseph Bloom; BRITTON Juliet * PSRB; Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD
Subject: RE: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/VVariable determination

Good Evening,

| have done a bit more investigation on our subjects and will attempt to explain the numbers more fully.

2011:

70 individuals have adischarge datein 2011. 7 individuals are known to be dead and should therefore be removed
from the study, leaving an n of 63 for thisyear. 26 of the 63 individuals had a new arrest, conviction, or GEI. None
of those individuals are being counted twice. 26/63 gives us a preliminary recidivism rate of 41% for 2011. We can
decide how we want to analyze and describe the circumstances of the recidivism -- wasit just an arrest, did it lead to
aconviction or anew GEI, wasit for aballot measure 11 offense, aregular felony, only a misdemeanor, etc. Of the
63 individuals being studied in 2011, 47 (75%) lapsed by operation of law, 7 (11%) were discharged for no MD/D,
and 9 (14%) were released for no longer being a danger.

2006:

73 individual have adischarge datein 2006. 5 individuals are either dead or did not actually leave PSRB
jurisdiction in 2006 and should therefore be removed from the study, leaving an n of 68 for thisyear. 36 of the 68
individuals had anew arrest, conviction, or GEI. None of those individual are being counted twice. 36/68 gives us
apreliminary recidivism rate of 53% for 2006. Again, we can decide what to do with the particulars of the
recidivism. Of the n equaling 68, 54 (79%) lapsed, 12 (18%) were discharged for no MD/D, and 4 (6%) for no
longer being adanger.

2001:

59 individuals have adischarge datein 2001. 12 individuals have already been determined appropriate for removal
from the study under 2001, either because they are known to have died, because a computerized criminal history
was unavailable through LEDS, because they remained under PSRB jurisdiction at the time of their 2001 discharge,
or because they more appropriately fall under a different year being considered in the study. Thisleaves an n of 47
for 2001. 15 individuals meet the criteria of recidivism listed above. 15/47 gives apreliminary rate of 32%. Of the
47 |eft in the study, 44 (94%) lapsed, 1 (2%) was released for no MD/D, 6 (13%) for no longer being adanger, and 1
(2%) by court order.

Asindicated below, if additional people are determined to be inappropriate for inclusion in a respective year of
study, the recidivism rate for that year will increase. Thiswas the case with 2001. When | determined that two
peopleinitialy counted in that year in the numbers cited below have remained under PSRB jurisdiction since 2001,
I removed them from the cal culation, which changed the rate from 30 to 32%.

Shelley

From: Joseph Bloom [mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu]


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2017 7:04 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB; Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD
Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: RE: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination

Julliet and All:

| have a suggestion for the group. If you can take alook at chapter 7 in the book | edited with Mary
Williams....Management and Treatment of Insanity Acquittees, published in 1994. | believe that Juliet has a copy of
this book.. This could help you decide what exactly you want to study among many choices. From the way datawas
gather it looks like you want to study dischargein 3 time periods. If thisis so, the question is why do you want to
explorethis? Do you have ideas that this might be different by these three time periods. Many other possihilities
can be explored.

On the data below....some questions.

2. including both arrests and convictions might lead to double counting of a single episode...and inflate the re-
offense rate.

3. good to remove those still under psrb for something else.

4. new GEl is a separate category and should track back to aincident that led to this new finding. | would certainly
track this but count it as a conviction

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 8:39 AM

To: Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Joseph Bloom; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD

Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/V ariable determination Good Morning all,

I’'m hoping we can have afirst draft of the paper by the end of the year. | want to keep this paper simple asit is our
first release of data post-jurisdiction. Below isthe raw data with the number of discharges and re-arrest/confection
from the three years we previously determined would be in the study. Attached is the current list of proposed

variables for the study. 1’ve incorporated the feedback on potential data points received this summer from you all.

Before staff begin the exhaustive process of reviewing white files to locate thisinformation, | would like thisto be a
final list of variables, so that we don’t have to go through any client file more than once.

Tentative results based on criminal history datafrom Oregon is as follows:

2011

70 total discharges

7 removed due to death under supervision

26 reoffended (new GElI, arrest, or conviction) 41% re-offense rate

2006

73 total discharges

5 removed due to death under supervision

36 reoffended (new GElI, arrest, or conviction) 53% re-offense rate

2001

59 total discharges

9 removed due to death under supervision or no available computerized criminal history from OSP (probably means
the client has died)



15 reoffended (new GEI, arrest, or conviction) 30% re-offense rate

If additional individuals are removed from the study, (due, for example, to still being under Board jurisdiction on a
different set of crimes continuously since their “qualifying” discharge) re-offense rate would go up as the functional
“n" goesdown. There are at least two additional clientsthat will be removed from the study for the reason givenin
my example, but | have not yet analyzed everyonein al three study years, so none of that dataisincluded in the
current numbers.

Let us know what your think - ideally by October 27th (next Friday).

Juliet



From: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom; BRITTON Juliet * PSRB; Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Elena Balduzzi. PsyD
Subject: RE: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination
Date: Monday, October 23, 2017 6:27:13 PM

Good Evening,

| have done a bit more investigation on our subjects and will attempt to explain the numbers more
fully.

2011:

70 individuals have a discharge date in 2011. 7 individuals are known to be dead and should
therefore be removed from the study, leaving an n of 63 for this year. 26 of the 63 individuals had a
new arrest, conviction, or GEl. None of those individuals are being counted twice. 26/63 gives us a
preliminary recidivism rate of 41% for 2011. We can decide how we want to analyze and describe
the circumstances of the recidivism -- was it just an arrest, did it lead to a conviction or a new GEl,
was it for a ballot measure 11 offense, a regular felony, only a misdemeanor, etc. Of the 63
individuals being studied in 2011, 47 (75%) lapsed by operation of law, 7 (11%) were discharged for
no MD/D, and 9 (14%) were released for no longer being a danger.

2006:

73 individual have a discharge date in 2006. 5 individuals are either dead or did not actually leave
PSRB jurisdiction in 2006 and should therefore be removed from the study, leaving an n of 68 for this
year. 36 of the 68 individuals had a new arrest, conviction, or GEIl. None of those individual are
being counted twice. 36/68 gives us a preliminary recidivism rate of 53% for 2006. Again, we can
decide what to do with the particulars of the recidivism. Of the n equaling 68, 54 (79%) lapsed, 12
(18%) were discharged for no MD/D, and 4 (6%) for no longer being a danger.

2001:

59 individuals have a discharge date in 2001. 12 individuals have already been determined
appropriate for removal from the study under 2001, either because they are known to have died,
because a computerized criminal history was unavailable through LEDS, because they remained
under PSRB jurisdiction at the time of their 2001 discharge, or because they more appropriately fall
under a different year being considered in the study. This leaves an n of 47 for 2001. 15 individuals
meet the criteria of recidivism listed above. 15/47 gives a preliminary rate of 32%. Of the 47 left in
the study, 44 (94%) lapsed, 1 (2%) was released for no MD/D, 6 (13%) for no longer being a danger,
and 1 (2%) by court order.

As indicated below, if additional people are determined to be inappropriate for inclusion in a
respective year of study, the recidivism rate for that year will increase. This was the case with 2001.
When | determined that two people initially counted in that year in the numbers cited below have
remained under PSRB jurisdiction since 2001, | removed them from the calculation, which changed
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the rate from 30 to 32%.

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

I have a suggestion for the group. If you can take a look at chapter 7 in the book | edited with Mary
Williams....Management and Treatment of Insanity Acquittees, published in 1994. | believe that Juliet has
a copy of this book.. This could help you decide what exactly you want to study among many choices.
From the way data was gather it looks like you want to study discharge in 3 time periods. If this is so,
the question is why do you want to explore this? Do you have ideas that this might be different by these
three time periods. Many other possibilities can be explored.

On the data below....some questions.

1. does the total include or exclude the people the people who died under supervision?....they should be
eliminated.

2. including both arrests and convictions might lead to double counting of a single episode...and inflate
the re-offense rate.

3. good to remove those still under psrb for something else.

4. new GEl is a separate category and should track back to a incident that led to this new finding. |
would certainly track this but count it as a conviction

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 8:39 AM

To: Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Joseph Bloom; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD
Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination

Good Morning al,

I’m hoping we can have afirst draft of the paper by the end of the year. | want to keep this
paper smple asit isour first release of data post-jurisdiction. Below is the raw data with the
number of discharges and re-arrest/confection from the three years we previously determined
would bein the study. Attached isthe current list of proposed variables for the study. I've
incorporated the feedback on potential data points received this summer from you all.

Before staff begin the exhaustive process of reviewing white files to locate this information, |
would like thisto be afinal list of variables, so that we don’t have to go through any client file
more than once.

Tentative results based on criminal history data from Oregon is as follows:

2011
70 total discharges



7 removed due to death under supervision
26 reoffended (new GEI, arrest, or conviction)
41% re-offense rate

2006

73 total discharges

5 removed due to death under supervision

36 reoffended (new GEI, arrest, or conviction)
53% re-offense rate

2001

59 total discharges

9 removed due to death under supervision or no available computerized criminal history from
OSP (probably means the client has died)

15 reoffended (new GEI, arrest, or conviction)

30% re-offense rate

If additional individuals are removed from the study, (due, for example, to still being under
Board jurisdiction on a different set of crimes continuously since their “qualifying” discharge)
re-offense rate would go up as the functional “n” goes down. There are at |east two additional
clients that will be removed from the study for the reason given in my example, but | have not
yet analyzed everyonein all three study years, so none of that dataisincluded in the current
numbers.

Let us know what your think - ideally by October 27th (next Friday).

Juliet



From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Psychiatric Security Review Board * PSRB

Subject: FW: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination
Date: Friday, October 20, 2017 9:19:16 AM

Jane

Can you do adoodlein late Oct and early November for the below participants - pick dates that are already clear for
me.

From: elena balduzzi [ebalduzzi622@gmail.com]

Sent: Friday, October 20, 2017 8:58 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Cc: Joseph Bloom; Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: Re: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination

Sorry for my delayed response. | haven't had a chance to read Joe's chapter yet but will this weekend. Because |
need some time to digest this thread before responding, | think it would be a good idea to set up a phone conference
to get us organized around our thinking and outline next steps. My schedule isfairly flexible - aslong as| have
enough lead time (i.e., aweek or s0) to set aside whatever time we need to discuss this further. Perhaps Juliet, you
could send out a doodle?

Thanks for pulling this out from the back burner and for the attachment. | look forward to being re-invigorated.
Elena

Elena Balduzzi, Psy.D.

Licensed Psychologist

SOTB Certified

4110 SE Hawthorne Blvd., #622
Portland, OR 97214
503.232.3646

NOTICE: Thisemail, including any attachments, may be privileged and/or confidential. The contents are intended
solely for the addressee(s). If you are not one of the intended recipients and you believe you received thisin error,
please contact me immediately and del ete the message. Please do not print, disseminate, or duplicate. Thank you
kindly.

On Thu, Oct 19, 2017 at 1:28 PM, BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
<Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov<mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov>> wrote:

Thank you Joe — | agree with al of your comments. We did not include people who discharged as a result of death —
what we don’t know if any of the remaining folks died after jurisdiction ended (because we don’t get notified) —
that could cause an underestimate of recidivism. | suppose so we could say that in the limitations section of the

paper.

In reading Chapter 7 (I’ ve attached for you all to review), Joe studied post-jurisdiction of PSRB clients. The studies
Joe references at that point counted “re-arrest” and “rehospitalization” rather than new conviction. | think for this
paper, trying to track down re-hospitalizations would be difficult. Most hospitalizations are done the community and
do not end of being civil commitments so getting that data would be very difficult with our current resources. On
one hand, | like the idea of counting new convictions because that is how we measure recidivism while a person is
under PSRB jurisdiction. That being said — the point of this paper is to determine whether the client end up back in
the criminal justice system and arrest would capture that more than convictions. Thisis especially true given all the
mental health courts and diversion programs that have been implemented. | think using conviction would
underestimate the clients who are unable to manage their mental health without support and services. Long term, |
would like to find out what interventions seem to decrease a person’ srisk for re-arrest after jurisdiction ends. For
this paper, we will likely not get there.
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Here are my additions,

. After looking at Joe's book again, | think we should add the length of PSRB supervision as a data point. One
thing | am curious about is whether longer PSRB supervision correlatesto “ success’ post PSRB jurisdiction. It also
could provide data to the policy folks who want to ascertain if the current ORS about length of PSRB supervision is
adequate or overkill (a complaint we receive often from advocates).

. The other question | would like this paper to answer is— does the level of care at discharge correlate to
“success.” Thisincludes discharging from OSH versus CR and aso living in licensed residential versus
independent. My theory isthat a client who discharges at the independent level islikely to be more successful post-
PSRB. Thisis highly relevant to the US DOJ Performance Plan which is dictating the mgjority of community mental
health resources go to independent housing and ACT teams rather than licensed residential or institution funding.
Potentially, if independent clients do better post PSRB, this data could help housing/services policy (and funding)
for those under supervision.

. So | am proposing this outline for the paper
0 Study 1 Subjects Discharged from PSRB Jurisdiction

* Provide Summary of N

Data: Involvement of Discharged Clientsin Crimina Justice System
Was there Criminal Justice involvement Pre-PSRB and Post PSRB
Classify by crime (see page 121 of Joe’s book)

0 Study 2 Comparison of Mandatory versus Discretionary — if we have enough discretionary for avaluable n
quantity. | recall from Shelley that we do not have many discretionary discharges from 5, 10 and 15 years ago.
Maybe forgo this for now and just do study 1 and 3.

0 Study 3 Comparison of subjects Discharged from OSH and Those Discharged from CR (using page 126 data)

» Using number of Criminal contacts by felony and misdemeanant type to measure

» Break down n by “Discharged on CR” and “Discharged from OSH” - Number of police contacts before and after
PSRB jurisdiction — how do they compare.

Do you all want me to schedule acall to discuss?

Juliet

~~ Service Excellence ~~ Leadership ~~ Integrity ~~ Partnership ~~ Innovation ~~ Justice ~~

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

4. new GEI is a separate category and should track back to aincident that led to this new finding. | would certainly
track this but count it as a conviction

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov<mailto:Juliet.Britton@aoregon.gov>]
Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 8:39 AM

To: Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Joseph Bloom; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD

Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/V ariable determination

Good Morning all,

I’m hoping we can have afirst draft of the paper by the end of the year. | want to keep this paper simple asit isour
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

26 reoffended (new GElI, arrest, or conviction)
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

To: Joseph Bloom; Wil Berry; SETHI SIMRAT; Elena Balduzzi, PsyD
Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: RE: Post Jurisdiction Recidivism Data/Variable determination
Date: Thursday, October 19, 2017 1:28:49 PM

Attachments: Ch. 7 Insanity Acquittees After PSRB Jurisdiction.pdf

Thank you Joe — | agree with all of your comments. We did not include people who discharged as a
result of death —what we don’t know if any of the remaining folks died after jurisdiction ended
(because we don’t get notified) — that could cause an underestimate of recidivism. | suppose so we
could say that in the limitations section of the paper.

In reading Chapter 7 (I've attached for you all to review), Joe studied post-jurisdiction of PSRB
clients. The studies Joe references at that point counted “re-arrest” and “rehospitalization” rather
than new conviction. | think for this paper, trying to track down re-hospitalizations would be difficult.
Most hospitalizations are done the community and do not end of being civil commitments so getting
that data would be very difficult with our current resources. On one hand, | like the idea of counting
new convictions because that is how we measure recidivism while a person is under PSRB
jurisdiction. That being said — the point of this paper is to determine whether the client end up back
in the criminal justice system and arrest would capture that more than convictions. This is especially
true given all the mental health courts and diversion programs that have been implemented. | think
using conviction would underestimate the clients who are unable to manage their mental health
without support and services. Long term, | would like to find out what interventions seem to
decrease a person’s risk for re-arrest after jurisdiction ends. For this paper, we will likely not get
there.

Here are my additions;

e After looking at Joe’s book again, | think we should add the length of PSRB supervision as a
data point. One thing | am curious about is whether longer PSRB supervision correlates to
“success” post PSRB jurisdiction. It also could provide data to the policy folks who want to
ascertain if the current ORS about length of PSRB supervision is adequate or overkill (a
complaint we receive often from advocates).

e The other question | would like this paper to answer is — does the level of care at discharge
correlate to “success.” This includes discharging from OSH versus CR and also living in
licensed residential versus independent. My theory is that a client who discharges at the
independent level is likely to be more successful post-PSRB. This is highly relevant to the US
DOJ Performance Plan which is dictating the majority of community mental health resources
go to independent housing and ACT teams rather than licensed residential or institution
funding. Potentially, if independent clients do better post PSRB, this data could help
housing/services policy (and funding) for those under supervision.

e Solam proposing this outline for the paper

0 Study 1 Subjects Discharged from PSRB Jurisdiction
= Provide Summary of N
Data: Involvement of Discharged Clients in Criminal Justice System
Was there Criminal Justice involvement Pre-PSRB and Post PSRB
Classify by crime (see page 121 of Joe’s book)
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Chapter 7

Insanity Acquittees
After Psychiatric
Security Review
Board Jurisdiction

There is very little systematic follow-up information on what
happens to insanity acquittees after their release from the
jurisdiction of courts or supervisory bodies such as the Psychiat-
ric Security Review Board (PSRB). There are some former insan-
ity acquittees who come to the attention of the general public
through the commission of new crimes. These events often be-
come highly sensationalized when it is learned that the individ-
ual had previously “gotten off” with an insanity verdict (1, 2).

Much of the research that has been done in this area has
focused on the rehospitalization and the rearrest of released
acquittees. Earlier review articles by Pasewark in 1981 (3), and
Steadman and Braff in 1983 (4), provided some initial informa-
tion on the these two outcome measures. Rehospitalization rates
in two studies were reported at 22% and 37% and rearrests in
three studies with small numbers of insanity acquittees ranged
from 15% to 65%.

Three studies from Maryland have added to the information
provided by these earlier reviews. The first (5) examined the
arrest rates of 86 insanity acquittees for up to 15 years following
their discharge from the psychiatric hospitalization resulting
from a successful insanity verdict. Fifty-six percent were arrested
during this extended follow-up period. In a subsequent study (6),
the authors examined the hospitalization and arrests of insanity
acquittees both before and after discharge from the index hospi-
talization and compared these insanity acquittees with offenders
released from prison. Forty-six percent of the insanity acquittees
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were rehospitalized and 66% were rearrested during an extensive
follow-up period that averaged 10 years. Rearrests grew from
23% at the end of 1 year to 66% at the end of 10 years. After 10
years, the rates plateaued. The authors demonstrated the impor-
tance of the length of the follow-up period in determining the
arrest rates of former insanity acquittees. The third study (7)
compared insanity acquittees discharged from the state forensic
hospital with those discharged from regional psychiatric facili-
ties and followed these individuals for 5 years after hospital
discharge. Sixty-four percent of those discharged from the foren-
sic hospital and 79% of those discharged from the regional hospi-
tal were rehospitalized in the follow-up period, whereas 47% of
the forensic hospital group and 63% of the regionalized patients
were rearrested among the outcome measures.

A recent study from California (8) compared hospitalization
and arrests for those who were conditionally released and those
who were discharged from a forensic hospital with no condi-
tional release. Both groups consisted primarily of insanity
acquittees. The finding in relation to the conditional release
group was described in Chapter 4. Of those discharged with no
conditional release, 27% were arrested and 9% hospitalized dur-
ing the 2-year follow-up period.

We reported (9) on the rearrest of 41% of 123 insanity
acquittees released from PSRB jurisdiction in the first 3 years of
PSRB operation (1978-1980). Because the Board released subjects
from their jurisdiction at different times during 1978-1980, fol-
low-up time in this study varied from 2 to 5 years. Subjects had a
mean of 1.2 arrests per person and 77% of first arrests took place
within the first year after discharge. This chapter expands on the
information available in this earlier article by examining mental
health and criminal justice system contacts of insanity acquittees
after PSRB discharge. :

This chapter describes the arrests and hospitalization of dis-
charged insanity acquittees. In addition, we explore two other
areas. The first relates to the question of prediction of dangerous-
ness as we compare mandatory and discretionary discharges.
The second focuses on the critical question of the adjustment of
discharged insanity acquittees.
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METHODOLOGY

As discussed in Chapter 1, the Board discharges an insanity
acquittee from its jurisdiction either at the completion of the
insanity sentence imposed by the trial court judge or, prior to the
end of the insanity sentence, when the Board concludes that an
individual is no longer mentally ill and/or no longer dangerous.
We have called these two types of discharges mandatory and
discretionary discharge. After discharge, unless the state insti-
tutes civil commitment proceedings, individuals are free of all
restraints that characterized their time under the Board’s juris-
diction.

Of the 758 subjects in the study, the Board discharged 422
(56%) during the study period. This chapter begins with a de-
scription of these 422 discharged subjects and their mental health
and criminal justice system involvement after their discharge
from PSRB jurisdiction. We then examine the question of the
prediction of dangerousness and the adjustment of discharged
insanity acquittees.

STUDY 1:
SUBJECTS DISCHARGED
FROM PSRB JURISDICTION

As stated, during the study period 1978-1986, the Board dis-
charged 422 individuals or 56% of the 758 subjects in our research
sample. Of these 422 individuals, the Board discharged 222 sub-
jects (53%) because the Board found them to be no longer men-
tally ill and/or no longer dangerous, and discharged 170 (40%)
because the maximum length of PSRB jurisdiction elapsed. An
additional 21 subjects died while under the Board’s jurisdiction, 8
from natural causes and 13 from suicide. The Oregon Court of
Appeals ordered 2% of the subjects discharged for various rea-
sons including reversal of their convictions or the Board’s failure
to hold mandatory hearings.

The discharged sample included 182 misdemeanants, repre-
senting 43% of the discharge sample. This is much larger than the
27% of misdemeanants who composed the admission sample of
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758 subjects. An additional 144 subjects or 34% of those dis-
charged, had been assigned by trial court judges for 5-year insan-
ity sentences. These were expected findings since the
jurisdictional time of misdemeanants is limited to 1 year and
those whom the courts assigned to PSRB jurisdiction for 5 years
between 1978-1981 would have had mandatory discharges dur-
ing the study period.

During the study period the Board discharged 24% of the
sample who had longer PSRB jurisdictional terms: 8% (n = 32)
with 10-year terms; 14% (n = 60) with 20-year terms, and 2%
(n = 10) with 40 or more years for their insanity sentence. Because
the length of the study period was 9 years, all of these subjects
had discretionary discharges, unless, as mentioned, discharge
occurred on order of the Court of Appeals, or as a result of a
subject’s death. :

Sixty-five percent of subjects were discharged from the hospi-
tal and 35% were discharged from conditional release. Of the
subjects with discretionary discharges, 75% were discharged
from the hospital and 25% were discharged from community
placements. This is significantly different from percentages for
subjects who had mandatory discharges in which 55% were dis-
charged from the hospital and 45% were discharged from the
community (y? = 18.859, df = 1, P = .0000).

Although we have pointed to a sex difference in several chap-
ters in this book, the overall discharge cohort contains the same
proportions of men (87%) and women (13%) as the entry cohort.

Table 7-1 presents the year of PSRB discharge for the 422
discharged subjects. In its first 2 years, the Board discharged
relatively few subjects (i.e., 9% of the discharge sample). During
the next 3 years, 1980-1982, the Board discharged 48% of the
sample, whereas in the last 4 years of the study period, 1983-
1986, the Board discharged 44% of the sample. We examined the
differences in the various types of discharges across a 12-year
time period in Chapter 5.

Table 7-1 also indirectly demonstrates that the length of fol-
low-up time depends on the date of discharge. The average fol-
low-up time was 53 months. Only 11% of the sample had fewer
than 18 months of follow-up during the study period.
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Involvement of Discharged Inéanity Acquittees in
the Mental Health and Criminal Justice Systems

To create a more meaningful sample to examine the involvement
of discharged subjects in the mental health and criminal justice
systems, we subtracted the 21 subjects who died while under
PSRB jurisdiction and also subtracted those subjects whom the
Board released in the last 6 months of 1986. This produced a
sample of 381 and allowed for a minimum follow-up period of at
least 6 months. To place our findings in context, we compared
them with subjects’ prior behavior. Data is thus presented for
subjects’ involvement in the mental health and criminal justice
systems both before and after PSRB jurisdiction.

Following discharge, 65% of the 381 subjects were hospitalized
at least once, 50% had at least one criminal justice contact and
40% had involvement with both systems. Twenty-five percent of
the sample had no involvement with either system after dis-
charge from PSRB jurisdiction. These findings are significantly
influenced by the length of follow-up time. Those with contacts,
with either the mental health or criminal justice systems, had a
mean of 4.8 years of follow-up time compared to 3.2 years for
those subjects with no contacts (¢ =7.128, df = 374, P =.0000).
Fifty-two percent of first arrests took place in the first year after
the Board discharged the subject, while 70% took place in the first
18 months.

Table 7-1.  Year of discharge from the PSRB (N = 422)

Year Number discharged %
1978 5 1
1979 32 8
1980 63 15
1981 62 15
1982 74 18
1983 55 13
1984 37 9
1985 46 11
1986 48 11
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The 65% of those subjects hospitalized after discharge com-
pares to 74% of the sample who were hospitalized at some point
prior to PSRB jurisdiction. Subjects had a mean of 2.85 hospital-
izations before PSRB jurisdiction compared to 2.13 hospitaliza-
tions after discharge from PSRB jurisdiction.

Table 7-2 provides a comparison of the relationship of psychi-
atric hospitalization and criminal justice involvement before and
after PSRB jurisdiction. There were significant differences in each
area. The largest percentage of subjects demonstrate contacts in
both time periods. Fifty-two percent of the sample had involve-
ment with the mental health system and 43% with the criminal
justice system both before and after assignment to PSRB jurisdic-
tion. When we combined mental health and criminal justice sys-
tem involvement, 28% of the sample had involvement in both
systems before and after PSRB, while only 4% had no involve-
ment in either system before and after PSRB. Again, as indicated
in Table 7-2, those subjects with contacts in either the mental
health or the criminal justice system had a significantly longer
time in follow-up.

Table 7-2. Mental health and criminal justice comparison before and
after PSRB (N = 381)

Involvement post-PSRB

No Yes
Mental health system involvement®
Involvement pre-PSRB
No 47 (12%) 51 (13%)
Yes 85 (22%) 198 (52%)
Follow-up in years” 358 4.84
Criminal justice system involvement®
Involvement pre-PSRB
No 49 (13%) 25 (7%)
Yes 142 (37%) 165 (43%)
Follow-up in yearsc1 3.81 5.04

an?=10.33,df = 1, P = .0013.
b+ =6.00, df =379, P = .0000.
oy =9.504, df =1, P = .0020.

44 = 6.20, df = 374, P = .0000.
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Table 7-3 depicts criminal justice contacts before and after
PSRB jurisdiction. The average number of these contacts
decreased significantly from 4.2 per subject to 1.4 per subject (t =
18.1, df = 380, P = .0000) We also found a significant decrease in
numbers of criminal contacts when we corrected these rates of
contacts for length of follow-up time. The average criminal con-
tact decreased from 0.5 per year to 0.3 per year (t = 5.2, df = 377,
P =.0000). In addition, there was a significant shift in the follow-

Table 7-3. Criminal justice contacts before and after PSRB

Before PSRB After PSRB
Crime category Frequency % Frequency %
Felony crimes 616 48 215 40
Burglary 118 9 47 9
Assault 105 8 28 5
Drug offenses 90 7 8 1
Theft 76 6 21 4
Escape/failure to appear 42 3 21 4
Unauthorized use of auto 39 3 21 4
Criminal mischief 36 3 24 4
Robbery 36 3 11 2
Arson 16 1 5 1
Sexual assault 14 1 12 2
Driving offenses 7 1 5 1
Homicide 6 <1 — —
Kidnapping 3 <1 2 <1
Weapons offenses 2 <1 — —
Other felony 26 2 10 2
Misdemeanor crimes 669 52 319 60
Theft 207 16 98 18
Driving offenses 98 8 36 7
Trespass 93 7 54 10
Resisting arrest 76 6 16 3
Menacing/harassment 73 6 66 12
Criminal mischief 30 2 9 2
Sexual offenses 33 3 17 3
Weapons offenses 19 1 8 1
Escape/failure to appear 16 1 12 2
Arson i 6 <1 1 <1
Other misdemeanor 18 2 2 <1
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up period to less serious crimes as illustrated in the significant
increase in the proportions of misdemeanors to felonies (y?=
8.957,df = 1, P = .0028) and in the difference in the mean serious-
ness score of these crimes from 463 in the pre-PSRB time period
to 494 in the follow-up period (t = 3.5, df = 377, P = .0005).

In addition to these changes in the number and seriousness of
crimes in the follow-up period, we also found a significant rela-
tionship between those who had arrests in the pre- and post-
PSRB time periods. This relationship is illustrated in the
correlation between the number of criminal contacts in the time
periods prior to and following discharge from PSRB (32 = 0.31,
df =379, P = .0000) and in the data presented in Table 7-2.

STUDY 2: COMPARISON OF SUBJECTS WITH
MANDATORY AND DISCRETIONARY
DISCHARGES

This study examines the question of the relationship between the
type of discharge and the involvement of discharged subjects in
the mental health and criminal justice systems. As described in
Chapter 3, the Mental Health Data Base contains information on
psychiatric hospitalization in state facilities dating back to the
1950s, with considerably increased reliability from the 1970s for-
ward. We were able to obtain reliable data on community psychi-
atric contacts dating from 1980. Because of the differences in the
reliability of hospital and community data and in order to in-
clude community data in our analyses, we chose to examine a
group of 252 subjects discharged between 1981 and 1985. The use
of this sample allowed us to look at a group of subjects during a
period of time when we had reliable community data, and for
whom we had at least 1 year of follow-up data after discharge
from PSRB jurisdiction.

The sample for this study consisted of 104 (41%) subjects
whom the Board discharged when their maximum period of
jurisdiction ran out, 114 (45%) subjects discharged as no longer
dangerous, and 34 (14%) subjects discharged as no longer men-
tally ill. There were no differences between the groups in relation
to demographic variables. Table 7-4 shows the relative propor-
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tions of mandatory and discretionary discharges that make up
this discharge sample across discharge years. As can be seen from
the table, there was a dramatic shift in the makeup of these yearly
discharge cohorts in 1983 with a shift from predominantly discre-
tionary to predominantly mandatory discharges (see Chapter 5).

As illustrated in Table 7-5, we found differences among the
three groups in relation to the length of assignment to PSRB
jurisdiction. As expected, all subjects who were discharged be-
cause their PSRB jurisdiction elapsed had been assigned to the
PSRB by the courts for 5 years or less. There were very different
patterns in the relationship between length of assignment and the
two types of discretionary discharges. Most of the discretionary

Table 7-4. Discharge year and type of discharge (N = 252)

Jurisdiction No longer
elapsed No longer ill dangerous
(N =104) (N =34) (N =114)

Discharge year n % n % n %
1981 18 30 7 21 35 70
1982 15 21 15 44 40 79
1983 29 60 5 15 14 40
1984 22 63 4 12 9 37
1985 20 51 3 9 16 49

Note. ¥*=32.833, df =8, P = .0001.

Table 7-5. Length of assignment to PSRB jurisdiction (N = 252)

Jurisdiction No longer
elapsed No longer ill dangerous
Length of (N =104) (N =34) (N=114)

assignment (years) n % n % n %
1 68 65 3 9 26 23
5 36 35 8 24 51 45
10 — 6 18 12 10
20 — 12 35 22 19
40+ — 5 15 3 3
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discharges, 77%, were based on a Board finding that the subject
was no longer dangerous. There was a different pattern of dis-
charge in relation to subjects with longer insanity sentences.
Sixty-eight percent of those discharged as no longer mentally ill
had sentences of 10 years or more, compared with only 32% of
those discharged as no longer dangerous.

There were significant differences between the three groups in
relation to their prior involvement in the mental health and crim-
inal justice systems (y? = 24.28, df = 6, P = .0005). As illustrated in
Figure 7-1, those subjects whose jurisdiction elapsed and those
discharged as no longer dangerous were similar and both were
very different from those subjects discharged as no longer men-
tally ill. This latter group had less experience in the mental health
system and more experience with the criminal justice system.
These distinctions between the three groups appear to continue
after discharge from PSRB jurisdiction.

Table 7-6 depicts the criminal justice contacts for the sample
after discharge from PSRB jurisdiction. There was a significant
difference between the three discharge types in the mean number
of criminal justice contacts after discharge. This difference did
not hold up when the number of contacts were corrected for time
of follow-up.

To investigate this area in more detail, we first compared the
criminal justice contacts of the two discretionary discharge
groups and found no significant differences between these two
groups. We then combined subjects with discretionary dis-
charges and compared them with those subjects with mandatory
discharges. We found that a significantly higher percentage of
the combined discretionary discharge group had criminal justice
contacts (x*=5.238, df = 1, P =.0221) and a significantly higher
mean number of such contacts, (1.54 versus 0.87) (t = 3.212, df =
250, P =.0015). However, when corrected for follow-up time
there were no significant differences between the groups.

Table 7-7 describes the mental health system contacts of dis-
charged subjects. There were clear-cut differences among the
three groups. Those whom the Board discharged as no longer
mentally ill experienced the fewest hospitalizations and spent
significantly less time in the postdischarge period in the hospital
and in community and residential treatment.
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STUDY 3: COMPARISON OF SUBJECTS
DISCHARGED FROM HOSPITAL AND THOSE
DISCHARGED FROM CONDITIONAL RELEASE

their community placements. We eliminated women from these
comparisons because they had different involvement with the
criminal justice system before and after their placement under

We have previously hypothesized that, barring major differences
in subject characteristics, those subjects discharged from the fo-
rensic hospital would have higher arrest rates than those dis-
charged from conditional release. We reasoned that those
subjects who had achieved a stable involvement in a community
placement would continue in this placement after discharge, and
that the stability of this mental health treatment setting would
reduce future involvement in the criminal justice system. We felt
that criminal activity would decrease if the mental illness contin-
ued to be treated.

To examine this hypothesis, we compared a subgroup of men
who had been placed under PSRB jurisdiction following felony
crimes and who had spent the 3 months prior to discharge either
in the hospital or on conditional release. We required at least a
3-month period in the hospital or on conditional release prior to
discharge to allow those on conditional release time to adjust to

Table 7-6. Criminal justice contacts after discharge

Jurisdiction No longer
elapsed No longer ill dangerous
(N =104) (N =34) (N =114)
Criminal justice
contacts 41 (39%) 20 (59%) 60 (53%)
Mean number of
contacts® 0.87 171 1.49
Average/contacts
per year 0.27 0.44 0.37
Type of contact?
Felony 31 (34%) 34  (55%) 72 (41%)
Misdemeanor 60 (66%) 28  (45%) 102 (59%)
Follow-up in years® 3.405 4.115 4.167

F =5.37, df = 2,249, P = .0052.
®y2=6577,df =2, P = .0373.
©F =8.914, df = 2,245, P = .0002.
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the jurisdiction of the PSRB (see Chapter 10). We also eliminated
misdemeanants because they demonstrated different patterns of
hospitalization and conditional release (see Chapter 9). Taking
these factors into account we developed a sample of 153 male

Table 7-7. Mental health contacts after discharge

Jurisdiction No longer
elapsed  Nolongerill dangerous
(N =104) (N =34) (N = 114)
Hospital contacts
Hospital episodes 62 (60%) 18 (53%) 82 (72%)
Mean number of episodes 2.08 1.0 2.26
Range 0-26 0-7 0-19
% of follow-up time in
hospital® 18 5 13
* Community contacts
Community treatment® 62 (60%) 6 (18%) 60 (53%)
% of follow-up time
in treatment* 28 6 21
Residential services? 32 (31%) 0 32 (28%)
% of follow-up time in
residential service® 9 0 7

Precommitment services' 38 (37%) 3 (9%) 38 (33%)

Hospital and community
episodes combined
Number receiving

treatment 87 (84%) 24 (74%) 97 (85%)
% of follow-up time
receiving service® 51 13 37

3 F =345, df = 2,249, P = .0334.
P 4?=18.34,df =2, P = .0001.

¢ F=6.41,df = 2,249, P = .0019.
dy*=13.59,df =2, P = .0011.
¢F =3.13,df = 2,249, P = .0456.
fy2 =953, df =2, P = .0085.

8T = 13.42, df = 2,249, P = .0000.
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subjects, 92 whom the PSRB discharged from the hospital and 61
discharged from conditional release.

Demographically, we found those discharged from the hospi-
tal to be significantly younger, with a mean age of 29 compared
to 33 for the conditionally released group (¢ = 2.06, df =148, P =
.0412). We found no significant differences between the groups in
relation to diagnosis, marital status, past history of substance
abuse, and whether the Board discharged these subjects on a
mandatory or discretionary basis.

In addition to spending the last 3 months either in the hospital
or on conditional release, the hospitalized group spent signifi-
cantly more time, on average, in the hospital, 21 months com-
pared to 15 months (t=2.28, df =151, P =.0242), and the
conditionally released subjects spent significantly more time, on
average, in the community, 28 months compared to 1 month (t =
14.86, df = 151, P =.0000). Looking at these findings in another
way, the hospitalized group spent 96% of their time under PSRB
jurisdiction in the hospital compared to 29% for the conditionally
released subjects (t = 21.9, df = 151, P = .0000).

An interesting and unexpected finding demonstrated that
those subjects in the conditional release group spent, on average,
significantly more time under PSRB jurisdiction, 44 months com-
pared to 23 months for those in the hospitalized group (¢ = 6.05,
df =151, P =.0000). We found this result despite the fact that
there was no significant variation between the groups in the
seriousness of the crimes leading to PSRB jurisdiction or in the
length of assignment to the PSRB. There also was no significant
difference between the two groups in the type of discharge, man-
datory versus discretionary.

Mental Health and Criminal Justice System Contacts
After Discharge From PSRB Jurisdiction

The critical issue in this study is the question of whether there are
differences in adjustment after discharge for those subjects dis-
charged from the hospital compared to those discharged from
conditional release. As an overview, Figure 7-2 demonstrates
significant differences between these two discharge groups using
the outcome variables of mental health and criminal justice sys-
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tem contacts. Fifty-five percent of those discharged from the hos-
pital had both mental health and criminal justice contacts while
59% of those discharged from conditional release had no contact
with either system after discharge from PSRB jurisdiction. Look-
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Figure 7-2. Prior mental health (MH) and/or criminal justice (CJ)
contacts by discharge from conditional release (CR) and hospital
(N =153). ’
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ing at these findings from another perspective, 71% of those
discharged from conditional release had no criminal justice con-
tacts in the follow-up period compared to 41% for those dis-
charged from the hospital.

Comparison of Mental Health and Criminal Justice System
Contacts Before and After Assignment to PSRB Jurisdiction

The dramatic differences between the two groups in their
postdischarge contacts with the mental health and criminal jus-
tice systems needs to be compared with the involvement of these
subjects in these two systems prior to their assignment to the
jurisdiction of the Board.

Mental Health Contacts

Because we did not have consistent community data across the
entire study period we compared only the pre-PSRB and post-
discharge use of state hospitals for the two groups of subjects. We
found no significant differences between the groups in the num-
ber of subjects hospitalized or in the mean number of hospitaliza-
tions prior to the involvement of subjects with the PSRB.

There were, however, significant differences in the follow-up
period. Although there was no difference between the groups in
the percentages of those hospitalized on a voluntary basis there
were significant differences in involuntary hospitalization.
Eighty-six percent of those subjects whom the Board discharged
from the hospital were hospitalized involuntarily at some point
during the follow-up period compared to only 18% of those
subjects the Board discharged from conditional release (x*=
69.69, df = 1, P = .0000). In addition, subjects discharged from the
hospital had an average of 1.8 involuntary hospitalizations
compared to 0.4 for those discharged from conditional release,
(t=6.02, df = 150, P = .0000). The subjects discharged from the
hospital spent an average of 20% of the follow-up period hospi-
talized involuntarily, significantly more than the 2% for the con-
ditional release group (t =2.94, df = 151, P = .0038).
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Criminal Justice Contacts

There were significant differences between the two groups in
relation to criminal justice contacts both before and after PSRB
jurisdiction as depicted in Table 7-8. Although 89% of both
groups had police contacts prior to the PSRB, those discharged
from the hospital had significantly more contacts with the crimi-
nal justice system in terms of absolute numbers and when cor-
rected by yearly rates.

After PSRB jurisdiction there also were significant differences
between the groups. Sixty-three percent of subjects discharged
from the hospital had criminal justice system contacts compared
with 34% of those subjects discharged from conditional release.
In addition, the hospital discharge group had significantly more

Table 7-8. Criminal contacts before and after PSRB jurisdiction

(N=153)
Discharge from Discharge from
L hospital conditional release

Criminal justice data (N=92) (N =61)
Prior contacts 82 (89%) 54 (89%)
Prior contacts (mean)® 55 3.7
Average/ yearb 0.6 0.4
Seriousness score 431 406
Type of contacts

Misdemeanor 176 (34%) 69 (30%)

Felony 336 (66%) 159 (70%)
Post contacts® 58 (63%) 21 (34%)
Post contacts (mean)? 2.0 0.7
Average/year® 0.4 0.2
Seriousness score 459 512
Type of contacts

Misdemeanor ‘ 76 (44%) 23 (59%)

Felony 97 (56%) 16 (41%)

2t =13.75,df = 151, P = .0003.
®t=232,df =149, P = .0214.
©%*=2.028,df =1, P = .0005.
4t =471, df = 151, P = .0000.
t=23.08, df = 150, P = .0025.
f£+=2.10,df =77, P = .0389,
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criminal justice contacts that remained when we corrected the
data for time during follow-up.

Also as demonstrated in Table 7-8, we found no difference in
the seriousness of the crimes in the pre-PSRB time period, but we
found a significant difference in the average seriousness score of
the criminal contacts in the follow-up period. Those discharged
from the hospital had arrests for more serious crimes.

Community Mental Health Services After
Discharge From PSRB Jurisdiction

We were very interested in the question of whether there were
differences between those subjects discharged from the hospital
compared with those discharged from conditional release in rela-
tion to enrollment in community mental health programs after
discharge. We were also interested in whether there was a differ-
ence in the time it took for subjects to enter these programs.
Forty-one percent of those discharged from conditional reletase
and 43% of those discharged from the hospital received services
from a community mental health program. However, as Tabl‘e
7-9 demonstrates, there were significant differences in the time it
took for those who received services to get into a community
program. Sixty percent of those subjects discharged from condi~
tional release entered a community program within 1 month of
discharge by the Board, while it took 12 months for 53% of the

Table 7-9. Time to first community episode

Discharge from  Discharge from

Time to first community hospital conditional release
contact (months)® (N = 40) (N =25)

0-1 6 (15%) 15 (60%)

2-12 15 (38%) 5 (20%)

>12 19 (47%) 5 (20%)
Mean in days® 580 267

ay?=14.32, df = 2, P = .0008.
b4 =208, df =63, P =.0416.
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subjects discharged from the hospital to enter community mental
health service. It took hospitalized subjects a mean of 580 days to
enter a community program, significantly higher than the 267
days it took for conditionally released subjects to enter commu-
nity programs.

DISCUSSION

This chapter examined the involvement of insanity acquittees in
the mental health and criminal justice systems after discharge
from the jurisdiction of the PSRB. How subjects adjust after they
are discharged is important from several perspectives. From a
mental health services research perspective, it is critical to know
as much as possible about this group of individuals because of
their demonstrated past heavy use of both mental health and
criminal justice system services (see Chapter 3). It is important to
establish whether their involvement in the mental health and
criminal justice systems after discharge returns to pre-PSRB lev-
els and whether the treatment they received while under the
jurisdiction of the Board appears to make a difference in
postdischarge adjustment. These areas have important im-
plications for the design of programs to serve similar popula-
tions.

There are also implications from the data presented in this
chapter for the design of forensic mental health systems. The
PSRB operates within a legal framework that potentially could be
altered by the Oregon legislature. For example, within the consti-
tutional parameters provided by the United States Supreme
Court in Jones v. U.S. (10), Oregon could eliminate the defined
period of the insanity sentence in favor of a system that has no
mandated limit to the length of Board jurisdiction. In this model,
discharge would become entirely “discretionary” based on a
Board finding that an individual is no longer dangerous and/or
mentally ill. As another example, the legislature could expand or
contract the jurisdiction of the Board. In 1983 a proposal was
placed before the Oregon legislature to have the PSRB manage all
mentally ill offenders, including those in the prison. Or, Oregon
could adopt the strategy promulgated in Connecticut and limit
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the Board’s authority to the conditional release or discharge of
insanity acquittees who are committed to the jurisdiction of the
Board following major felonies. Or, in this period of fiscal con-
straint on government, the legislature might choose to subsume
the powers of the PSRB under the state parole board. This latter
proposal was recently discussed and rejected in Oregon.

The question of the discharge of insanity acquittees from
forensic facilities goes hand in glove with the problem of the
prediction of dangerousness (11, 12). The PSRB is making predic-
tions each time it places an insanity acquittee in the community
on conditional release, revokes a conditional release, or when it
discharges an individual based on a finding that the individual is
no longer dangerous. By discharging individuals as no longer
dangerous, the PSRB is developing its own history in the area of
prediction. This track record is open to scrutiny. Thus there are
very important program implications for the follow-up data pre-
sented in this chapter and each of the studies presented were
designed to attempt to address such policy questions.

The data presented in study 1 of this chapter are generally in
line with the data reported from Maryland (5, 6)-With an average
follow-up time of 53 months, 65% of subjects in our study were
hospitalized at least once, 50% had at least one arrest and 40%
had both a hospitalization and an arrest. These rates of contact
with the mental health and criminal justice systems were clearly
influenced by the length of the follow-up period. Those subjects
with postdischarge contacts with either system had significantly
longer follow-up times in the community. Given the caution
pointed out in the Maryland research, where rearrests plateaued
at 66% 10 years after discharge, we should expect an increase in
the rearrest rate of the subjects in our study.

There also was an apparent difference in the data from Oregon
and Maryland in that arrests in Oregon seemed to occur more
proximately to discharge, 52% of first arrests in the first year after
discharge in this study and 77% in our earlier study (7). These
differences between the jurisdictions might well relate to the fact
that in the Maryland data, the follow-up period included those
subjects discharged from hospital who were placed on condi-
tional release for part of the study period. If the time period on
conditional release were added to the Oregon data the length of
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time to first arrest would increase.

The difference in the Oregon data between the earlier and the
current studies could be explained by the fact that the earlier
study had a limited data base as compared with the data base
used for this chapter. Our results suggest a clear need for more
research in this area from other jurisdictions. The differences
between our data and those presented from California (8) again
are most likely explained by the length of the follow-up period.

Although the percentage of subjects hospitalized in state psy-
chiatric hospitals did not change dramatically when we com-
pared pre- and post-PSRB usage, criminal justice system contacts
did change significantly. The numbers of criminal justice contacts
decreased significantly from 0.5 to 0.3 contacts per year and there
was an overall decrease in felonies and increase in misdemeanors
among those subjects who were arrested. In addition, as has been
found in relation to other mentally ill populations (13, 14) there
was a significant relationship between those who were arrested
before and after PSRB jurisdiction.

The decrease in the amount of criminal justice contacts per
year following discharge from PSRB is important, but certain
cautions must be taken when interpreting these results. Although
subjects without post-PSRB criminal justice contacts had an aver-
age of 3.81 years of follow-up, subjects with post-PSRB contacts
had significantly longer time in follow-up, averaging 5.04 years.
Given the differences in the length of the follow-up period, the
decrease in the criminal justice contacts might be more apparent
than real. The decrease in criminal justice contacts also might
relate to an aging population. Further, given the limited follow-
up time, rearrests might be further influenced by incarceration or
hospitalization, which would result in fewer “opportunities” for
new criminal activities. We do not have data on the length of
possible incarceration following arrest, and this area awaits fur-
ther investigation.

Study 2 examined possible relationships between discharge
status and subsequent hospitalization and arrest. We know that
the Board curtailed its use of discretionary discharge in the last 3
years of the study period. By choosing our sample for study 2
from those discharged between 1981 and 1985, we are able to get
a representative view of the use of discretionary discharge before
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and after these changes and also to examine the question of how
well the Board does in relation to the prediction of dangerous-
ness. '

Subjects discharged because their jurisdictional time elapsed
and those discharged as no longer dangerous resembled each
other in relation to past contacts with the mental health and
criminal justice systems. For the most part, these subjects also
had short insanity sentences.

Subjects discharged as no longer mentally ill were fewer in
number, were predominantly serving insanity sentences of 10
years or more, had significantly more prior contact with the
criminal justice system and had fewer contacts with the mental
health system. This is a very important group of subjects that the
Board found were no longer mentally ill, but might be considered
dangerous. In discharging these subjects the Board made an im—
portant statement about the limits of its jurisdiction. The deci-
sion-making process demonstrated here by the PSRB fits closely
to the reasoning in the recent U.S. Supreme Court case of Foucha
v. Louisiana (15).

A central question in study 2 relates to the future behavior of
discharged subjects. The Oregon system mandates discharge at
the completion of the insanity sentence. The future behavior of
subjects discharged at the termination of this sentence can be
used as a benchmark for comparison with those discharged on a
discretionary basis. The Oregon legislature, on behalf of the citi-
zens of the state, agreed to accept the risk for those subjects
discharged on mandatory basis in exchange for a fair system (see
Chapter 12). This is true to a lesser extent with discretionary
discharges. In this situation, the legislature gave the Board the
power to exercise its judgment in deciding whether to discharge
an insanity acquittee as no longer mentally ill or no longer dan-
gerous.

Although both groups of subjects discharged on a discretion-
ary basis had significantly more involvement with the criminal
justice system when compared with those subjects with manda-
tory discharges, the differences were not significant when the
data were corrected for time in follow-up. Thus, although trends
are apparent there are no significant differences in the criminal
justice system involvement between subjects discharged on a

Acquittees After PSRB Jurisdiction 137

mandatory basis and those discharged either as no longer men-
tally ill or no longer dangerous.

The postdischarge mental health contacts of subjects dis-
charged as no longer dangerous were very similar to those dis-
charged because PSRB jurisdiction terminated and were
significantly different from those discharged as no longer men-
tally ill. The latter group had the least involvement with the
mental health system, both in relation to hospitalization and
community treatment.

Thus in discharging a small number of subjects as no longer
mentally ill the Board appears to have been able to identify a
group of subjects with considerably less experience with the
mental health system both before assignment to the Board's juris-
diction and after discharge. In making the determination that
these subjects were not mentally ill, the Board was not saying that
these subjects were not dangerous. However, because of the lack
of significant postdischarge differences in the groups in relation
to criminal justice contacts when these contacts were corrected
for time we are unable to reach a conclusion regarding the
Board’s ability to predict dangerousness. Further clarity in this
area may come from examining different subgroups in our data.
In addition a longer follow-up time period should also help to
settle this question.

Study 3 examined the question of whether subjects discharged
from conditional release had fewer criminal justice contacts after
discharge than those discharged from the hospital. For this study
we used a sample of male felons who were discharged either
from the hospital or from conditional release. The subjects dis-
charged from the hospital were significantly younger and spent
significantly more of their PSRB time in the hospital. Subjects
discharged from conditional release spent significantly more of
their PSRB time on conditional release.

A key finding in this study was that subjects discharged from
conditional release experienced significantly less involvement
with the mental health and criminal justice systems after dis-
charge from the Board's jurisdiction when compared with those
discharged from the hospital.

This is a dramatic finding in relation to mental health contacts
because there were no significant differences between the two
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discharge groups in relation to mental health contacts prior to
PSRB jurisdiction. The criminal justice system differences are less
striking because there were significant differences in the groups
in relation to criminal justice contacts prior to PSRB jurisdiction.

Even though there were no differences in the groups in their
involvement with the mental health system prior to PSRB assign-
ment, we cannot attribute the findings in the mental health area
after discharge to whether the subject was discharged from the
hospital or from conditional release. As we discussed in Chapter
4, time on conditional release and staying on conditional release
without revocation could be the most important variables in
relation to subsequent adjustment. Conditional release is not
easy to achieve in this system and, again referring to Chapter 4,
being placed on conditional release and staying there appears to
be mediated by mental status.

This discussion brings subject characteristics to the fore in
relation to adjustment of insanity acquittees after discharge. It is
also worth noting that subjects discharged from the hospital have
a significantly higher involuntary commitment rate when com-
pared with those discharged from conditional release. Having
more involuntary hospitalizations might point to a lack of insight
on the part of these subjects regarding their mental illnesses and
their need for treatment (16).

Subject characteristics may also be very important in relation
to community mental health services following hospital dis-
charge. Fifty-six percent of those discharged from conditional
release were reported in community mental health treatment
within 2 months of discharge, compared with 13% of those dis-
charged from the hospital. It took a mean of 580 days for those
discharged from the hospital to enter treatment, if they did, com-
pared with 267 days for those subjects discharged from commu-
nity placement. These data may represent a linkage problem
between hospital and community treatment at the time of dis-
charge from PSRB jurisdiction. Alternatively these findings could
highlight limited insight on the part of those discharged from the
hospital in relation to understanding their need to be in commu-
nity treatment after discharge from PSRB.

Ultimately this chapter raises more questions than it answers.
The findings presented point to the need for focused studies in
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this area to further explore adjustment after an insanity acquittee
is discharged from an insanity sentence. This is a very fruitful
area for further research.
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{ Chapter 8
|

Diagnostic Issues Related
. to the Insanity Defense

INTRODUCTION

In this chapter, we focus on the relationship between psychiatric
diagnosis and the insanity defense. We begin empirically by com-
paring subjects from the four most prevalent diagnostic groups
in our research sample of 758 subjects (see Chapter 3). These four
groups comprised 421 subjects (55%) diagnosed with schizophre-
nia, 75 subjects (10%) with personality disorder, 56 subjects (7%)
with mental retardation, and 46 subjects (6%) with bipolar disor-
der. After presenting data from this comparison, we discuss is-
| sues related to the insanity defense and to the management of
?' each of these four diagnostic groups.

COMPARISON OF INSANITY ACQUITTEES WITH
SCHIZOPHRENIA, BIPOLAR DISORDER,
PERSONALITY DISORDER, OR MENTAL
RETARDATION

Assignment to Psychiatric Security Review Board (PSRB)

There was a significant difference in the patterns of commitment
of these four diagnostic groups across the five most populous
Oregon counties -as seen in Table 8-1. The counties with the
fourth and fifth largest populations committed fewer subjects
with diagnoses of schizophrenia and approximately twice the
numbers of subjects with personality disorders or mental retar-
dation.
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0 Study 2 Comparison of Mandatory versus Discretionary — if we have enough
discretionary for a valuable n quantity. | recall from Shelley that we do not have
many discretionary discharges from 5, 10 and 15 years ago. Maybe forgo this for
now and just do study 1 and 3.

0 Study 3 Comparison of subjects Discharged from OSH and Those Discharged from CR
(using page 126 data)

= Using number of Criminal contacts by felony and misdemeanant type to
measure

= Break down n by “Discharged on CR” and “Discharged from OSH” - Number of
police contacts before and after PSRB jurisdiction —how do they compare.

Do you all want me to schedule a call to discuss?

Juliet

~~ SERVICE EXCELLENCE LEADERSHIP ~~ PARTNERSHIP ~~ INNOVATION ~~ JUSTICE

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

I have a suggestion for the group. If you can take a look at chapter 7 in the book I edited with Mary
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
paper ssimple asitisour first release of data post-jurisdiction. Below is the raw datawith the
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

36 reoffended (new GEl, arrest, or conviction)
53% re-offense rate

2001

59 total discharges

9 removed due to death under supervision or no available computerized criminal history from
OSP (probably means the client has died)

15 reoffended (new GElI, arrest, or conviction)

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

Date: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 8:39:34 AM

Attachments: attachment 1.xIsx

ATTO00001.htm

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
would bein the study. Attached is the current list of proposed variables for the study. I've
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

26 reoffended (new GEl, arrest, or conviction)
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

15 reoffended (new GEl, arrest, or conviction)

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
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Sheet1

				VARIABLES		SRB Comments:		Elena Responses:

		Demographic:

				Sex

				Ethnicity

				Marital status at admission

				Marital status at re-offense		No way to know this

				Age at DOJ for GEI Offense that discharges in study year (Index)

				Age at 2011, 2006, or 2001 EOJ (statutory or discretionary)

				Age at re-offense		Arrest? Conviction? First post GEI discharge? All?		This is thorny. Some recidivism research uses any arrest or conviction as a measure of recidivism, other research uses conviction only data. We would need to decide as a group how inclusive we want to be. Technically, “recidivism” is defined as re-offense after a person has been sanctioned in some way – to have experienced some consequence of getting caught. If someone is jailed for a long time but then acquitted, have they experienced a consequence that meets that definition? I can look into this more to find out what the consensus opinion is in the field. 



		Clinical:

				Diagnosis at admission		Pre GEI Eval?  Judgment Order?  First OSH admission post DOJ?

				Diagnosis at EOJ		May be an approximation for lapsing clients.  How old is too old?

				IQ		Which one?		If there are more than one, the last test date would likely be the most accurate - unless patient suffered a brain injury or dementia before they were released.  I'm not even sure this variable is worth gathering.



		Offense History:				Will need to be Oregon ONLY for everyone		OK.  This will have to be addressed as a limitation of the study.

				Index Violence (BM 11)

				Index Non-violence (non-BM 11)

				# of prior convictions for violent offenses		What about post GEI EOJ?

				# of prior convictions for non-violent offenses		What about post GEI EOJ?

				Any sex offense		Yes/No or dates?		Yes/No

				# of "dismissed" charges		What about post GEI EOJ?

				# of "no disposition" charges		What about post GEI EOJ?



		Conditional Release Factors:

				In OSH or on CR at discharge

				Age at CR		Which one?		Last one.  Presumably we are interested in data that is closest in time to the recidivism.

				Level of care at first release		What about last?		Agreed.  I think it should be LOC at time of discharge from jurisdiction.

				Level of care at recidivism		No way to know this.

				History of revocations		Yes/No?  How many?  Dates?		Yes/No and number of supervision failures





		Misc:

				Early discharge reason		Died under supervision will not be studied in detail.
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Juliet Britton, J.D.
Executive Director, Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205
(503) 229-5596 (office)
(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)
Website: http://www.oregon.gov/PRB/pages/index.aspx


PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS: juliet.britton@oregon.gov







From: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: Recidivism Research Paper

Date: Tuesday, October 17, 2017 5:48:56 PM
Attachments: Current Variables.xlsx

Good Evening,

Attached is the current list of proposed variables for the study. I've incorporated the feedback on
potential data points received this summer from you (Juliet), Elena, and Will.

Before staff begin the exhaustive process of reviewing white files to locate this information, | would
like this to be a final list of variables, so that we don’t have to go through any client file more than
once.

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

9 removed due to death under supervision or no available computerized criminal history from OSP
(probably means the client has died)

15 reoffended (new GEl, arrest, or conviction)

30% re-offense rate

If additional individuals are removed from the study, (due, for example, to still being under Board
jurisdiction on a different set of crimes continuously since their “qualifying” discharge) re-offense
rate would go up as the functional “n” goes down. There are at least two additional clients that will
be removed from the study for the reason given in my example, but | have not yet analyzed
everyone in all three study years, so none of that data is included in the current numbers.

Shelley Banfe
Research Analyst
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
Subject: RE: Subsection (2) of ORS 161.351
Date: Wednesday, September 20, 2017 4:04:11 PM

Hope all is well!

~e

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
Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2017 4:03 PM
To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: Subsection (2) of ORS 161.351

Thanks

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2017 1:09 PM

To: Joseph Bloom

Subject: Subsection (2) of ORS 161.351

ORS 161.351

Discharge by agency

. o effect of remission
. e protection of society
Text News Annotations Related Statutes

(1)Any person placed under the
jurisdiction of the Psychiatric Security Review Board or the Oregon Health Authority under
ORS 161.315 (Right of state to obtain mental examination of

defendant) to 161.351 (Discharge by agency) shall be discharged at such time as the agency

having jurisdiction over the person, upon a hearing, finds by a preponderance of the evidence
that the person is no longer affected by mental disease or defect or, if so affected, no longer

presents a substantial danger to others that requires regular medical care, medication,


https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/161.351#text
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/161.351#annotations
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/161.351#related-statutes
mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu
http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/161.315
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/161.315
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/161.351

supervision or treatment.

(2)For purposes of ORS 161.315 (Right of state to obtain mental examination of
defendant) to 161.351 (Discharge by agency), a person affected by a mental disease or defect

in a state of remission is considered to have a mental disease or defect. A person whose mental
disease or defect may, with reasonable medical probability, occasionally become active and
when it becomes active will render the person a danger to others may not be discharged. The
person shall continue under supervision and treatment necessary to protect the person and

others.

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

On Sep 20, 2017, at 1:03 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj@ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet

Can you tell me again what section of the ORS | can find the section that says...."a disease
in remission is still a disease"

Have trouble finding it

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 10:23 AM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

Hi

| don't have a list but will try to find minutes once the meeting occurs. I'm not in the
office to attach it to this email but we have a legislative summary on our website
below- the big news/ we dropped the offensive 'defect' from our statutory language
but made clear it doesn't change definition.

Talk to you soon,
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

On Sep 13, 2017, at 10:18 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj@ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet,

great to hear from you. And thanks for sending this along. | did not see a list
of the members of the workgroup, only their agenda for the first meeting. If
you have a list can you send it along.

On another topic. did | hear that the State Hospital Review Board has made
its way into history? If so, that is a good step forward. I think they started
in 2012 or so and had a short run.

Any other new statutes? Has anything new happened with the Department
of Justice and OSH?

Been working away with some psych residents here on Az mental health law
including the AzPSRB.. all very interesting.

Remember we want to take a look at the Court of Appeals cases for this past
year when we get to January 18. And David Novosad's work should continue
with more follow-up. | remember we planned something out but can't
remember the details.

thanks again

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 9:39 AM

To: Joseph Bloom; Wil Berry
Subject: Fwd: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00
am Room 350

Good Morning Joe and Wil,

| just found out that a workgroup has been created. I'm not involved in
this workgroup but will be curious to follow the outcome.

Our article was attached to the materials for their first meeting which |
thought you would be interested to know. There is also an article
attached with a description of the PSRB's newest client- mom had tried to
civilly commit her son before the offense.


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu
mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov

Hope all is well with you. Hoping to touch base soon about our PSRB
recidivism paper.

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

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Logan Micky F" <micky.f.logan@state.or.us>

To: "BRITTON Juliet * PSRB" <Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov>
Subject: FW: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday,
September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

From: Lochner Sarah J

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2017 11:26 AM

To: TOLAN Arthur <Arthur. TOLAN@dhsoha.state.or.us>;
Morris Michael N
<MICHAEL.N.MORRIS@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Cc: Logan Micky F <MICKY.F.LOGAN@dhsoha.state.or.us>
Subject: FW: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday,
September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

Here is your research.

Best regards,

Sarah Lochner

Legislative Coordinator
OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
External Relations

Cell: 503-269-8694
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From: Newell Channa
[mailto:Channa.Newell@oregonlegislature.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2017 11:13 AM

To: Pat. Wolke@ojd.state.or.us; Sen Prozanski
<Sen.FloydProzanski@oregonlegislature.gov>

Cc: KNOTT Aaron D <Aaron.D.KNOTT@doj.state.or.us>;
NEWELL Channa <Channa.Newell@state.or.us>; Nasbe Josh
<Josh.Nasbe@oregonlegislature.gov>

Subject: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday,
September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

Good morning,

We're looking forward to the first meeting of the civil
commitment work group on Monday September 18, 11:00
am in the Oregon Capitol, 900 Court Street NE, Salem, OR.
Please note that we have changed our room to Room 350 to
accommodate a larger group. Room 350 is in the central

3rd

portion of the building on the 3" floor. Please feel free to

bring your lunch.

If you are planning to participate via phone, the dial in
information is:

TOLL-FREE: 888-278-0296
Meeting Number: 7049786

Attached, please find a draft agenda, news reports
illustrating the issue, and materials on the current civil
commitment standard and assisted outpatient treatment.
Please let me know if you would like a printed copy of the
materials, or if you have any comments or questions.

Thanks,

--Channa

Channa Newell | Committee Counsel

Legislative Policy and Research Office
Oregon State Capitol

900 Court St NE Rm. 332

Salem, OR 97301

503-986-1525
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To:

Joseph Bloom

Subject: Subsection (2) of ORS 161.351
Date: Wednesday, September 20, 2017 1:09:06 PM
ORS161.351

Dischar ge by agency

« effect of remission

* protection of society

Text News Annotations Related Statutes

(2)

(1) Any person placed under the
jurisdiction of the Psychiatric Security Review Board or the Oregon Health Authority
under ORS 161.315 (Right of state to obtain mental examination of
defendant) to 161.351 (Dischar ge by agency) shall be discharged at such time asthe
agency having jurisdiction over the person, upon a hearing, finds by a preponderance of
the evidence that the person is no longer affected by mental disease or defect or, if so
affected, no longer presents a substantial danger to others that requires regular medical

care, medication, supervision or treatment.

For purposes of ORS 161.315 (Right of stateto obtain mental examination of
defendant) to 161.351 (Dischar ge by agency), a person affected by a mental disease or
defect in astate of remission is considered to have amental disease or defect. A person
whose mental disease or defect may, with reasonable medical probability, occasionally
become active and when it becomes active will render the person a danger to others may
not be discharged. The person shall continue under supervision and treatment necessary

to protect the person and others.

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
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On Sep 20, 2017, at 1:03 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet

Can you tell me again what section of the ORS | can find the section that says...."a disease
in remission is still a disease”

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

| don't have alist but will try to find minutes once the meeting occurs. I'm not in
the office to attach it to thisemail but we have alegislative summary on our
website below- the big news/ we dropped the offensive 'defect’ from our statutory
language but made clear it doesn't change definition.

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

On Sep 13, 2017, at 10:18 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloom] @ohsu.edu> wrote:

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
its way into history? If so, that is a good step forward. 1 think they started
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

| just found out that a workgroup has been created. I'm not involved
in this workgroup but will be curious to follow the outcome.

Our article was attached to the materials for their first meeting which
| thought you would be interested to know. Thereisalso an article
attached with a description of the PSRB's newest client- mom had
tried to civilly commit her son before the offense.

Hope al iswell with you. Hoping to touch base soon about our PSRB
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

From: "Logan Micky F' <micky.f.logan@state.or.us>
To: "BRITTON Juliet * PSRB"

<Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov>
Subject: FW: Civil Commitment Work Group--
Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room 350
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

To: Pat.Wolke@ojd.state.or.us; Sen Prozanski
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

3I’d

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

House Committee on Judiciary
Senate Committee on Judiciary
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From:
To:

BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
Joseph Bloom

Subject: Re: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

Date:

Wednesday, September 13, 2017 10:42:38 AM

Mental Disorder . It was tough to get everyone on Board.

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

On Sep 13, 2017, at 10:33 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

OK, thanks.....will look on the web-site and see what word you put in to replace defect....|
weighed in on that discussion and it was not easy.

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

On Sep 13, 2017, at 10:18 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

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

Hope all iswell with you. Hoping to touch base soon about our PSRB
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
Sent: Tuesday, September 12,2017 11:13 AM

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
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 10:23:08 AM

Hi

| don't have alist but will try to find minutes once the meeting occurs. I'm not in the office to
attach it to this email but we have alegislative summary on our website bel ow- the big news/
we dropped the offensive 'defect’ from our statutory language but made clear it doesn't change
definition.

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

great to hear from you. And thanks for sending this along. | did not see a list of the
members of the workgroup, only their agenda for the first meeting. If you have a list can
you send it along.

On another topic. did | hear that the State Hospital Review Board has made its way into
history? If so, that is a good step forward. | think they started in 2012 or so and had a
short run.

Any other new statutes? Has anything new happened with the Department of Justice and
OSH?

Been working away with some psych residents here on Az mental health law including the
AzPSRB.. all very interesting.

Remember we want to take a look at the Court of Appeals cases for this past year when we
get to January 18. And David Novosad's work should continue with more follow-up. |
remember we planned something out but can't remember the details.

thanks again

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 9:39 AM
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To: Joseph Bloom; Wil Berry
Subject: Fwd: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room
350

Good Morning Joe and Wil,

| just found out that a workgroup has been created. I'm not involved in this
workgroup but will be curious to follow the outcome.

Our article was attached to the materials for their first meeting which | thought
you would beinterested to know. Thereisalso an article attached with a
description of the PSRB's newest client- mom had tried to civilly commit her son
before the offense.

Hope all iswell with you. Hoping to touch base soon about our PSRB recidivism
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
To: "BRITTON Juliet * PSRB" <Juliet.Britton@aoregon.gov>

Subject: FW: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday,
September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

From: Lochner Sarah J

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2017 11:26 AM

To: TOLAN Arthur <Arthur. TOLAN@dhsoha.state.or.us>; Morris Michael N
<MICHAEL.N.MORRIS@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Cc: Logan Micky F <MICKY.F.LOGAN@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Subject: FW: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18,
11:00 am Room 350
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Here is your research.

Best regards,

Sarah Lochner

Legislative Coordinator
OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
External Relations

Cell: 503-269-8694

From: Newell Channa [mailto:Channa.Newell@oregonlegislature.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2017 11:13 AM

To: Pat.Wolke@ojd.state.or.us; Sen Prozanski
<Sen.FloydProzanski@oregonlegislature.gov>

Cc: KNOTT Aaron D <Aaron.D.KNOTT@doj.state.or.us>; NEWELL Channa
<Channa.Newell@state.or.us>; Nasbe Josh
<Josh.Nasbe@oregonlegislature.gov>

Subject: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00
am Room 350

Good morning,

We're looking forward to the first meeting of the civil commitment work
group on Monday September 18, 11:00 am in the Oregon Capitol, 900

Court Street NE, Salem, OR. Please note that we have changed our room
to Room 350 to accommodate a larger group. Room 350 is in the central

3rd

portion of the building on the 3’ floor. Please feel free to bring your

lunch.
If you are planning to participate via phone, the dial in information is:

TOLL-FREE: 888-278-0296
Meeting Number: 7049786

Attached, please find a draft agenda, news reports illustrating the issue,
and materials on the current civil commitment standard and assisted
outpatient treatment. Please let me know if you would like a printed copy
of the materials, or if you have any comments or questions.

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

House Committee on udiciary
Senate Committee on Judiciary
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom; Wil Berry

Subject: Fwd: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room 350
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 9:39:16 AM

Attachments: aot-and-violence.pdf

ATT00001.htm

aot-one-pager.pdf

ATT00002.htm

Civil Commitment Work Group Agenda 09 18 2017.docx
ATT00003.htm

Dr Bloom Article The Oregon Court of Appeals and the State Civil Commitment Statute.pdf
ATT00004.htm

Karen Batts" Lonely Strugale.pdf

ATT00005.htm

Mother of Ashland murderer tried to have him committed.pdf
ATT00006.htm

U.S. Number of Mentally 1l in Prisons Quadrupled.pdf
ATT00007.htm

Good Morning Joe and Wil,

| just found out that a workgroup has been created. I'm not involved in this workgroup but will
be curious to follow the outcome.

Our article was attached to the materials for their first meeting which | thought you would be
interested to know. Thereisalso an article attached with a description of the PSRB's newest
client- mom had tried to civilly commit her son before the offense.

Hope al iswell with you. Hoping to touch base soon about our PSRB recidivism paper.

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
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The Role of Assisted Outpatient Treatment in Reducing Violence

SUMMARY

Violent behavior by individuals with untreated serious mental illness is a source of significant and growing
public and policy concern. Most people with disorders such as schizophrenia and bipolar disorder are not
violent, and most violent acts are not committed by individuals with psychiatric disease. Nonetheless, serious
mental illness, primarily when untreated, is a well-documented risk factor for violence, including suicide,
homicide and mass homicide. To reduce the risk of violence and the high-profile tragedies and stigma
associated with it, the search to identify interventions that improve outcomes for the most severe and
persistent mental illnesses and, specifically, to reduce the risk of violence has intensified in recent years.

Assisted outpatient treatment (AOT) is one such intervention. AOT is the practice of delivering outpatient
treatment under court order to adults with severe mental iliness who meet specific criteria, such as a prior
history of repeated hospitalizations or arrest. In the process, the treatment system is committed to the patient
at the same time the patient is committed to treatment. The Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
has deemed AOT to be an evidence-based practice for reducing crime and violence, and the International
Association of Chiefs of Police and National Sheriffs’ Association have endorsed its use. Also known as
“involuntary outpatient commitment,” “mandated outpatient treatment” and by other terms, AOT is
authorized by statute in 46 states and the District of Columbia.

EVIDENCE-BASED PRACTICE

The role of AOT in reducing violence associated with untreated mental iliness has been the subject of study
since the 1990s. Findings include the following.

e AOT resulted in a 36% decrease in violent behavior after one year.

In North Carolina, 262 individuals “with psychotic or major mood disorders” were randomly assigned
to AOT or to outpatient care without a court order. Violent behavior defined as fights involving
physical contact, physical assault or a threat of assault with a weapon was assessed every four months.
For participants engaged in AOT at least 12 months, “the results were striking. The extended [AOT]
group had a significantly lower incidence of violence during the year: 26.7% v. 41.6% . .. p=0.025.”

Swanson, J.W., Swartz, M.S., Borum, R., Hiday, V.A., Wagner, H.R., Burns, B.J. (2000). Involuntary out-patient
commitment and reduction of violent behavior in persons with severe mental illness. British Journal of Psychiatry,
176, 224—231.

e AOT resulted in a 47% decrease in violent behavior (physically harming others) after six months.





The Role of Assisted Outpatient Treatment in Reducing Violence

In New York, outcomes involving 2,745 individuals who participated in AOT (known in New York as
“Kendra’s Law”) between 1999 and 2004 were analyzed. Among participants, 84% were diagnosed
with schizophrenia or bipolar disorder, and 52% had a co-occurring substance abuse disorder. The
following data were reported for the six-month period before receiving AOT and the first 6-month
period participating in court-ordered outpatient treatment.

Before AOT During AOT Reduction in
(6 months) (6 months) violent behavior
Physically harming others 15% 8% 47%
Threatening physical harm 28% 16% 43%
Damaging or destroying property 13% 7% 46%

“Kendra’s Law: Final Report on the Status of Assisted Outpatient Treatment.” New York State Office of Mental
Health, March, 2005.

AOT resulted in a 66% decrease in “serious violent behavior” after 1 year.

In New York, 76 New York City AOT patients were compared with a control group of 108 patients
recently discharged from psychiatric hospitalization who were enrolled in the same clinics but did not
meet criteria for Kendra’s Law. Schizophrenia, schizoaffective disorder or bipolar disorder was the
diagnosis for 84% of the AOT group and 90% of the non-AOT group. All individuals were assessed every
three months for whether they had “kicked, beaten or choked anyone; hit anyone with a fist or beaten
up anyone; tried to physically force anyone to have sex against his or her will; threatened anyone with
a knife, gun or other weapon; or fired a gun at someone or used a knife or a weapon on him or her.”
Despite being more violent than the control group historically, the AOT/Kendra’s Law participants
were four times less likely than control group patients to commit acts of serious violence while
engaged in AOT.

Phelan, J.C., Sinkewicz, M., Castille, D.M., Huz, S., Muenzenmaier, K., Link, B.G. (2010). Effectiveness and outcomes
of assisted outpatient treatment in New York State. Psychiatric Services, 61, 137—143.

AOT reduced the chances of being arrested for a violent offense by 88%.

In New York, arrest records were analyzed for 86 AOT participants, including five years prior to being
placed on AOT and up to three years after being placed on AOT. Within the group, 75% were
diagnosed with psychotic disorders. The records were searched for arrests for violent offenses
including “murder, non-negligent manslaughter, forcible rape, robbery and aggravated assault.” The
risk of arrest for a violent offense was found to be 8.6 times higher in the prior to AOT participation
than during the period of AOT involvement and the six months following discharge from the program.

Link, B.G., Epperson, M.W., Perron, B.E., Castille, D.M., Yang, L.H. (2011). Arrest outcome associated with outpatient
commitment in New York State. Psychiatric Services, 62, 504—508.

Conditional release resulted in an 80% decrease in violent behavior after two years.

Conditional release is similar to AOT except that legal authority to re-hospitalize the patient is vested
in the director of the state psychiatric hospital, not the court. Thus patients on conditional release can
2|Page
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The Role of Assisted Outpatient Treatment in Reducing Violence

remain in the community only as long as they follow their treatment plans. In New Hampshire, 26
patients—all previously hospitalized for self-harm or harm to others and “certified as severely and
persistently mentally ill”—were released conditionally and followed for two years. Episodes of violence
were coded on a seven-point scale and rated monthly for the first two years on conditional release,
then compared with episodes of violence for the one year prior to their hospitalization. Compared
with the year prior to hospitalization, violent behavior was reduced by 57% (5.6 to 2.4) in the first year
and 80% (5.6 to 1.1) in the second year on conditional release.

O’Keefe, C.D., Potenza, D.P., Mueser, K.T. (1997). Treatment outcomes for severely mentally ill patients
conditionally discharged to community based treatment. Journal of Nervous and Mental Diseases, 185, 409—411.
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What is AOT?

Assisted outpatient treatment (AOT) is the practice of delivering outpatient
treatment under court order to adults with severe mental illness who meet

TREATMENT
IN-WIXINED specific criteria, such as a prior history of repeated hospitalizations or

CENTER

arrest. It is a tool for assisting those individuals most at risk for the negative
consequences of not receiving treatment.

THOSE MOST IN NEED: AOT laws have been shown to AOT REDUCES ARRESTS & VIOLENCE
reduce hospitalization, arrest and incarceration, homeless-

ness and violent acts associated with mental illness. Due to 44(y ) )
O decrease in harmful behaviors

strict legal criteria, AOT participants typically represent far

less than .05% of a state’s population. Yet, on any given day,
they are the people most at risk to be in a hospital, ER, on 0 2/3 reduction in risk of arrest
the streets or behind bars. in any given month
AOT RECIPIENT CHARACTERISTICS:' 0 4X less likely to perpetrate

* Majority have schizophrenia or severe bipolar disorder serious violence

® 97% percent had been hospitalized previously
® 47% had co-occurring substance abuse disorder 0 1 /2 as likely to be victimized
e 47% did not adhere to needed medication regiment

before AOT AOT SAVES MONEY
THE REVOLVING DOOR'S COSTS: Each psychiatric read-

v
mission costs on average $7,5002, and non-adherence is the 500/ o
number one risk factor for it.3 Mental illnesses account for 0 cost savings in New York

nearly 20% of all Medicaid readmissions.* Medicaid patients w
had more than 75,000 mental health re-admissions within 400/ cost savings
30 days in one year.> Nearly 25% of Medicare patients with ﬁ O in North Carolina
psychoses were readmitted within one month of discharge.® v
40(y cost savings
SAVING LIVES AND COSTS: By creating a partnership ﬁ O in Summit County, Ohio
between the individual and the mental health system, AOT v
greatly increases medication adherence, reduces costs from é $1 81 saved for ever dollar spent
hospial readmission’ and other revolving-door circumstances . in Nevada County, California

and promotes mental health recovery in qualifying individuals.

AOT WORKS: Of participants in New York’'s AOT BROAD SUPPORT FOR AOT

program, called Kendra's Law: ) o ) i
e |nternational Association of Chiefs of Police

o 7 7 0/ o 740/ e National Sheriffs’ Association
O O e Department of Justice

fewer experienced fewer experienced e American Psychiatric Association
ﬁsychlatnc homelessness
ospitalization

n53% m87%

fewer experienced fewer experienced
arrest incarceration





-

New York State Office of Mental Health: Kendra's Law: Final Report on the
Status of Assisted Outpatient Treatment, 2005.
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Civil Commitment Work Group

Oregon Capitol, Room 350

Monday, August 18th 11:00 am

TOLL-FREE:               888-278-0296

Meeting Number:        7049786          
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										End Time

I. Welcome 								11:05 am 

Senator Prozanski & Judge Wolke 

II. Introductions							11:20 am 

Group

III. Review of the Problem 						12:00 pm 

Judge Wolke, Sheriff Myers, Aaron Knott, Sarah Lochner, Dr Lopez, Bob Joondeph

IV. Three major issues for attention					12:45 pm 

Judge Wolke, Group

a. Civil commitment standard

b. Assisted outpatient treatment

c. Aid and assist

V. Outline for continued work and future meetings			12:55 pm 

Judge Wolke, Staff

VI. Adjourn 								1:00 pm 
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The Oregon Court of Appeals and the

State Civil

_ommitment Statute

Joseph D. Bloom, MD, juliet Britton, JD, and Wil Berry, MD

tn 1973 the Oregon Legislature passed a major revision of its civil commitment law adopting changes that mirrored
those taking place across the United States. The new sections offered significant protections of the rights of
individuals who are alleged to have mental iHlness, a limitation on the tength of commitment, the adoption of both
dangerousness and gravely disabled type commitment criteria and the adoption of “beyond a reasonable doubt”
as the standard of proof for commitment hearings, From 1973 to the present time, the Oregon Court of Appeals
adjudicated a farge number of appeals emanating from civil commitment courts. This article is based on a review
of 98 written Oregon Court of Appeals commitment decisions from the years 1998 through 2015 and is
accompanied by a review of legislative intent in {973, It appears that the court of appeals has significantly altered
the 1973 legislative changes by moving the dangerousness criteria to imminence and the gravely disabled criteria
to a focus on survival. Empirically, civil commitment has dramatically decreased in Oregon over a 40-year pericd
and the case law, as developed by Oregon Court of Appeals, has had a significant contributing role in this reduction.

J Am Acad Psychiatry Law 45:52-61, 2017

The treacment of individuals wich mental illness in
state insticutions became a major civil rights topic in
the 1960s. This debate was soon followed by major
court decisions leading to statutory changes and a
significant shift in civil commitment law nationally.'
As society erumpeted personal righes, courts began
emphasizing individual liberty and reinforcing con-
stitutional rights to due process and equal protection.
In this conrext, states began turning from a commit-
ment standard of need for treatment to the narrower
dangerousness to self or others.” In 1964, Washing-
ton, DC was first to adopt a dangerousness seandard.
Five years later, California passed the Lanterman-
Petris-Short Act,” which rescricted commirment to
those who were dangerous to themselves or others or
so gravely disabled that they could not meet their
needs for survival.

In the traditional parens patrige rationale for com-
mitment, fewer due process protections were re-

Dr. Bloom is Clinical Professor of Psychiatry, University of Arizona
College of Medicine, Phoenix, AZ. Ms. Britton is Dirccror, Oregon
Psychiatric Security Review Board, Portland, OR; Dr. Berry is Staff
Psychiatrist, Deschutes County Behavioral Health, Bend, OR. Ad-
dress correspondence to: Joseph DL Bloom, MD, Deparunent of Psy-
chiatry, Oregen Healih and Science University, 3181 S.W. Sam Jack-
sont Park Road. Portland, OR 97239, E-maik bloomj@ohsu.edu.

Disclosures of financial or other potential conflicts of interest: None,
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quired because a major goal of the state was treat-
ment. In the 1972 Lessard v. Schmidt® decision, a
federal district court found Wisconsin’s need-for-
freatment commitment statute unconstitutional and
narrowed the standard to “there is an extreme fikeli-
hood that if the person is not confined he will do
immediate harm to himself or others.” The three-
judge panel made 2 striking departure, argning thar
restrictions to liberty faced by a committed patient
are worse than for a felon and thus “interests in
avoiding civil commitment are at least as high as
those of persons accused of criminal offenses,” with
the state having to prove mental illness and danger-
ousniess beyond a reasonable doubt.

In 19735, the U.S. Supreme Court in (' Connor .
Donaldson® ruled that “a State cannot constitution-
ally confine without more, a nondangerous individ-
ual.” Although the unanimous court specifically
stated that “there is no reason now to decide whether
the State may confine a nondangerous, menally ifl
individual for the purpose of treatment,” the ambig-
uous “without more” accelerated the national shift in
these cases toward “dangerousness” rather than need
for treatment as the guiding principle for commit-
ment of nondangerous persons.®

The Journal of the American Academy of Psychiatry and the Law






Bloom, Britton, and Berry

Civil Commitment in Oregon

The Oregon Legislature enacted its firse civil com-
mitment statute in 1862.7 In 1973, in line with na-
tional trends, Oregon made significant changes in its
commirment statute adopting many patient rights,
including the adoption of “beyond a reasonable
doubrt” as the evidence standard for commitment
hearings. In 1979, just after the Supreme Court de-
cision in Addington v. Texas,”? the Oregon Legislature
changed the standard to “clear and convincing
evidence.”

The 1973 statutory provisions contained the fol-
lowing definition of “mental illness™: “Person with
mental illness means a person who because of a men-
tal disorder is one or more of the following: (A) dan-
gerous to seff or others; (B) unable to provide for
basic personal needs and is not receiving such care as
is necessary for health or safery.”

Since 1973, two additional commitment criteria
were added to the Oregon statute, one focused on
persons meeting a statutory definition of “chronic
mental illness,”'” whereas a new category of civil
commitment legislated in 2013 is based on a defini-
rion of an “extremely dangerous person.”!! Commit-
ments based on the chronic mental iliness criteria will
figure prominently in this review (see below),
whereas to date, there are no appellate decisions re-
garding “extremely dangerous persons.”

In testimony before the Oregon Legislature, two
documents stand out as providing the then-
prevailing view of the proposed statutory changes.
Both documents were submitted in testimony to the
Senate Committee on the Judiciary on April 4, 1973.
The first document was a memo written by Dr. J. D.
Bray,'2 administrator of the Mental Health Divi-
sion, while the second was a report from Dr. D. K.
Brooks, ' Superintendent of the Oregon State Hos-
pital and Chair of a multidisciplinary task force on
Oregon commitment laws. These documents pro-
vide a contemporaneous view of the 1973 statutory
changes.

Bray reviewed the proposed amendments and em-
phasized that a new community mental health initia-
tive entitled “alternatives to state hospitalization”
would decrease the number of individuals commie-
ted to state hospitals. He viewed the dangerousness
crireria as in line with other new state statutes and
commented on the basic-personal-needs criterion
as foliows: “Inclusion of the latrer concepr allows

cotnmitment of some persons, primarily the el-

derly and those associated with chronic psychosis,

out of contact with reality, or unable to make de-

cisions about their basic nceds because of their
T 2

mental condition.”

This comment was cited later by the court of ap-
peals as evidence that the legislative intent of the
basic-needs criteria was meant to be limited.

P . .

Brooks'? offered the Senate Judiciary Committee
more specific commentary about the two-fold legis-
lative definition of “mental illness.” He stated thar
nearly half of the states had adopted similar danger-
ousness criteria. He offered the following abour the
basic-needs criterion:

(b} This alternative standard for commitment is basically
taken from 1972 changes in the commitment laws in Penn-
sylvania, Situations covered under this definition are where
a persor: nay not be “dangerous” at all, but is in such a
mental condition that he either cannot or wifl not provide
for “basic personal needs”™ necessasy for his own health and
safety.

The requirement in {b) that the person not be receiving
such care is to eliminate from the definiticn those persons
who may be unable themselves to supply their basic aceds,
but who are in fact being properly cared for by others,
whether relative, a nursing home, ete.

Both Bray and Brooks emphasized the importance
of the patient rights sections of the proposed legisia-
tion and made it clear that the definition of “mental
illness” for the purposes of civil commitment did not
apply to individuals who were seeking voluntary hos-
pital admission. Other members of the task force
submitted testimony that supported the bifl. The
task force endorsed beyond a reasonable doubr as the
legal standard for commitment hearings.

The Oregon Court of Appeals

The Oregon Court of Appeals was eseablished in
1969 as Oregon’s intermediate appellate court and
has been described as one of the busiest appellate
courts in the country. For example, from 2003 to
2008, an average of 3451 appeals per year were re-
ferred to the court of appeals of which 101 were
appeals related to “mental commitments.”'*!?

The work of the court of appeals traditionally took
place in three-judge panels. The 2009 Oregon Leg-
islature allowed'® the court to decide cases in two-
judge panels, with the opinion of the third judge
breaking ties. The bill also allowed the court discre-
tion in deciding whether to review appeals de nove or
to accept the wial courts record and base their deci-
sions solely on matters of faw. In 2010, the National
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The Evolution of Oregon’s Civit Commitment Statute

Center for State Courts conducted a caseload scudy'”
that demonstrated thar the court needed additional
staff and a minimum of three additional judges, just
to keep their current workload flowing. The 2013
Legislature increased the number of judges on the
court from 10 to 13.

With the exception of one case, State v. O'Neil 18
in which the Oregon Supreme Court reviewed a
1974 court of appeals decision and upheld the con-
stitutionality of the 1973 legislative changes, all com-
mitment case faw has come from the court of appeals.
“This article focuses on a review of this case law to the
present time by examining themes that emerge from
the review and by discussing how these themes may
have influenced civil commirment in the state of
Oregon.

Method

We identified and reviewed 98 civil commit-
ment decisions reported on the Oregon Court of
Appeals website from 1998 to 2015. For each case,
we recorded the year of the decision, the case num-
ber, the county of origin of the case, the name of
the crial court judge, the name of the individual
who filed and argued the case for the appellant, the
names of the court of appeals judges who partici-
pated in the review, the court of appeals decision,
the main focus of the case and the reasoning for the
decision, {The list of cases reviewed is available
from the authors.}

Results

The 98 reported cases came from 17 Oregon
counties. Many (37; 38%}, come from Multnomah
County, the site of Oregon’s largest city, Portland.
Other populous counties, Washington and Lane,
each accounted for close to 10 percent of the sample.
Umatilla County, the site of a former large state hos-
pital also accounted for 10 percent of the sample.
Some of Oregon’s less populous counties such as
Wasco, Douglas, and Coos were also the subject of
court of appeals decisions.

The number of cases per year was [airly evenly
divided, except for 12 decisions in 2002 and 15 in
2014. The 15 cases from 2014 included 11 in which
the State of Oregon’s Attorney General conceded to
the essential correctness of the appellant’s arguments
in the appeal. The 11 cases in 2014 were by far the

largest number of conceded cases in any year of the
study.

The court of appeals reviewed 46 wrial court
judges, some multiple times. The largest number of
reviews, 29, focused on two Multnomah Councy
judges, of which 19 reviews resulted in reversals of
their decisions.

Alchough each case lists the name of an individual
who filed the brief for the appellant, the work setting
of these individuals was nor identified. However, in
the past few years and in some appeals, the Mult-
nomah Public Defender Agency was listed along
with an individual. These are appeals that come from
counties not under the jurisdiction of this particular
defender agency.

During the study period, 27 different courr of ap-
peals’ judges participated in the decisions. There
were three court of appeals judges who participated
in 26-33 panels, whereas another two participated in
15-16 panels. During the study period there were
four decisions involving the entire court of ap-
pea[s.w_zz Including these four en banc rulings, the
court of appeals reversed 74 (76%) of the trial court
determinations, 24 in the cases in which the stace
conceded to the appellant, and 50 in other cases
where the state defended the trial court decisions.
The court of appeals affirmed 24 (24%) of the trial
court decisions.

Aside from the 24 conceded cases, and before
2009, most appeals were reviewed de novo. Most of
these reviews cited as precedent the 1976 case of Staze
v. (P Neill (see above). After 2009, the number of
de novo reviews decreased and the court of appeals
made its determinations based on whether the crial
judge adhered o the law, as determined by statute
and prior court of appeals decisions.

The 98 civil commitment appeals broke down
into two main areas of concern. Thirty-seven appeals
focused on the question of appellane rights. Of these,
24 concerned a subsection of ORS 426.100(2){(a—¢),
entitled “Advice of Court,” requiring thart at the time
of the commitment hearing the trial court: *. . . shall
advise the person alleged to have a mental iliness:
the reason he or she is brought before the court; the
nature and possible results of the proceedings; the right
to subpoena witnesses and the right to be represented by
counsel,”

The other significant area of court of appeals re-
view focused on the decision that a trial court judge
must make to civilly commit a person alleged to have
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mental illness. Most of the appeals in this review
stipulated o the fact that the appellant had a mental
disorder. The question on appeal thus became
whether the trial record demonstrated “clear and
convincing evidence” (the evidence standard since
1979, see below), along with the particular concern
of danger to others (13 appeals), danger to self (16
appeals), and the basic-needs criteria (29 appeals).
In these decisions the court of appeals often began
the decision with a statement about the importance
of the civil commitment decision for the person al-
leged to have mental illness. An example comes from
one of the four en banc decisions:
As we have observed, a civil commitment has serious con-
sequences. See, c.g., State v DURL, 244 P.3d 916, 920 (Or.
Cr, App. 2010} "a serious deprivation of libesty and social
stigma ate attendant te a civil commitment” (State v. G.L.,
243 P.3d 469, 475 (Or. Cr. 2010) {civil commitment “de-
prives a person of his or her constiutionally protecred fib-
erty itterest, and carries deleterious coltateral effects, in-
cluding social stigma which affects the person’s repuration
and earning potensgal” (internal citations and quoration
matks omitted)). The purpose of Or. Rev. St
§ 426.100{1) is ro ensure that, before an allegedly men-
tally ill person sullers those consequences, he or she re-
ceives “the benefit of a [ull and fair hearing”. State v.
Alfisan, 877 P.2d 660, 661 (Or. Cr. App. 1994).
This viewpoint forms the backdrop of the court of
appeals approach to civil commitment.

Clear and Convincing Evidence

Many of the court’s decisions were based on its
definition of clear and convincing evidence. As pre-
viously mentioned, the 1973 Oregon statute adopted
“beyond a reasonable doubt” as the required stan-
dard for commitment hearings. Experience with this
standatd of proof resulted in a great deal of contro-
versy. In 1979, while the U.S. Supreme Court was
considering Addington v. Texas,® the legislature con-
sidered lowering the burden to “clear and convinc-
ing” evidence. Testimony on HB2438, the proposed
statutory change, was divided.** The Oregon Psychi-
atric Association, family members of patients, and
several mental health agencies supporied the biil. De-
fense attorneys and patient advocates argued thar the
bill “turned back the clock” to the time before the
1973 amendments expanded the rights of a person
alleged to have mental illness.

The Department of Human Services Mental
Healch Division supported the proposed burden of
proof change, citing two then-recent Oregon Court
of Appeals cases. [z the Matter ofHeinz,""S cofcurring
Judge Tanzer concluded:
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The standard of peoof beyond reasonable doubt, borrowed
from criminal procedure, is inappropriate in a mentat hear-
ing where the issue is the depree of probabilicy of furure
possibilities rather than the existence of a past fact, Yet the
legislature has directed that we apply that standard and,
however difficult it may be to apply, we are bourd 10 and
will find ways to make it wotkable,

Later in fn the Matter of Fry,”® concurring Judge John-
son quoted Judge Tanzer and further concluded:

| concur with that statement except for the comment that
we “will find ways to make it ‘workable.” In this case, we
are confronted with persons who suffer from mensal illness
and in afl probability are = danger to themselves o1 1o others.
If we applied a preponderance of the evidence test, I am
certain that a majority of this court would agree with me
that the trial court’s order committing these individuals
should be affiemed. We are compelled w reverse because
the legislature in its wisdom requires that the state prove a
probability as to the future beyond a reasonable doube.

After the U.S. Supreme Court issued its opinion in
Addington, the Legislature changed the standard to
clear and convincing evidence. However, the Oregon
Court of Appeals viewed clear and convincing evi-
dence as presenting a high bar to commitment. For
example, in a 2008 appeal,”” citing State v. Allen™
and Szare v. Hambleron,* the court shed light on its
working definition of clear and convincing evidence
as crucial to the fundamental goal of civil commit-
ment. The court stated:

We reiterate here, as we often do in civil commitment cases,
that the clear and convincing evidence standard is a rigor-
ous one, requiring evidence that is of “extraordinary per-
suasiveness” making the fact in issue “highly probable”.
State v. Allen, 149 P.3d 289, 292 (Or. Cr. App. 2006); State
v, Hambleton, 123 P.3d 370, 374 (2005). That standard is
not “merely abstract or precatory. Rather {it is] the product
of a fundamental recognition of ‘the priotity of preserving
persenal liberties[.1"” Flambleton, 123 P.3d a1 374 {quoting
Staze v. Lor, 122 1.3d 97, 110 (Or, Cr App, 2005), rer.
denied, 132 P34 28 (Or. 2006) (Edmonds, P. J..
dissenting)).

Danger to Others

Our sample contained 13 appeals focused on dan-
ger 1 others. In the 2008 case cited above,*” the
court of appeals stated:

. a court assesses whether the evidence presented w it is
sutficient to prove that "a person is a danger to others as a
result of [her] “condition ar the time of the hearing as un-
derstond in the context of [herd history,”™ Stare v. Lawrvence,
144 P.3d 967, 969 (Or. Cu, App. 2006} (quoting Staee v,
King, 34 P.3d 739, 741 (Or. Ce. App. 2001}}, Specific acts
of viclence are not required 1o establish dangerousness. fd;
sec alse State v, Bodell, 853 P.2d 841, 842 (Or. Cr. App.
1993); Staee v. Pierert!, 823 P.2d 426, 428 (Or, Cr
App.1991), rev. deuied, 833 P.2d 1283 (Or. 1992). Rather,
past statemenrs that threaten violence or harm can justify a
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finding that a person is dangerous to others so long as those
statements. in context, clearly form the foundaton for a
prediction of future dangerousness. Lawrence, 144 P.3d at
96Y; see alio State v. D.RK, 171 P.3d 998, 999 (Or. Cr.
App. 2007). T'o form that foundation, we require tha ev-
idence of threats be accompanied by evidence of an overt
act directed toward fulfilling the threars, or evidence that
those threats are made under circumstances making future
harmful acs highly likely. D8 K, 171 P.3d ar 1000,

In a 2009 appeal®® the Court added to the above
formulation:

“. . .conclusions based on conjecture as to whether appel-
lane poses a danger to others are insufficienc,” Apprehen-
stons and speculation afone are not ecnough to fullill the
requirements of the statuce.™

Danger to Self

There were 16 decisions focused on danger to self.
One from 2010°? summarizes the court of appeals
view in this area.

To establish that a person is {dlangerous o self, the seate
must present cvidence that the person’s mental disorder
would cause him or her w engage in behavior chac s likely
1o resule in phiysical harm w himself or herself in the near
term. State v. Olsen, 145 P.3d 350, 352 (Or. Co. App.
2006}, That requires evidence that the person’s menral dis-
order has resulted in harm or created situations likely to
result in harm in the near fiwure, Idh (nrernal quoration
marks omirred). Additionally, our cases have established
that the threatened harm must, 2 niinimuam, involve actual
physical harm, id. at 333, and that the physical harm must
be serious, State v. North, 189 Or.App. 76 P.3d 685, 689
(Or. Cr. App. 2003). See also Judd, 135 P.3d at 401 (dis-
cussing standard for harm). Indeed, a number of our cases
have suggested thar the potential harm must be life-
threatening or involve some inherenly dangerous acriviy,
Tudd, £35 P.3d ar 400 (noting case law) (internal quosation
marks omitred). In a relared sense, we have explained thata
person can be deemed dangerous 1o sell if he or she has
established a pattern in the past of taking cercain actions
that lead o self-destructive conduce, and then he or she
begins to fuliow che pateesn again, State v, Roberts, 52 1.3
1123, 1125 (O, Ce. App. 2002). Consistendy with thae
understanding, although a person can be committed on the
danger 1o self basis beforc he oz she is on the brink of death,
the prospect of serious physical harm must be more than
merely speculative. Id. (internal quotation marks emicred),
Indeed, we have repeatedly admonished that “apprehen-
sions, specalations and coenjecture are not sufficient 1o
provea need for mental commiiment,” 1d. {quoring Staie v.
Ayala, 991 P.2d 1100, 1103 (Or. Cr. App. 1999)) {(brackets
omitted). See also Olsen, 145 P.3d ar 352 (quoting Rob-
erts, Ayals, and similar language from Stare v. Stanley, 843
P24 1018, 1020 (Or. Cr. App. 1992)). Such restraint com-
ports with the fundamenral principle that the power o
civilly commit a person must not be used as a “parernalisric
vehicle” to “save people from themselves.” Qlsen, 145 P.3d
at 353 (quoting State v. Powecll, 35 P.3d 1084, 1087 (Or.
Cr. App. 2001},

Basic Personal Needs

This area drew the highest number of appellate
decisions, 29 in our sample. The basic-needs criteria
are complicated, because the trial court judge must
make two distinct findings: fiest, that the person al-
leged to have mental illness is “unable to provide for
basic personal needs,” and second that the person “is
not recelving such care as is necessary for health and
safety.”

In a 2011 decision® the court of appeals goes to
great fength to outline its interpretation of the mean-
ing of the basic-needs criteria. The court began its
analysis by first addressing defining basic personal
needs:

“Basic needs are the things necessary for survival.” Suree v,
Shoretr, 95 P.3d 1146, 1151 {Or. Cr. App. 2004). They
include the needs for water, food, and life-saving medical
care. Stare v. A.M.-M., 238 P.3d 407. 410 (Or. Cr. App.
2010}, In ordes to commit a person on the ground that the
person is unable to provide for his or her basic needs, the
stage must prove, by clear and convincing evidence, that,
because of a mental disorder, the person is unable to secure
basic self-care, and, as a result, the person “probably would
not survive in the near future.” State v Buniing, 826 P.2d

1060, 1061 (Or. Cr. App. 1992).

A person's ability to provide for his or her basic needs is
assessed at the time of the commitment hearing “in the light
of existing, as opposed to future or potential, conditions.”
Statev. CAJ, 230213 1P.3d 1279, 1284 n, 5 (Or. Cr. App.
2009) (quoting State v. Headings, 914 P.2d 1129, 1131
(Or. Ct. App. 1996}). A “basic needs” commitncnt must
he based on “more than evidence of specalative threats w
safe survival.” AM.-A., 238 P.3d ar 410 (internal quota-
tion marks omiteed).

The court then goes on to present factual situations
from several of its earlier cases to illustrate their def-
inition of needs:

Because a basic needs commitment must be based on a
current. threat to a persan’s sale sutvival, we have held that
cvidence of homelessness is not, in and of itself, sufficient to
support 1 basic needs commitment, nor is evidence thur a
person has schizophrenia and has suffered discomfore or
minor injuries as a result of detusions, Stare v Baxrer, 906
P.2d 849 (Or. Ct. App. 1993), is illustrative,

In Baxter, the state presented evidence that the appellant,
who had schizophrenia, had failed to eake his prescribed
psychiateic medications and, as a result, had difficulty sleep-
ing, engaged in hostile behaviors, and abused drugs and
alcohol. In addition to the state’s ovidence, the appellan:
himself reported that, while homeless, he had soughr med-
ical caze for dehydration and a hernia, The trial court com-
mitted the appeliant on the ground that he wes unable o
pravide for his basic needs. On de nove review, we reversed.
906 P.2d ar 850, We held that the appellant’s failure to cake
his medications could not serve as a basis for his commit-
ment because even assuming that his failure to ake his
medications resulted in the behaviors thar preceded his
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commitment, including sleeplessness, hostility, and sub-
stance abuse the state had failed to prove thar those behav-
tors were “so severa as 10 constituce a threar o his survival.”
Id. ar §52. Similacly, we held thar neither the appellant’s
homelessness, nor the physical allmencs he had while home-
less, could serve as a basis for his commitment, explaining
that “we cannot say that homelessness by itself is sufficient
grounds for commitment” and thar the state had “failed to
show thar the ailments were so severe us to threaten appel-
lant’s survival.” 7d. at 852,

We recenly [oHlowed Baxterin A MM, 238 P.3d 407, in
which the appellant, who had schizophrenia, refused to
1ake his prescribed psychiatric medications and, as a sesulr,
experienced delusions that caused him to wage “a refigious
baule” in his grandmother’s bouse, where he lived. fd. ac
409. The appellant 1090 caused substantial damage to his
belongings and bedroorm, and he sustained minor cues to
his hands when he tried ro “push glass through a wall.” Id.
Because of the appellant’s destructive behavior, his grand-
mother was not willing to allow him o conrinue o live at
her house. The trial courr committed the appellant on the
ground that he was unable to provide for his basic needs.
On de nova review, we reversed, concluding that the “lap-
pellant’s {zilure to take his prescribed medication caused a
change in his behavior, but thar behavior was not so
severc as vo cause a threat to his survival,” and specifically
noting that “[tJhe minor curs that appellant inflicred on
himsell whife pushing glass through walls were nor life
threztening.” Id, at 41 1. [n addidon, we held that, *[al-
though it scems plaasible dhat appellant will not have
housing scrvices available on release, as we said in Baxter,
homelessness is not adeguate justification for iavolun-
try commitment.” Id.

As Baxterand A M.-AL lustrate, the controiling legal prin-
ciple is thar, in order for a exial court to commir a person on
the ground that the person is unable to provide for his or
her basic needs, the state must present evidence thac the
person's mental disorder creates an imminent and serious
threat to the person’s health and safety. In other words, the
stage must establish the existence of a nonspecutative threat to
the person’s near-term sarvival, Evidence that the person suf-
fers from a mental disorder that impairs his or her judgment
and has caused discomfort or minor injury is legally insufh-
cient 1o support a basic needs comemitmens, Again, as we held
in Bunting, the state must present evidence thag, as a result of a
meneal disorder, the person “probably would nos survive in the
near future, 826 P.2d at 1060,

The Evolution of the Court of Appeals Approach
to Basic Personal Needs

The concept that the basic needs criteria apply
only in situations where the person alleged to have
mental illness “would not survive in che near future”
dates in large measure to an interpretation made by
the court of appeals in its 1990 decision, State v.
Brungard”* This was one of the few decisions made
by the court of appeals that applied to the little used
separate set of civil commitment criteria,”® which
was enacted in 1987, It defines a person:

With a chronic mental illness, as defined in Or.
Rev. Stat. § 426.495.

Who, within the previous three years, has twice
been placed in a hospital or approved inpatient
facilicy.

Who is exhibiting symptoms or behavior sub-
seantially similar to those that preceded and led
to one or more of the hospitalizations or inpa-
gient placement.

Who, unless treated, will continue, to a reason-
able medical probability, to deteriorate physi-
cally or mentally, so that the person will become
a person (who is dangerous to self, others, or
unable to take care of basic personal needs).

In the Brungard decision, the court of appeals stared
that:

it is consistent with both the words and the purposc of ORS
426.005{2)(c) (D) to construe it as implicitly requiring 4
finding that, unless treated, the person will continue, to a
reasonable medical probability, to deteriarate in the near
future o the point of being a danger or being unable to curc
for basic needs.

In 1992, in State v. Bunting,® the court of appeals
applied the reasoning put forward in Brungard as
applied to civil commitment based on the original
1973 basic rights criteria. The court stated:

State v. Brungard, supra, 789 P.2d ac 687, consrued
another conumitment statute, Or. Rev. Star. § 426.003
(2)(c),[1] to incorporate the phrase “in the near future”
as the measure of the imininence of the starurory condi-
tion authorizing commitment. We censtrue Or. Rev.
Stat. § 426.005{2}(b} ro incorporate that standard, tou.
A person is subject to a “basic needs” commitment under
Or. Rev. Stat. § 426.005(2)(b) if clear and convincing
evidence demeonstrages that, due to a mental disordes,
there is # likelihood that the person probably would not
survive in the near future hecause the person i unable to
provide for basic personal needs and is nor receiving care
necessary for health or safety.

With these interpretations by the court of appeals,
survival “in the near future” was introduced into the
meaning of all three commitment criteria, danger
to self and others, and basic personal needs. These
words become most confusing in regard to danger to
self and basic needs. The Appellate Division of the
Attorney General's Office participates regularly in
the eraining of trial court judges, attorneys, mental
health investigators and examiners and others in-
volved in the administration of the civil commit-
ment statute. For these endeavors, the Appelfate
Division and the Oregon Health Authority pre-
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Table 1 Civil Commitment Comparisons*

Total CC

Yoar LS CCA00K
1972% - 1,168 h3
1983 3990 1,165 45
1993 5864 959 31
2003 4315 7855 22
2013 9652 585 15

*All data were obtained over the years from the Oregon Mental
Flealllh Division. Data published with the permiss%on of the
publisher, frem J Am Acad Psychialry Law 34: 5347, 2000,
Hnvestigations clone on individuals of emergency civil holds.
+The only dala available for 1972 are the total number of civil
commitments,

pared training materials that review all of the rel-
evant aspects of the commitment statute and rec-
ognize “a certain amount ofoveilap be[ween the
basic needs and danger fo self criteria.””*® This
confusion was apparent enough for the coure of

appeals in 2013 to specifically address 1ts view of
the differences between the two criteria,” and for
the 2015 Oregon Legislature to attempt to clarify
the basic-needs criteria as follows: "unable to pro-
vide for basic personal needs that are necessary to
avoid serious physical harm in the near future, and is
not receiving such care as is necessary to avoid such
harm (new language in italics).”

Discussion

For the past 30 years, the number of individuals
civilly committed in Oregon declined daamanc&iiy
Table 1 incorporates data from a 2006 article,"! with
data now available from 1972 to 2013 to provide a
4)-year perspective on the Oregon commitment
process. Table 1 demonstratesa steady increase in the
total number of precommitment investigations,™
with a steady decrease in the number of individuals
actually civilly committed. These findings are dra-
matic. In a 2008 article, these changes in civil
commitments have been viewed as related to fac-
tors stich as the decrease in the number of psychi-
atric beds in the community and in the state hos-
pitals, and to the use of the state hospital primarily
for individuals referred from the criminal coures. ™
Although these factors remain important, we now
atreibute ac Jeast part of the drop in civil commit-
ments to the influence of the court of appeals with
the development of a long line of decisions that
have narrowed the definitions of what it means to
be a person with “mental illness” in Oregon. These
are trends that were not anticipated by the 1973
Oregon Legislature.

The court itself appears to work in a relatively
closed system. A small number of judges working in
civil commitment appear to be tesponsible for many
of the decisions over the years. Further, appeals were
brought to the court by individuals whose work set-
tings appear to be associated with the state’s defender
groups. These groups usually have advocated for lim-
iting civil commitment. The Attorney General’s Of-
fice of the State of Oregon is responsible for defend-
ing the decisions of the state’s trial courts. We have
no way of knowing how vigorous these defenses have
been, and in recent years, the state has conceded
many of the appeals without a defense. We do not
know why these concessions have been made. We
also have no informarion on whether the Auorney
General consults with the Oregon Health Authoriry,
the state’s mental health agency, or with outside pro-
fessionals to provide the court of appeals with expert
views of appellant arguments. There is also no evi-
dence in any of the reviewed appeals of Amzicus briefs
submitted in these appeals on either side of the argu-
ments. These are all areas for future research that
would shed further light on the situation described in
this report.

'The focus on partients’ rights in these decisions is
certainly understandable. Among other questions of
patienss’ rights, the court of appeals was most insts-
tent that the trial court judges specifically read the list
of rights that persons alleged to have mental illness
are required by statute to hear at the time of the
commitment hearing, The worth of this recitation is
questionable, however, if the person alleged ro have
mental illness is incompetent to understand these
rights and to work with his attorney to act on them.
In reviewing these decisions, it appears that many of
the appeliants would not be competent to under-
stand these rights as read to them by the trial coure
judge. The reading of rights to possibly incompetent
individuals is an important area for future legislative
consideration. ™

The Oregon Court of Appeals’ focus on righs
carries over to its view of the meaning of clear and
convincing evidence and the three commitment cri-
teria, Over the years the court has viewed civil com-
mitment as primarily a “deprivation of liberty,” with
attendant “social stigma” which “affects the person’s
reputation and earning potential.” Although the
concerns are valid, the cases reviewed show little con-
sideration for balancing them with the symptoms of
mental illnesses, many of which, left untreated, can
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lead to equal or more serious negative effects, and
many of which are now treatable. Citing several psy-
chiatric articles from the mid-1970s, a unanimous
Supreme Court in Addingron v. Texas stated: “One
who is suffering from a debilitating mental iliness
and in need of treatment is neither wholly at liberty
nor free of stigma.”s In many ways, the Oregon
Court of Appeals could be seen to be living in a
“pre-Addington” world as the balance between rights
and treatment does not appear forcefully in these
decisions. In addition, this court of appeals does not
seem to validate the fact that mental illnesses are in
and of themselves serious diseases with potensially
dire consequences beyond stigma, even to include
premature death,™

This pre-Addington orientation carries over into
the court of appeals view of the meaning of clear and
convincing evidence. ‘T 'he view of this evidence stan-
dard as demonstrating “extraordinary persuasive-
ness” and “highly probable” as critical in attaining
the goal of “preserving the personal liberties of those
facing civil commitment” scems an extension of the
original 1973 Oregon evidence standard of beyond a
reasonable doubt.

As lustrated in the important court of appeals deci-
sions in Brungard™ and Bunting® the dangerous-to-
self-and-others criteria in Oregon have migrated in
common usage to a focus on dangerousness in the
near future without any statutory attempts to define
these terms further in the statute in 1973 or later.
This view derives from such court of appeals terms as
“highly likely” or in the “near term.”

Most of the commitment criteria decisions in this
review were focused on the basic personal needs cri-
teria, Oregon’s version of parens partriae commit-
ment based on grave disability, rather than danger-
ousness. It is in this area that the court of appeals has
deviated most from what we were able to construct of
the 1973 legislative intent. It appears that in Brun-
gard the court of appeals developed its current un-
derstanding of the basic-needs criteria by adopting
and changing the meaning of another very different
ser of commirment criteria meant for statutorily de-
fined “chronically mentally il individuals.” The
court changed “unless treated will continue, to a rea-
sonable medical probability, to physically or men-
tally deteriorate” into “probably would not survive in
the near future.” “T'o a reasonable medical probabil-
ity” is a legal standard that applies to medical resti-
mony and is not much different from a “preponder-

ance of the evidence” or a lesser standard such as
“more likely than not.” The chronically mentally ill
starute calls for a statement by a physician abour the
course of a deteriorating medical condition based on
previous episodes of the same disorder in the same
patient. It is most certainly not based on a predic-
tion of near-term survival. Medical prediction
based on the understanding of a disease process is
reasonably accurate in cancer and heart disease, as
it is in the course of untreated schizophrenia or
bipolar disorder.

The case presented” was but one of many that we
could have chosen to illustrate about how far the
court of appeals had come in explaining away many
of the most serious complications of schizophrenia
and bipolar disorder, leading in some situations to an
acceptance of homelessness, serious psychiatric de-
terioration, and what might lic beyond for these
individuals. It appears that by defining basic per-
sonal needs as those “things necessary for survival”
and with the addition of “in the near future” the
court of appeals has done a disservice to the pop-
ulation of severely ill individuals who are indeed
gravely disabled and in need of care and treatment
and who meet what appears to be the 1973 legis-
fative intent as expressed in the testimony of both
Drs. Bray'? and Brooks.'? Whether the 2015 leg-
islative changes to the basic needs criteria will
change the court of appeals views in this area re-
mains to be seen.,

It is also well known that one of the great conse-
quences of narrow or ineffective civil commicment
laws is a shift of persons with serious mental iliness to
criminal justice serrings.”® In a 2010 report the
Treatment Advocacy Center” found that, in Ore-
gon, persons with severe mental illness were three
times as likely to be incarcerated persons (estimated
3,091) than those in a hospital (~1,026). Often-
times, the loss of liberty experienced by mentally ill
persons in such settings is dramatically greater than
may have been experienced through involuntary civil
commitment. Subjecting mentally ill defendants to
arrest and possible conviction leads to further stigma
and worsened quality of life. Unnecessary commit-
ment should be strenuously avoided. The costs of
these illnesses and the potential for treatment and
making fives better should be viewed as at least equal
to balancing these fears,

This study had fimitations. First, it represents the
actions of an appeals court in only one state, and
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cannot be generalized to other states withourt further
research. Second, from discussions with psychiatrists
and trial court judges, the authors believe that the
decisions of the court of appeals have influenced
many Oregon judges and have played an important
role in reducing the state’s commitment rates. Dis-
cussions with some trial court judges have convinced
us that being reversed by the court of appeals has
negative ramifications for judges. However, we can-
not support this conclusion with certainty on the
hasis of the data gathered for the article. Further sup-
port will have to wait for future repoits. Third, this
report does not take into account the roles of other
actors in the civil commitment process including dis-
erict attorneys and expert witnesses. Courts of ap-
peals depend on the record given to them for review,
There are reasons why records reviewed by the court
of appeals may be viewed as deficient because of the
way the commitment process is handled in this par-
ticular state. A 1979 article outlined some of these
concerns.™ A more comprehensive report should
take these factors into account in judging the actions
of this court.

Recommendations from this review include open-
ing up the appellate process to more viewpoints and
expert opinion on mentai illness, its course, conse-
quences, and treatment; encouraging the State Office
of the Attorney General to consult on appeals with
experts of its own choosing; and, most important,
encouraging the Oregon Legisfature to reformulate
and update its civil commitment law so that the cit-
izens of the state can have a workable law, and the
court of appeals can have a fresh start. The 1983
American Psychiatric Association’s model civil com-
mitment statute”” may be a good place for that fresh
start for everyone in this state.
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From Rose Festival Court to death on frozen streets: Karen
Batts' lonely struggle

Comment
Updated on January 4. 2017 at 1:00 PM Posted on January 14, 2017 at 5:00 AM

Family fried (o help. but couldn't save Karen Baits
Sk shares

By Molly Harbarger
mharbargerd@oregonian,com
The Oregonian/Oregonl.ive

In page after page of the photo album. Katren Lee Batts poses in the house where she grew up.

Beautiful. in late 1970s dresses, she smiles on the arm of her high school boyfriends.

Teenage dating can be paintul and mortitying, but Batts relished it. She was outgoing. a junior
varsity cheerleader and a contender for Grant High School’s Rose Festival court.

There are childhood photos of Karen and older brother Alan standing in front of the Mercedes
their dad brought back from his Army tour in Germany and Karen sitting on her mother's lap
cven though she was too big by that point. Those give way to photos of high school dances
and shenanigans, then pages of academic honors and the nose-bleed section tickets 1o a
Portland Trail Blazers game where Karen received a scholarship.

Elizabeth Batts is thankful she asked her daughter to return the photo album once Karen
started moving [rom one apartment to another, It's one of a string of prescient moments, like
when Batts bought her daughter a cemetery plot in 2001.

Karen Lee Batts, 52, will be buried there Wednesday. She died of hypothermia last weekend,
isolated from the two people who spent their lives trying to care for her and keep her from
dying the way she did.

Homeless people in Oregon rarcly die of exposure, but this winter's long stretch of freezing
temperatures is the most severe in about 20 years. The city has scrambled to deal with the
challenges the cold and snow have posed to people living on the streets.

Three men aiso succumbed to hypothermia in the last two weeks -- making the winter's tally
cqual to the past five years of exposure deaths combined.

Batts is at the center of a paradox that plagues familics and social service providers -- she
reached the point when she was least able o make good decisions about her health and safety
even as others were ready to help.






In many ways, Batts is typical of the mounting homeless crisis in Portland. More than half of
the homeless population suffers from mental illness, according to most estimates from
outreach workers and county data. At the downtown Operation Nightwatch shelter where
people can get hot meals and fellowship, Executive Director Gary Davis said he sees many
people like Batts shun shelters because they fear other people.

Her mental health qualified her for disability benefits, but also drove her away from her
support system, which left her without the wherewithal to seek out help on her own.

"[t's hard enough for ordinary people to comply with that model, but when you're on the
streets and alone what do you do?" Davis said.

Batts is also part of a rising trend of women, older people and African Americans ending up
unsheltered, which Multnomah County officials say makes people even more vulnerable to
abuse.

She had been homeless since October, when she was evicted from low-income housing after
months of erratic behavior. She suffered from schizophrenia and sometimes abused drugs and
alcohol. leading to her refusing help from her family, social service organizations and
Portland police.

The contradiction haunts Elizabeth Batts.

"Every which way we tried to turn, no one can help us." she said. "I don't know what families
are supposed to do when the decision is up to a person who can't make a rational decision."

From Rose Festival Court to homelessness

Alan and Karen Batts were born on the same day, one year apart, at a U.S. Army base in
Germany. They moved often until settling in Northeast Portland in 1970.

Alan and Karen relied on cach other for support during the moves and when their father was
away for long periods. Alan took his role as older brother seriously. He helped his sister with
her homework and walking her to IHollyrood Elementary School. When they got older, he
took her dancing at teen clubs downtown.

He was quict and reserved and Karen was vibrant and loud, filling the house with the funk of
her Earth, Wind and Fire records and the rattle of her sewing machine. She made some of the
clothes she wore during her Rose Festival princess bid (to this day, her mom says she was
robbed).





But she also suffered from an carly age with mental illness. Her mom noticed early on that
Karen was anorexic and bulimic, She showed what were likely early signs of schizophrenia,
but they weren't pronounced until her 30s.

By then, Karen had tried college. She did a year of pre-dentistry studies at Fisk University in
Tennessee before moving home and attending Portland State and Portland Community
College on and off for about two years.

She never finished, partly due to working part time to pay her way and partly due to her
slowly deteriorating mental state.

She bounced between about a dozen jobs and homes. In the early 1990s, she was working at
standard Insurance when she called her mother to tell her she was hearing voices from the
sprinkler system in her apartment building. On the phone, she kept saying she thought her
coworkers were listening in to their conversation.

Days later. on a light rail ride to Fred Meyer, Karen told her mom that the other riders were
staring.

"I told her no, that is silly," Elizabeth Batts said. "1 didn't know she was in a paranoid state at
the time. I didn't know what was going on."

Iaren Batts died of hypothermia outside in Portland
30

Gallery: Karen Batts died of hypothermia outside in Portland

When Alan Batts returned in 1992 from 11 years in the Air Force, his sister had changed. He
assumed much of the responsibility of taking care of his sister. His mother's health was
starting to fail and his father died in 1999,

As she got older, Karen Batts' life was increasingly interrupted by trips to hospital emergency
rooms, rchabilitation centers and psychiatric units, He urged her to see counselors, sometimes
missing work to go with her, but she always eventually dropped out.

In 1995, she likely spent her first time on the streefs. Her family doesn't know where she was
during those months. She disappeared. Her brother plastered fliers with Karen's face and his
contact information on {elephone poles and church bulletin boards around town. Eventually,
she called him out of the blue,





He helped her get another apartment, which she was evicted from a year later. Public records
show she owed a downtown Portland apartment building $512, She showed up to court and
she and her family paid down what was owed.

The four

Portland and Multnomah County officials have turned government buildings into emergency
warming shelters and joined nonprofits and volunteer outreach workers to scour the streets for
people who need rides to a shelter or supplies to withstand the cold.

When demonstrators confronted new Mayor Ted Wheeler in front of Portland City Hall about the
unprecedented four exposure deaths, he acknowledged that more people might die this winter.

Read more about the city's response to the four exposure deaths of homeless people this winter
and who those people were.

Mental iflness creates a paradox

When Karen Batts was on her medication, her family saw her thrive. She could take care of
herself, she was more dependable on visits and calls. After a stint in the [.loyd District branch
of the Oregon State Hospital, she lived in a halfway house before moving seven years ago to
Oak Apartments, where her mother and brother thought she was doing the best she had in
years.

They took her to movies and to dinner. They visited relatives in Seattle and went to the
Oregon coast because she loved the beach.

She was mostly a model tenant at Oak Apartments. Cari Hilsabeck, a former security guard
there, said they talked several times a week, sometimes about serious topics, sometimes just
gossip. At the time, Hilsabeck said, Karen was quiet but laughed easily.

But she started to withdraw over the years. Visitors needed a resident to allow them in the
front door and Karen stopped buzzing up her older brother. She would call home from her
fandline in her apartment, then would hang up after a few minutes when Alan or their mother
asked how she was doing.

"We didn't know what was going on in that apartiment,” Alan said. "She wasn't going to say
everything about what she was going through.”

Her medication also made her gain weight, which triggered her old anorexia and bulimia.

Elizabeth Batts would take her to dinner and Karen would say she was stuffed after a few
bites, excusing herself to go to the bathroom shortly after.

As far as Alan can tell, she went ofT her medication in December 2015. He encouraged her to
get a refill and see a psychologist but couldn't force her.






"We're her family, but we can't do anything at all," he said. "We don't know who to talk to and
who to call, we're just grasping at straws."

"We were trying to tell anvone who would listen that she needed help."
ying Yy I

At least once, Alan Batts called Portland police after his sister refused to let him up to her
apartment. He hadn't heard from her in a long time and was worried. The police officer visited
her for a mental health check. but she would talk only through the closed door to her
apartment. The officer said that she didn't seem like a danger to hersell or anyone else, so he
couldn't do anything. e |

—

Elizabeth and Alan Batts grappled with their helplessness and guilt. They couldn't make
Karen move home and couldn't dedicate all their time to her. Alan works full time and takes
care of his mother, whose health problems made her unable to do much lor Karen outside of
cmotional support.

"You have to manage her paranoia and your own sanity," Alan said. "I couldn't go up the
stairs and knock on her door, so I walked away."

According to building owner, nonprofit Northwest Housing Alternatives, Karen also refused
help from an on-site staff member who wanted to connect her with mental health services.
Executive Director Martha McLennan said statt and social service workers talked with her
dozens of times when they received reports of her damaging property, threatening other
tenants and breaking building rules.

"The point in time somebody might most need those services, they might be least able to
reach out and obtain those services," MclLennan said.

One of the last times Alan Batts saw his sister, more than a year ago. she insisted on meeting
him across the street from her building and refused a hug. He trailed slightly behind her as she
walked to the MAX Green Line with her fingers in her ears.

He assumed she was blocking out the street noises and maybe the voices in her head, too. She
was too distracted to carry a conversation. While waiting for the train, she bought a cup of hot
water -- no tea, no coffee -- and then simply walked away.

What you can do

If you need help: Call 211, There might be a wait, but stay on the line. Someone will answer. They can direct you (o the nearest
warming shelter and arrange for a car to come pick you up. No one will be turned away. There's a list of warming centers at
21 linlo.org.

Usc public buildings. such as librarics and community centers. to get warm during that day.





If you want to help: Donate new or lightly used clean clothing and supplies -- hats, coats, gloves, socks, men's and women's
underwear. tents. sleeping bags. blankets and tarps. Go to 21 1linfo.org/donations (o find out where you can drop off items or
donate money.

Call 911: If you see someonce outside who appears to be in danger or is in the midst of a medical crisis.

Call 211 or the Portland police non-emergency line: If you're concerned about someone who might need help. The non-
emergency line is 303-823-3333.

Evicted, alone and in a mental health crisis

Karen didn't pay August or September rent, and in October, she was evicted for $338 of
missed rent. The Multnomah County Sheriff's Office let her grab some clothes and personal
belongings before locking her out.

Her phone had been shut off by then and her family had no way to find her. Police and court
records detail the last months of Karen Batts' life.

On Nov. 3, she was standing barefoot and covered in bruises at the intersection of West
Burnside and Broadway streets. Someone had called police, saying that a woman was in
traftic.

Karen was drinking [rom portable hand sanitizer bottles, telling police that she was doing it to
keep her mouth clean.

She said she didn't know where she lived or where her family lived and didn't believe that the
police were who they said they were. The officers drove to Legacy Good Samaritan Hospital

and placed her on a mental health hold.

At some point, she was released and seems (o have returned to the streets.

In early December, Karen called Alan's phone a couple times. He missed the calls, but still
has the voicemails.

Karen, in a distant voice, said she wanted to celebrate Christmas at home -- largely still
looking the way it has for 46 years, with the hanging seashell decoration Karen bought her
mom on her only trip to Florida and the free-standing stereo she was photographed in front of
as a teenager.

She always liked Christmases with her family. she said, and planned to get a cellphone in a
few days. She would call again when she got it, she said. But she never did.

The next time Batts showed up in court records was Dec. 27 when she was ticketed $175 and
kicked off a TriMet MAX Yellow Line train for sleeping over four seats. She told the officers
that she hadn't paid her fare because she fell asleep.





She listed her address as the Bud Clark Commons, a day center for homeless people where
they can receive mail, store their belongings and hang out for the day.

Then, on the night of Jan. 7, when temperatures dipped into the low 20s, a parking lot
attendant found Batts on her back on the second floor of the garage, police said. She had
started undressing, which could be attributed to the late stages of hypothermia, and was stili
breathing.

A private security officer called 911 at 2:04 p.m. Medics arrived at 2:09 p.m. Portland Fire
Bureau members arrived at 2:11 p.m. to find Batts dead.

-- Molly Harbarger
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Pedro Sabalsa-Mendez's mother fought to get her son civilly committed, but she couldn’t meet

Oregon’s high legal bar even though he threatened to kill himself and others.

On Nov. 6, 2016, Sabalsa-Mendez stabbed Avi Feldman, 20, to death during an Ashland house

party on Strawberry Lane, fulfilling his mother’s worst fears.

On Thursday, Jackson County Circuit Judge Lorenzo Mejia found Sabalsa-Mendez guilty of

murder except for insanity.

“I commit you to the care and custody of the Psychiatric Security Review Board for the rest of

your life. You are a danger to yourself and others,” Mejia said during the bench trial.
Sabalsa-Mendez will be taken to a secure state psychiatric facility.

Both the prosecution and defense said the murder might never have happened if Sabalsa-
Mendez had been civilly committed and required to receive mental health care. His mental
state was deteriorating under the onslaught of schizophrenia, a chronic and severe mental

illness that often causes delusions. The disease can be managed with medication.

“Our laws really need to be changed in some way to prevent this from happening,” said Jackson

County Senior Deputy District Attorney Laura Cromwell, who prosecuted the case.

Defense attorney Paul Moser said Sabalsa-Mendez's mother took every step she could, but
Oregon’s stringent requirements for commitment don’t match up with real conditions on the

ground.

http://www.mailtribune.com/news/20170824/mother-of-ashland-murderer-tried-to-have-him... 9/1/2017
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Sabalsa-Mendez's mother went repeatedly to police and Jackson County Mental Health for

help, according to court testimony.
“It’s not a situation where she turned a blind eye,” Cromwell said. “She knew he would do this.”

But threats to commit suicide or murder are typically not enough to get someone committed.

A person must purchase a weapon, for example, or have a history of violence, Cromwell said.

Sabalsa-Mendez hadn’t been suffering from schizophrenia long enough to have a past pattern

of violence, she said.

Five days before the murder, Sabalsa-Mendez's mother made him move out of her Ashland
home because he refused to take his medication. He was living in a vehicle near Lithia Park,

Cromwell said.

Unknown to his mother or mental health professionals, Sabalsa-Mendez purchased a knife, she

said.
“He bought it for self-protection based on delusions people were after him,” Cromwell said.

Feldman had been struggling with mental health issues himself, but was on medication, had
stabilized and was living in an apartment. Generous and kindhearted, he reached out to

Sabalsa-Mendez and invited him to the party, according to friends and family.

Soon after the murder, a friend of Feldman said Sabalsa-Mendez had been acting crazy —
introducing himself at the party as “Marshal Law,” then later jumping out and stabbing

Feldman in a driveway while yelling, “Suicide!”

Ashland police arrested Sabalsa-Mendez, who was 22 at the time, without incident. A large

knife was recovered at the scene,

The victim’s father, Michael Feldman, said Sabalsa-Mendez’s family tried to get him the care he
needed, but the nation’s mental health system is terrible. Michael Feldman said he hopes

Sabalsa-Mendez remains confined in state custody for the rest of his life.

“I wish this upon nobody. Nobody should have to bury their child at such a young age,”
Michael Feldman said.

http:/fwww.mailtribune.com/news/20170824/mother-of-ashland-murderer-tried-to-have-him... 9/1/2017
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He described his son as someone who would give his bus ticket to someone else and provide
people with food and clothing. He noted that more than 200 people attended his son’s

memorial service.

Michael Feldman thanked the Ashland community for all the support it has given him and his
family.

The murder is not the first high-profile case in Ashland in which people have tried and failed

to get someone committed,

Tighe O'Meara, who has since been promoted to chief of the Ashland Police Department, and
a probation officer petitioned to have John Thiry committed to a mental institution after he
started a 2010 fire than destroyed 11 Ashland houses and led to the death of a firefighter. Thiry

also threw rocks at girls on a bike path and threatened to kill them.
The civil commitment petition failed because it failed to meet Oregon requirements.

To be committed in Oregon, a person must be dangerous to himself or herself or others, or be
unable to provide for basic personal needs such as health and safety. Generally, a person must
have recently threatened or attempted suicide or serious bodily injury, or have demonstrated a

danger of substantial and imminent harm to others through a recent act, attempt or threat.

Thiry died in June after his physical and mental state deteriorated. He was believed to be

schizophrenic, with his condition aggravated by chronic drug and alcohol use.

As for Sabalsa-Mendez’s future, Cromwell said he could eventually be released from custody if
his mental health improves enough that the Psychiatric Security Review Board determines he

is no longer a threat.
“Or he could potentially stay for his lifetime,” she said.

While under the board’s jurisdiction, a person found guilty except for insanity can be
committed to the Oregon State Hospital or conditionally released to a lower level of care,

ranging from secure residential treatment facilities to independent living. People can be

http://www.mailtribune.com/news/20170824/mother-of-ashland-murderer-tried-to-have-him... 9/1/2017
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returned to the hospital if they violate the terms of their conditional release or have a mental

status change that causes them to pose a risk of substantial danger to others, according to the
board.

They also can be discharged if they are no longer mentally ill.

The board’s primary focus is on public safety. Clients who have been reintegrated into the

community have an adult recidivism rate of half of 1 percent, according to the board.

— Reach siaff reporter Vickie Aldous at 541-776-4486 or valdous@mailtribune.com. Follow her at

www.kwitter.com/VickieAldous.
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~Quadrupled

Prisons Ill Equipped to Cope

"o

o New federal statistics reveal that the number of
mentally ill inmates in U.S. prisons and jails has
quadrupled over the past six years, Human Rights
Watch said today. More than half of all prison and
state inmates now report mental health problems,
including symptoms of major depression, mania
and psychotic disorders, according to a just-
released federal Bureau of Justice Statistics (BJS)
report, Mental Health Problems of Prison and Jail
Inmates.

In 1998, the BJS reported there were an estimated
283,000 prison and jail inmates who suffered from
mental health problems. That number is now
estimated to be 1.25 million. The rate of reported
mental health disorders in the state prison
population is five times greater (56.2 percent) than
in thegedérat adult population (11 percent).

fU.S.: Number of Mentally Ill in Prisons
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Prevent
Their
Child’s
quarters (73 percent) of all women in state prison Suicide,
It's Not
True

Women prisoners have an even higher

mental health problems than men: alm

have mental health problems, compared to 55
percent of men.

‘While the number of mentally ill inmates surges,

~ prisons remain dangerous and damaging places for
‘them,” said Jamie Fellner, director of Human
) §Rights Watch’s U.S. Program and co-author of a
5% 2003 report, “Ill-Equipped: U.S. Prisons and
#Dflenders with Mental Tliness.” “Prisons are
2= woefully ill-equipped for their current role as the

~mation’s primary mental health facilities.”

According to Human Rights Watch, deficient
mental health services in prisons and jails leave
prisoners under-treated or not treated at all. Across
the country, prisoners with mental health problems
face a shortage of qualified staff, lack of facilities
and prison rules that interfere with treatment.

Prisoners with mental illness find it more difficult
to adhere to prison rules and to cope with the
stresses of confinement, as evidenced by the new
BJS statistics that 58 percent of state prisoners with
mental problems have been charged with violating
prison rules, compared to 43 percent without
mental problems. An estimated 24 percent with a
mental health problem have been charged with a
physical or verbal assault on prison staff, compared

10 1% r?ercent of those without. One in five state
all address Count Me Ir
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prisoners with mental health problems

injured in a fight in prison, compared t
of those without,

Prison staff often punish mentally ill offenders for
symptoms of their illness, such as being noisy,

refuising orders, self mutilating or even attempting

suicide. Mentally ill prisoners are thus more likely

than others to end up housed in especially harsh

¥ conditions, including isolation, that can push them

Bt
£

over the edge into acute psychosis.

st

“Asking prisons to treat people with serious mental

«illness is pushing round pegs into square holes,”

said Fellner. “People who suffer from mental illness
nced mental health interventions, not punishment
for behavior that may be motivated by delusions
and hallucinations.”

According to Human Rights Watch, the staggering
rate or incarceration of the mentally ill is a
consequence of under-funded, disorganized and
fragmented community mental health services.
Many people with mental illness, particularly those
who are poor, homeless, or struggling with
substance abuse - cannot get mental health
treatment. If they commit a crime, even low-level
nonviolent offenses, punitive sentencing laws
mandate imprisonment.

The new BJS report reveals that state prisoners

with mental heaith problems were twice as likely to
Email address .
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lived in a foster home, agency or institu

growing up as those without mental he
problems. Prisoners with mental health problems
were also significantly more likely to have reported
being physically or sexually abused in the past, to
have had family members who had substance abuse

_problems, and to have a family member who had

been incarcerated in the past. An estimated 42
percent of state inmates had both a mental health
prcblem and substance dependence or abuse.

P

ss/rlgl’\’ﬁ.-gion / Country United States
= \@Topic Health, Disability Rights
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Tags Correctional Reform, Prison, Prison Conditions
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

Subject: FW: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room
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

<Channa.Newell@state.or.us>; Nasbe Josh <Josh.Nasbe@oregonlegislature.gov>
Subject: Civil Commitment Work Group--Monday, September 18, 11:00 am Room 350

Good morning,

We're looking forward to the first meeting of the civil commitment work group on
Monday September 18, 11:00 am in the Oregon Capitol, 900 Court Street NE, Salem,
OR. Please note that we have changed our room to Room 350 to accommodate a

larger group. Room 350 is in the central portion of the building on the 3 floor. Please
feel free to bring your lunch.

If you are planning to participate via phone, the dial in information is:

TOLL-FREE: 888-278-0296
Meeting Number: 7049786

Attached, please find a draft agenda, news reports illustrating the issue, and materials
on the current civil commitment standard and assisted outpatient treatment. Please
let me know if you would like a printed copy of the materials, or if you have any
comments or questions.

Thanks,


mailto:Arthur.TOLAN@dhsoha.state.or.us
mailto:MICHAEL.N.MORRIS@dhsoha.state.or.us
mailto:MICKY.F.LOGAN@dhsoha.state.or.us
tel:503-269-8694
mailto:Channa.Newell@oregonlegislature.gov
mailto:Pat.Wolke@ojd.state.or.us
mailto:Sen.FloydProzanski@oregonlegislature.gov
mailto:Aaron.D.KNOTT@doj.state.or.us
mailto:Channa.Newell@state.or.us
mailto:Josh.Nasbe@oregonlegislature.gov

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
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https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2015I1/Committees/HJUD/Overview
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2015I1/Committees/SJUD/Overview

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Bob Joondeph
Subject: RE: Civil commitment artilce
Date: Friday, September 08, 2017 5:08:04 PM

I’'m the first to advocate that symptoms (whether on meds or not) does not equal dangerousness
and that locking folks up just because they don’t take their meds is not an acceptable policy. We
supervise many folks who don’t take meds (but are clinically indicated to do so). Context and history
is relevant. Another topic that | am interested in is the quality of the court examiners. They are not
forensically trained nor do they seem to have the competency to make opinion about someone’s
dangerousness. Many are social workers or master’s level counselors. | think there is a gap there
that leads to the dropping of the civil commitment. Access to quality evaluators to assist the courts
and attorneys is a problem.

After | wrote that article, | read up a little on the data about AOT — what are your thoughts on the
black robe effect? My Board certainly sees a little of this — a client does great under our supervision
and then relapses the moment he/she is released from supervision. By the way, our next paper will
be back on the GEIl topic — studying post-jurisdiction recidivism. Preliminary data is higher than | was
expecting given how well our clients do on supervision. I'll keep you posted.

Have a nice weekend, Juliet

~~ SERVICE EXCELLENCE LEADERSHIP ~~ PARTNERSHIP ™~ INNOVATION ~~ JUSTICE ™~

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

From: Bob Joondeph [mailto:bob@droregon.org]
Sent: Friday, September 08, 2017 4:34 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: Civil commitment artilce

Hi Juliet,

The article, like many of the stories | am told about, is perplexing. They paint a picture of a person
who is dangerous but then say a court found they were not dangerous. The suggested solution
seems to be that if a person is diagnosed with a CMI and doesn’t take prescribed medication, the
person can be forcibly hospitalized and medicated. Is that where you think we need to go?

| think that’s where Judge Wolke wants to take us and so I’'m curious to know where you’ll come
down on that.

Thanks,


mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
mailto:bob@droregon.org
http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx

Bob

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Friday, September 8, 2017 4:12 PM

To: Bob Joondeph

Subject: RE: Civil commitment artilce

Hi Bob,

The article was intended to just survey the legal landscape - maybe a follow up paper will identify
solutions. | have not put too much thought into that topic.
| find it heartbreakmg that the current civil system (or lack thereof ) has given us our newest cI|ent

committed). | see so many cases like this — totally preventable had the civil commitment law been
implemented as intended. Do you have any ideas as the number of mentally ill inmates increases

every year? Way more stigma compared to a civil commitment stigma.
Juliet

~~ SERVICE EXCELLENCE LEADERSHIP ~~ PARTNERSHIP ™~ INNOVATION ™~ JUSTICE ~™

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
Sent: Thursday, September 07, 2017 4:35 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
Subject: Civil commitment artilce

Juliet,

| just read the article you wrote with Joe Bloom about Oregon’s civil commitment law. What are you
proposing as a substitute for the present law?

Thanks,

Bob Joondeph
Executive Director
Disability Rights Oregon


mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov
http://www.mailtribune.com/news/20170824/mother-of-ashland-murderer-tried-to-have-him-committed
http://www.mailtribune.com/news/20170824/mother-of-ashland-murderer-tried-to-have-him-committed
http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx
mailto:bob@droregon.org

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB; WILSEY Ashley * PSRB
Subject: Recidivism study

Date: Wednesday, July 12, 2017 3:18:20 PM

Hi

Are we making progress?

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

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: FW: update on recidivsm sutdy
Date: Friday, June 30, 2017 9:02:45 AM

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

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 2016
Juliet.britton@oregon.gov

From: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB

Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 8:59 AM
To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: update on recidivsm sutdy

She’s said nothing to me about it.

Ashley Wilsey

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Office Specialist

610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, OR 97205

(503) 229-5596

Please note my email address has changed to ashley.wilsey@oregon.gov

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 8:56 AM
To: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB

Subject: RE: update on recidivsm sutdy

I thought Shelley was asking you to look up client data for our recid study — ask her

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

Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 8:50 AM
To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: update on recidivsm sutdy

I’'m not finding anything in my email concerning data gathering on recidivism...just emails on
scheduling a conference call for it a few months ago. What data did you need me to gather?

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

Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 8:48 AM

To: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB; BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: update on recidivsm sutdy

Hi
What is the status of the data gathering?

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
Date: Friday, June 30, 2017 8:55:35 AM

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
mailto:Ashley.Wilsey@oregon.gov
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
mailto:Juliet.britton@oregon.gov

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: MOORE Sid * PSRB; BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: Recidivism study
Date: Sunday, June 04, 2017 9:44:31 AM

Can you give me an update on Monday as to where we are in research? Ashely needs work and research and input
data. Juliet

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
mailto:Sid.Moore@oregon.gov
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB; WILSEY Ashley * PSRB; Psychiatric Security Review Board * PSRB
Subject: discharged client recidivism study

Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2017 8:51:50 AM

Hi

| want to really crank up the data collection on our study because timeis of the essence. Summer is the best time to
research and write because hearings and my Legislative work slows down. Shelley, based on Elena’s data points sent
last week, please start assigning research to Ashely and Jane to input data into a master spreadsheet.

Priority isto document new arrests and those outcomes, if any.
Secondary will beinputting in diagnosis, etc and stuff from our records.

If we need s group meeting, please schedule this week. I'm in most of the remainder of the week except today and
Thursday morning.

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
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mailto:psrb@oregon.gov

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph M. Douglass

Subject: 2016 Norko et al - Assessing Insanity Acquittee Recidivism in CT.pdf
Date: Thursday, April 20, 2017 2:13:45 PM

Attachments: 2016 Norko et al - Assessing Insanity Acquittee Recidivism in CT.pdf

ATTO00001.htm

Joe
Hereisthe study in CT we spoke about. CT also has a PSRB. Juliet


mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
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Behavioral Sciences and the Law

Behav. Sci. Law (2016)

Published online in Wiley Online Library
(wileyonlinelibrary.com) DOI: 10.1002/bsl.2222

Assessing Insanity Acquittee Recidivism in
Connecticut

Michael A. Norko, M.D., M.A.R.*, Tobias Wasser, M.D.T,

Heidi Magro, M.S.W.*, Erin Leavitt-Smith, M.A., L.P.C.%,
Frederic J. Morton, M.P.H.% and Tamika Hollis, M.B.A.T

For over 30years now the movement and status of insanity acquittees in Connecticut
has been supervised by the Psychiatric Security Review Board (PSRB). During this
time, 365 acquittees have been committed to the jurisdiction of the PSRB, 177 individ-
uals have achieved conditional release (CR) and 215 acquittees have been discharged
from PSRB jurisdiction. This article examines revocation of CR by the PSRB, arrests
of acquittees on CR, and provides the first report of arrests following discharge from
the PSRB’s jurisdiction. The literature on relevant aspects of recidivism is reviewed
and compared with findings in Connecticut. There is little available literature about
recidivism of insanity acquittees following release from supervision. In the present
sample of individuals discharged from the PSRB, 16% were rearrested, a rate that
compares favorably with other discharged populations of offenders. For discharged
acquittees, community supervision on CR prior to discharge from the PSRB had a
statistically significant effect on decreasing the risk of subsequent rearrest, as did both
the length of stay in the hospital and the duration of commitment to the PSRB. This
article presents descriptive information about revocations, arrests on CR, and arrests
following discharge. These data are consistent with criminal justice studies
demonstrating the value of community supervision in lowering recidivism. Copyright
© 2016 John Wiley & Sons, Ltd.

In 1978, Oregon revised its mechanisms for treating and monitoring insanity
acquittees, and out of these revisions was born the country’s first Psychiatric Security
Review Board (PSRB). As Rogers and Bloom (1985) described, “The PSRB has
received national attention as a potentially viable solution to the dilemma of how to pre-
serve the medical, moral, and legal values of the insanity defense, while simultaneously
honoring the growing contemporary consensus that security measures should be
substantially improved for insanity acquittees” (p. 71). In 1982, the PSRB model was
supported by the American Psychiatric Association (APA) in their Statement on the
Insamiry Defense (American Psychiatric Association, 1982).

The institution of Connecticut’s PSRB followed two significant legal cases in which
individuals were found not guilty by reason of mental disease or defect (hereafter

* Correspondence to: Michael Norko, M.D., Associate Professor of Psychiatry, Yale University School of
Medicine, and Director of Forensic Services, Connecticut Department of Mental Health and Addiction Ser-
vices (DMHAS). E-mail: michael.norko@yale.edu
Tyale University School of Medicine, New Haven, CT

Psychiatric Security Review Board, CT

SDivision of Forensic Services, Connecticut Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services

Copyright © 2016 John Wiley & Sons, Ltd.





M. A. Norko et al.

abbreviated NGRI, for not guilty by reason of insanity). The first was the 1981
attempted assassination of President Ronald Reagan by John Hinckley Jr., in which
Hinckley was ultimately found NGRI. The second was a Connecticut case in which a
former police officer was found NGRI in 1978 after shooting and killing his first wife
outside of her workplace. The acquittee was hospitalized for 3 months and then re-
leased into the community after being deemed no longer dangerous to himself or others
by hospital clinicians. He subsequently remarried, but in 1983 was again charged with
murder after the deceased body of his second wife was found in their home only days
after she had filed for divorce (Associated Press, 1983).

Following these verdicts and the subsequent increase in national and local atten-
tion to insanity acquittees and their post-verdict management, in 1983 the General
Assembly of Connecticut directed the Law Revision Commission to study the
post-verdict dispositions of the insanity defense in Connecticut. The Commission
found that Connecticut lacked a centralized system of monitoring and decision-
making post-verdict and that much of the burden of determining when to release
acquittees from the hospital fell on an overburdened Superior Court system. Further,
the Commission determined that individual judges lacked sufficient staffing or guide-
lines to adequately monitor or evaluate an acquittee’s progress in treatment, manage
ongoing mental health issues, or evaluate proposed programs for confinement and
treatment of acquittees conditionally released from the hospital. The Commission
concluded that post-verdict procedures in the state were inadequate to provide for
the proper review, regulation, and supervision of insanity acquittees, allowing for
acquittees to be improperly released or inadequately treated in the hospital and/or
community. To address these concerns, the Commission recommended the estab-
lishment of a PSRB to serve as a centralized authority overseeing the management
and supervision of acquittees throughout the state (Connecticut Law Revision Com-
mission, 1985).

As a result of this recommendation and following Oregon’s lead, in 1985 Connect-
icut established its own PSRB. The Connecticut PSRB is a state agency to which the
Superior Court commits persons who are found NGRI with a primary mission of pub-
lic safety (Psychiatric Security Review Board, n.d.). The PSRB is charged with
reviewing the status of acquittees committed to its jurisdiction through an administra-
tive hearing process and orders the level of supervision and treatment for the acquittee
necessary to protect the public. Connecticut’s PSRB is composed of six members
appointed by the Governor and confirmed by either house of the General Assembly.
The board members are designated to represent professional expertise in the fields of
law, probation/parole services, psychology, psychiatry, victim services, and the interest
of the general community. At the time of commitment by the Superior Court, the
PSRB takes jurisdiction over the acquittee and makes subsequent determinations as
to the hospital setting (i.e., maximum vs. enhanced security) in which an acquittee is
to be confined and when and under what circumstances an acquittee can be released
into the community.

The PSRB carries out this responsibility by the review of reports submitted every
6 months on the acquittee and by conducting adversarial hearings at least every 2 years
or at such time that the provider of treatment or the acquittee applies to the PSRB for a
change in supervision status. The general findings and orders that the PSRB issues are:
confinement in a maximum security facility, confinement in an enhanced security facil-
ity, confinement in a hospital for the mentally ill, placement with the Commissioner of
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Developmental Services, approval of temporary leave (TL), approval of conditional
release (CR) with specific conditions, modification or termination of CR, and recom-
mendations to the court for discharge or continued commitment to the PSRB.

When TL is granted, the acquittee is allowed access off hospital grounds into the
community without staff escort for a defined period of time, ranging from a few hours
to 7 nights a week. While on TL, the hospital maintains responsibility for all of the
acquittee’s psychiatric and medical care. Even when the acquittee has been granted
TL for 7 nights weekly, the acquittee is still expected to return to the hospital once
per week for a psychiatric evaluation. CR is granted once the PSRB has determined that
an acquittee can be safely treated and supervised in the community. Mandated condi-
tions are individualized to the acquittee and can include residential programming,
therapeutic and psychiatric services, supervision by the Office of Adult Probation,
and restrictions on association and movement. For example, acquittees are most often
forbidden from associating with known criminals, possessing weapons, or visiting
businesses whose primary purpose is the sale of alcohol. While on CR, all psychiatric
and medical care for an acquittee is transferred to community providers.

NGRI REHOSPITALIZATION AND RECIDIVISM
LITERATURE

The arrest rates for those engaged in psychiatric treatment have long been of interest
to the psychiatric and criminal justice communities. In 1979, Rabkin reviewed the lit-
erature on arrest rates following discharge from a psychiatric hospital for those with
and without a prior history of arrests (Rabkin, 1979), finding that those with such a
history had significantly higher rates of post-discharge arrest (19-56% vs. 2-4%).
Harris and Koepsell completed two studies comparing the rates of criminal recidi-
vism of incarcerated individuals who suffered from a mental illness at the time of
their arrest with those who did not, but in both instances they were unable to find
a statistically significant difference between these groups (Harris & Koepsell, 1996,
1998). Rice and Harris (1992) specifically examined recidivism following release
from prison in schizophrenic versus non-schizophrenic offenders, finding a statisti-
cally significant difference with higher rates of recidivism for non-schizophrenic
offenders (53% vs. 35%) and a trend toward higher rates of rearrests for violent
crimes in the non-schizophrenic offenders.

Comparing Insanity Acquittees with Other Groups

In studies comparing rates of recidivism of acquittees with those of other offender pop-
ulations, there have been mixed results, although factors predictive of recidivism have
been identified, and generally longer periods of follow-up with larger samples have
demonstrated lower relative rates of recidivism amongst acquittees.

The first comparison is to rates of rearrest and recidivism for mentally ill and non-
mentally ill offenders in Connecticut. In the State of Connecticut’s 2011 Annual Recid-
ivism Report, the Office of Policy and Management reported a 2-year rearrest rate for
all sentenced offenders released in 2008 of 56% and a recidivism (defined as
re-conviction) rate of 39% (Annual Recidivism Report, 2011). In examining mentally
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ill offenders, in particular, a study by Kesten, Leavitt-Smith, Rau, Shelton, Zhang,
Wagner & Trestman (2012) evaluated rearrest and recidivism rates for mentally ill
offenders who participated in a specialized re-entry program [Connecticut Offender
Reentry Program (CORP)] focused on building life skills and providing community
supports compared with mentally ill offenders who received standard treatment and
release planning services from the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services
(DMHAS) (Kesten ez al., 2012). The study found 6-month rearrest rates of 14.1% for
CORP participants as compared with 28.3% for the DMHAS group, and identified
younger age and co-occurring substance use as predictive of reincarceration.

Others have focused specifically on those found NGRI and compared rates of recid-
ivism in insanity acquittees with those of criminal offenders with or without a history of
mental illness (see Table 1). One of the earliest studies in this area was the comparison
by Morrow and Peterson (1966) of reconviction rates of insanity acquittees with crim-
inal sexual psychopaths (CSPs) over a 5-year period following discharge from
Missouri’s maximum security hospital. They found that the 37% reconviction rate of
NGRI acquittees was greater than the 25% rate for CSP patients, but was almost
identical to the 35% rate of a contemporaneous sample of federal prisoners. Two
subsequent studies did not find significant differences in post-institutional arrest rates
of insanity acquittees compared with a matched group of non-mentally ill felons
(Pantle, Pasewark, & Steadman, 1980; Pasewark, Pantle, & Steadman, 1982). How-
ever, two later studies did find significantly lower rearrest rates among acquittees when
compared with mentally ill offenders, non-mentally ill offenders, and a group of pris-
oners matched by offense type (Rice, Harris, Lang, & Bell, 1990; Silver, Cohen, &
Spodak, 1989). Rice et al. explained that the differences in recidivism rates observed
in their study were probably due to the lower prevalence of personality disorders and
substance use in acquittees and their higher level of supervision following discharge
(Rice er al., 1990). In examining the disparate findings of these two pairs of studies,
it appears that larger studies with longer follow-up periods were better equipped to
identify differences in recidivism rates amongst these groups.

Table 1. Studies comparing rates of recidivism of insanity acquittees with those of other criminal offenders

Study Comparison Sample Duration of NGRI Comparison
group size follow-up rate group rate(s)
Morrow and CSP n=44 NGRI 5 years 37% 25%
Peterson (1966)** n=43 CSP
Pantle ez al. (1980) NMIO n=46 NGRI 6 years 24% 27%
n=46 NMIO
Pasewark ez al. NMIO n=50 NGRI 2 years 15% 18%
(1982) n=50 NMIO
Silver ez al. (1989)* MIO and n=127 NGRI 5 years 54% MIO - 73%
NMIO n=135 MIO NMIO - 65%
n=127 NMIO
Rice, Harris, Lang, MGP n=238 NGRI 7 years 41% 54%
and Bell (1990)*° n=238 MGP

NGRI, not guilty by reason of insanity; CSP, criminal sexual psychopaths; NMIO, non-mentally ill offenders;
MIO, mentally ill offenders; MGP, matched group of prisoners.

*Statistically significant difference in rate between NGRI and comparison group(s)

“Examined rates of reconviction as marker of recidivism, as opposed to all other studies which utilized rearrest
as marker of recidivism.

®Only assessed male acquittees/prisoners.
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Outcomes in Community-based Forensic Treatment

With the greater emphasis on community-based treatment in the United States in re-
cent decades, several studies have examined rates of recidivism and rehospitalization
among insanity acquittees following hospital discharge, with most studies generally
supporting the notion that more intensive community supervision contributes to lower
rates of recidivism with only a modest increase in rehospitalization (see Table 2).

In earlier studies of CR programs utilizing less rigorous community supervision, rates
of rearrest were high, ranging from 29% to 58% (Bogenberger, Pasewark, Gudeman, &
Bieber, 1987; Pasewark, Bieber, Bosten, Kiser, & Steadman, 1982; Spodak, Silver, &
Wright, 1984). A follow-up study reanalyzing the work of Pasewark, Bieber er al.
(1982) identified several factors that increased the risk of post-NGRI offenses 5-10

Table 2. Studies comparing rates of conditional release (CR) revocation, rehospitalization, and recidivism

Study State or Sample  Duration of Supervision QOutcomes
country size follow-up status in
community
Pasewark, Bieber NY n=133 5years CR/Released®  31% rehospitalized
et al. (1982) 29% rearrested
Spodak ez al. (1984) MD n=286 15 years CR 58% rearrested

29% convicted
13% incarcerated

Bogenberger et al. HI n=107 8years CR/Released®  40% rearrested

(1987)

Parker (2004) OH n=2383 5 years FACT 47% rehospitalized
5% rearrested

Simpson, Jones, Evans, NZ n=105 7.5years FCT <1% rearrested

and McKenna (2006)

Skipworth, Brinded, NZ n=135  28years FCT 15% reconvicted

Chaplow, and (2 years post-discharge)

Frampton (2006) 40% reconvicted
(10 years post-discharge)

Vitacco, Van Rybroek, WI n=363 5years CR 34% CR revocation

Erickson, Rogstad, Trip, (7% due to rearrest)

Harris and Miller (2008)

Ong, Carroll, Reid, AU n=25 3 years FCT 48% rehospitalized

and Deacon (2009) 4% rearrested

Smith, Jennings, and AK n=91 8 years FACT 29% rehospitalized®

Cimino (2010) 5% rearrested

Manguno-Mire, LA n=193 10years CR 30% CR revocation

Coffman, DelLand, (3% due to rearrest)

Thompson,

and Myers (2014)

Marshall, Vitacco, MD n=356  6years CR 55% rehospitalized

Read, and Harway 14% rearrested

(2014)

AU, Australia; NZ, New Zealand; FCT, forensic community treatment; FACT, forensic assertive commu-
nity treatment.

#Subjects had either been discharged from the hospital or were on an extended CR status; however, for those
discharged no details were provided about their level of supervision or treatment while in the community.
®60% of subjects were hospitalized following not guilty by reason of insanity (NGRI) acquittal and later
placed on CR following hospital discharge; 33% were never hospitalized but were immediately placed on
CR following NGRI acquittal; and 7% were unconditionally released following NGRI acquittal without
court-ordered treatment.

“Rehospitalization included admission to a residential or inpatient setting
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years following hospital discharge, including a greater number of pre-NGRI arrests,
more serious pre-NGRI crimes, psychosis, homicide as the NGRI offense, and escape
during their NGRI hospitalization (Bieber, Pasewark, Bosten, & Steadman, 1988).

In the 1990s, the focus on community-based forensic treatment and CR programs
for insanity acquittees intensified, with studies examining these programs beginning
to demonstrate reduced rates of recidivism. Kravitz and Kelly (1999) described in de-
tail a community-based forensic treatment program at the Isaac Ray Center in Chicago
for those NGRI acquittees on CR, demonstrating recidivism rates for their program of
19% and rehospitalization rates of 47% for the 43 subjects engaged in treatment during
the year 1996 (follow-up period not specified), a noted difference from the studies de-
scribed earlier. Callahan and Silver (1998a) studied CR revocation rates and reasons
for CR revocation among four states’ programs (CT, MD, NY, and OH). There were
43 individuals studied in CT from 1985 to 1987; 34.9% of them had their CR revoked
after a median length of time in the community of 3 years. The authors did not specif-
ically address rates of rearrest (Callahan & Silver, 1998a). Heilbrun and Griffin (1993)
reviewed the available literature on community-based forensic treatment programs in a
number of states and reported rearrest and rehospitalization rates for five states (IL,
OR, MD, CA, NY), finding that rearrest rates during CR ranged from 2% to 16%.
During longer-term follow-up after CR termination (7—15 years), rearrest rates ranged
from 42% to 56%, and estimates of rehospitalization rates ranged from 11% to 40%.
Lower rearrest and higher rehospitalization rates were found in Oregon with its PSRB
mechanisms after 4-7 years of follow-up (Heilbrun & Griffin, 1993). Wiederanders,
Bromley, and Choate (1997) compared CR outcomes in three states (NY, OR, CA),
finding the highest rearrest rate in New York (22% over 7 years), followed by Oregon
(15% over 8years) and then California (8% over 7 years).

Since the turn of the century, ongoing efforts have been focused on devising creative
and sophisticated community-based forensic treatment to increase successful out-
comes for insanity acquittees on CR or following discharge. Several studies have con-
tinued to build an evidence base demonstrating that such programs, including
forensic assertive community treatment (FACT), can contribute to reduced recidivism
amongst this population with only moderate reciprocal increases in rates of rehospital-
ization (Manguno-Mire et al., 2014; Marshall ez al., 2014; Parker, 2004; Smith ez al.,
2010; Vitacco et al., 2008) (see Table 2). Miraglia and Hall (2011) provided further
support for community-based treatment models by demonstrating that length of hospi-
talization had little effect on rearrest rates and that rearrest following hospital discharge
was mostly explained by demographic and criminogenic factors.

The topic of community-based forensic treatment for mentally ill offenders has
also been of great international interest (see Table 2). The studies by Ong er al
(2009) and Simpson et al. (2006) demonstrate rates of recidivism comparable to or
even less than the more recent American studies. Skipworth ez al. (2006) found sig-
nificantly higher rates of recidivism, but this may be related to the longer duration of
follow-up (which is often linked to higher recidivism rates) and the study follow-up
beginning in 1976, prior to the advent of more intensive community supervision. A
recent Canadian study by Crocker, Nicholls, Charette, and Seto (2014) evaluated
the influence of static and dynamic risk factors on review board discharge decisions,
finding that review boards were taking into account empirically validated risk factors
represented on the Historical Clinical Risk Management-20 (HCR-20) in making
their determinations.

Copyright © 2016 John Wiley & Sons, Ltd. Behav. Sci. Law (2016)
DOI: 10.1002/bsl





Connecticut PSRB

Several recent studies have examined factors that are related to success or failure on
CR or discharge. Manguno-Mire et al. (2014) reported that in Louisiana a higher risk
of CR revocation was associated with more severe mental illness, a greater number of
prior arrests, and a greater number of incidents while in the aftercare program. Success
was related to being on Social Security Disability Insurance, not having a personality
disorder diagnosis, and fewer incidents while on CR. Factors repeatedly found to be
predictive of CR or discharge revocation include greater number of prior arrests, de-
gree of violence of prior arrests, and treatment non-adherence during initial hospitali-
zation or while in community treatment programs (Callahan & Silver, 1998b; Lund,
Hofvander, Forsman, Anckarsater, & Nilsson, 2013; Manguno-Mire, Thompson,
Bertman-Pate, Burnett, & Thompson, 2007; Manguno-Mire et al., 2014; Marshall
et al., 2014; Monson, Gunnin, Fogel, & Kyle, 2001; Vitacco, Vanter, Erickson, &
Ragatz, 2014; Webster, Douglas, Eaves, & Hart, 1997).

Literature on Insanity Acquittees in Connecticut

Others have previously investigated insanity acquittees in Connecticut, although much
of this work occurred prior to the inception of the PSRB. This work revealed relatively
high rates of recidivism, as is consistent with prior research in other states predating the
advent of more intensive community supervision programs. Phillips and Pasewark
(1980) examined the length of institutionalization and rates of recidivism and rehospi-
talization for a group of 25 acquittees in CT who were found NGRI from 1970 to 1972
in comparison to a matched group of felons 7years following discharge. Of the
acquittees, 61% were rearrested and 44% were rehospitalized. Zonana, Wells, Getz,
and Buchanan (1990) compiled a comprehensive database of all those found NGRI
from 1970 to 1985 (just prior to the inception of the PSRB). Over that time, they iden-
tified 313 NGRI cases, and described their demographics, diagnoses, and criminal his-
tories. In this cohort, there was a male to female ratio of 10:1 and far more Whites than
minorities (68% White vs. 25% Black and 6% Hispanic). Regarding psychiatric diag-
noses, 63% had a psychotic illness, 18% had a personality disorder and 7% a substance
use disorder. Twenty-five percent of the group were acquitted of homicide and 55%
were acquitted of other crimes against persons (e.g., assault, sexual assault, or robbery).
In a second study, Zonana, Bartel, Wells, Buchanan, and Getz (1990) found that fac-
tors that predicted rearrest included number of prior arrests, being a racial minority,
having a non-psychotic diagnosis, and a non-married status. This earlier work is some-
what limited by its lack of comparison to other relevant populations.

Scott, Zonana, and Getz (1990) wrote one of the first articles describing
Connecticut’s PSRB. In it they outlined some of the differences between the Oregon
and Connecticut boards, the challenges in establishing Connecticut’s board, and the
changes in the treatment of acquittees following the institution of the PSRB in Con-
necticut. They also provided data on CR revocation rates. From 1985 to 1989, 13 of
the 45 acquittees (29%) placed on CR had it revoked and were returned to the hos-
pital — six due to a deteriorating psychiatric condition, three for failing substance
abuse screening, two for medication non-compliance, and two for arrest on drug-
related charges. The present study expands on this initial work by examining recidi-
vism outcomes for those discharged from the PSRB over the 30years since its
inception.
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Literature Regarding the Oregon PSRB

Given the analogous administrative systems for oversight of insanity acquittees in Con-
necticut and Oregon, the acquittees under the oversight of Oregon’s PSRB are the
closet comparison group to the Connecticut sample. Rogers, Bloom, and Manson
(1984) reviewed outcomes from the first 5years of Oregon’s PSRB from 1978 to
1982 and found that, of the 295 acquittees granted CR during that period, 13% were
charged with new crimes while on CR (7% for misdemeanors and 6% for felonies)
and 5% were re-convicted. Bloom, Williams, Rogers, & Barbur (1986) found that
for those granted CR under the Oregon PSRB from 1980 to 1983 who were engaged
in a community hospital day treatment program, 51% had their CR revoked with a
rearrest rate of 12% over a 3-year period; those individuals whose CR was revoked
were less engaged in treatment, had a greater number of crises, and were more likely
to live in shelters. In another study, Bloom, Rogers, Manson, & Williams (1986) ex-
amined the lifetime number of police contacts for those acquittees discharged from
the PSRB from 1978 to 1980. The duration of follow-up was 2-4 years post-
discharge (the analysis was completed in February 1982), revealing that 41% were
rearrested during that time frame following discharge, 71% for misdemeanors and
29% for felonies (20% of which were for “violent crimes” of assault, sexual assault,
and arson). Younger age and number of arrests prior to PSRB engagement were as-
sociated with post-discharge rearrest. The number of police contacts declined during
and after PSRB supervision, from seven police contacts/person before PSRB place-
ment to 0.6/person while under PSRB supervision, and then to 1.4 contacts per per-
son following discharge.

A recent review by Bloom and Buckley (2013) described the 34-year history of
Oregon’s PSRB from 1978 to 2012. Although revocation and recidivism rates for those
on CR or following discharge were not presented for the entire 34-year history, they did
describe more recent data from the final decade of the reporting period (2002-2011),
demonstrating an annual CR revocation rate ranging from 7% (in 2011) to 26% (in
2004), and that over that 10-year period 2.6% of all CR revocations were as a result
of new felony charges. They attributed these low felony recidivism rates to effective
CR plans, intensive community monitoring and prompt reporting of deviations from
treatment plans to the PSRB. Data on misdemeanor recidivism were not provided, as
only new felony charges were tabulated so as to remain consistent with the definition
of recidivism provided by the Oregon Department of Corrections for the purpose of
performance measure comparisons. The most recent available data indicate that from
2011 to 2015, those on CR had a lower cumulative annual recidivism rate of 0.64%
(Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board, n.d.).

Limitations of Prior Research

Despite an ample body of prior research assessing outcomes for NGRI acquittees, this
literature has some limitations. Some early studies comparing rates of recidivism of
acquittees with those of other offenders appeared to have an inadequate duration of
follow-up to identify statistically significant differences (e.g. Pantle er al., 1980;
Pasewark, Pantle ez al., 1982), which were later identified by studies with longer
follow-up periods. Studies also have not used a uniform definition for the term “recid-
ivism,” with some utilizing this term to refer to rates of rearrest, and others to refer to
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reconviction. Further, studies did not always identify the specific nature of the recidi-
vism beyond whether the charges were for a felony or misdemeanor, with no indication
as to whether the charges were for violent crimes, which would presumably be of
greater concern for public safety. Finally, the level and degree of community supervi-
sion for acquittees were not always clearly explicated, making it more challenging to
contextualize the outcomes of interest.

Past recidivism studies of acquittees monitored by a PSRB are few in number. Three
reports of recidivism among Oregon acquittees studied periods of 4, 5 and 10 years:
Bloom, Williams ez al.,, 1986; Rogers et al., 1984; and Bloom & Buckley, 2013,
respectively. Previous Connecticut reports are more limited, with one study of 25
acquittees in a 2-year period before the creation of the PSRB (Phillips & Pasewark,
1980), and another study of 45 acquittees over the first 5years of the PSRB (Scott
et al., 1990).

THE PRESENT STUDY

This study takes advantage of 30 years of experience with the CT PSRB, with all 177
acquittees who achieved some period of CR and all 196 acquittees discharged to com-
munity living from the supervision of the PSRB. The study was designed to examine
specific types of recidivism for the relevant acquittee subgroups within the Connecticut
population, and for the longest duration of community exposure possible for acquittees
over the 30-year existence of the PSRB. The study examines recidivism of insanity
acquittees for both revocation of CR and for rearrest, and provides data about the arrest
charges. This is done for periods of community exposure during both CR and following
final discharge from the PSRB and its monitoring procedures. Rates of arrest after dis-
charge from the CT PSRB have not been previously reported or studied. Given the sig-
nificant commitment of resources in the state devoted to the PSRB’s supervision,
monitoring, and community support of acquittees, these results have important policy
and public safety implications.

The hypotheses for the study were based in part on findings known previously about
this population (low rate of rearrest during CR, but higher rate of revocation of CR),
and anecdotal experience. Three specific hypotheses were proposed: CR data would
show continued low rates of rearrest and higher rates of revocation and rehospitaliza-
tion; acquittees who experienced periods of CR would be more successful in avoiding
arrest after discharge from the PSRB; and rates of arrest after discharge from the PSRB
would be modestly higher than during CR but still represent a significant level of
success for those individuals.

METHODS

The Connecticut PSRB has maintained a database of acquittees under its jurisdiction,
which includes revocations of CR. It also notes criminal recidivism in its annual
reports. Earlier this year, the PSRB and DMHAS did a search of individuals discharged
from the PSRB in the Connecticut Criminal Justice Information System to see whether
or not they have been subsequently rearrested. Thus, information was available to allow
examination of three aspects of recidivism related to CR among the population of
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insanity acquittees in Connecticut: revocations of CR (i.e., enforced return to the
hospital) and the reasons for the revocations; criminal arrests and convictions of
acquittees while under CR; and subsequent arrests of the 215 acquittees who had been
released from the PSRB.

The study population consisted of a total of 215 acquittees who have been
discharged from the jurisdiction of the PSRB. For this group, the mean length of stay
in the hospital was 9.8years (range < 1-39). The mean duration of the acquittees’
PSRB commitment was 12.9 years (range < 1-39). Mean age at time of discharge from
the hospital for this group was 43.6years (range 19-80), and the mean age at time of
discharge from the PSRB was 46.7 years (range 23-83). Of the group, 178 were male,
and 37 were female. The racial breakdown was as follows: 150 White, 47 Black, 13
Hispanic, and 4 other.

This work was determined by the Institutional Review Boards of Yale University and
DMHAS not to require review as it represents an evaluation of a unique program which
is not generalizable.

RESULTS

Over the 30-year period from July 1, 1985 to June 30, 2015, 177 insanity acquittees
attained CR at some point and 215 acquittees were released from the jurisdiction of
the PSRB. These two groups overlap substantially, but are not co-extensive. For exam-
ple, of the 177 acquittees who achieved CR, 147 have been released from the PSRB
itself. During this time period, a total of 365 individuals have been under the jurisdic-
tion of the PSRB.

Revocation of CR

The PSRB has the authority to have an individual returned from CR to the hospital for
examination at any time if the acquittee has violated terms of the CR plan, had a change

Table 3. Revocation of conditional release (CR)

Hearing results

Reason for revocation Termination of CR Modification of CR No change
Psychiatric decompensation 14 4 3
Supervision non-compliance 8 5 0
Treatment non-compliance 7 2 0
Alcohol use 6 0 1
Drugs 6 0 0
Medication non-compliance 2 0 0
Loss of program 2 0 0
Arrest 1 0 2
Away without leave (AWOL) 1 0 1
Inadequate supervision and treatment 1 0 0
Inappropriate phone calls 1 0 0
Inappropriate sexual behavior 1 0 0
Needs higher level of service 1 0 0
Sexual assault 1 0 0
Physical aggression 1 0 0
Law violation 0 0 1
Totals 53 11 8
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in mental condition, or absconded from the Board’s jurisdiction, or if the community
resources required by the CR plan become unavailable. The hospital then conducts
an evaluation for the Board hearing on the revocation order.

Of the 177 individuals who have achieved CR, 55 of them have had their CR revoked
at some point, representing a total of 73 revocations. There were 42 acquittees whose
CR was revoked once, 10 whose CR was revoked twice, one whose CR was revoked
three times and two whose CR was revoked four times. Table 3 lists the results of the
hearings on revocation and the reasons for the revocation. Terminations of CR are
most often based on psychiatric decompensation, substance use or non-compliance
with treatment or supervision. One CR was terminated by the death of an acquittee
who was on away without leave (AWOL) status. Fifty-three of the 73 revocations
(73%) resulted in termination of CR, with 11 resulting in modification of CR (15%),
and eight cases (11%) in which the acquittee was returned to the original CR plan after
the hospital evaluation.

Arrests on CR

Over a 30-year period, with 177 acquittees on some period of CR, there were a total
of only 4 arrests (2.3%). One of these arrests did not lead to revocation of CR, as it
was a breach of peace that the prosecutor did not pursue. The charges in two of the
arrests were dismissed. The other two arrests resulted in misdemeanor convictions,
one in FY 1986-87 and one in FY 1990-91. There were a total of ten motor vehicle
violations.

Timing of Discharges

There was no temporal pattern to the year of discharge. The mean number of
discharges per year for the years 1986-2014 (for which there were full-year data) was
7.3 (range 2-14) (see Figure 1).

The group of acquittees who were discharged from the PSRB included a large
percentage of individuals who had been acquitted of serious offenses, with the vast
majority (88%) charged with felonies. The largest numbers of offenses were Class B
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Figure 1. Individuals discharged from the Psychiatric Security Review Board by year.
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Table 4. Penal code classifications of not guilty by reason of insanity (NGRI) offenses for individuals
discharged from the Psychiatric Security Review Board

Penal code classification Frequency Percentage Cumulative percentage
A Felony 58 27 27

B Felony 94 43.7 70.7

C Felony 15 7 77.7

D Felony 23 10.7 88.4

A Misdemeanor 15 7 95.3

B Misdemeanor 7 3.3 98.6

C Misdemeanor 3 1.4 100

Total 215 100 100

Table 5. Most frequent acquittal charges for individuals discharged from the Psychiatric Security Review

Board

Charge Penal code Frequency Percentage Cumulative

classification percentage
Assault 1 B Felony 40 19 19
Murder A Felony 39 18 37
Arson 1 A Felony 16 7 44
Manslaughter 1 B Felony 15 7 51
Robbery 1 B Felony 12 6 57
Assault 2 D Felony 12 6 63
Sexual Assault 1 B Felony 7 3 66
Arson 2 B Felony 6 3 69
Manslaughter 1 with Firearm B Felony 5 2 71
Reckless Endangerment A Felony 5 2 73

felonies (43.7%), followed by Class A felonies (27%). The insanity defense is not com-
monly pursued for misdemeanor or lower level felony charges, given the strictures of
and lengthy commitments to the PSRB. The 25 misdemeanor cases in the sample of
discharged acquittees were all acquitted between 1979 and 2002, with 20 of those cases
being acquitted between 1983 and 1992, probably reflecting a growing awareness
among defense counsel of the liabilities to the defendant of such commitment in com-
parison to a maximum 1 year jail sentence (see Table 4).

The 10 most frequently encountered charges in this population are shown in Table 5.
The common Class A felonies were Murder and Arson 1. Assault 1 was the most
common charge, followed very closely by Murder. The common Class B felonies were
Assault 1, Manslaughter (with and without firearm), Robbery, Sexual Assault 1 and
Arson 2. In all but one of the 215 cases, the original charge was the same as the
acquittal charge; in one case the acquittee was originally charged with murder, but
was found NGRI of the charge of manslaughter first degree.

Reasons for Discharge from PSRB
It is also worth noting the reasons for discharge from the PSRB for this group of
acquittees. In Connecticut, PSRB commitment terms may be extended repeatedly by

motion of the state and an order of the court, based on the condition of the acquittee
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Table 6. Reasons for discharge from the Psychiatric Security Review Board

Reason Frequency Percentage Cumulative percentage
End of commitment 112 52.1 52.1
Discharge application approved 64 29.8 81.9

Death in hospital 19 8.8 90.7

Death after hospital discharge 16 7.4 98.1
Commitment overturned 4 1.9 100

Total 215 100 100

at the time. If the state does not move for re-commitment, then the acquittee is
discharged from the PSRB at the expiration of the original commitment order. The
most common reason for discharge is expiration of the term of commitment, with more
than half of the cases ending this way. Acquittees may also apply for discharge from the
PSRB and the court may grant such an application; this accounted for 30% of the
discharges in the sample. Among the 215 discharges were 35 deaths, accounting for
16% of the total. In a small number of cases, the insanity acquittal was overturned
following a motion by the defendant (see Table 6).

Of the 215 discharges, 135 individuals were discharged while on CR status.
Nineteen died in the hospital and were thus not on any release status. Twenty-two
individuals were on TL status when they were discharged from the PSRB, and 39
individuals were not on CR or TL status when discharged. The typical pattern is for
an acquittee to achieve TL status, then CR from the hospital, and finally discharge from
the PSRB. However, there are times when discharges occur for legal reasons, irrespec-
tive of the acquittee’s status.

Arrests after PSRB Discharge

After removing the 19 acquittees who died in the hospital, there were 196 acquittees
who were in the community subsequent to their discharge from the Board, and thus

18

16 -

14 -

12

10 - u Felony

@ Misdemeanor

OInfraction/fine

6 @ Unknown

First Second Third Fourth  Fifth Sixth

Figure 2. Arrests and rearrests of individuals post-discharge from the Psychiatric Security Review Board.
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had the potential for rearrest. The mean duration of exposure to the community for this
sample was approximately 12.5years (range 0-28). (There have been 13 known
deaths, with unknown dates of death, among the group following PSRB discharge.
This calculation takes account of an estimate of one-half the average community
exposure for 18 individuals, recognizing the possibility of an additional number of
unknown deaths.) Thirty-two (16.3%) of this subgroup of 196 were arrested. About
half of that group (17) were arrested a second time. There were 10 individuals
arrested three times, seven arrested four times, three arrested five times and one
arrested six times (see Figure 2).

Of the 17 first arrest felonies, 11 were Class D felonies, three were Class C felonies
(Risk of Injury to Child in two cases; Assault 3 and Burglary 2 in the third) and three
were Class B felonies (Larceny in one case, and Assault on Public Safety Worker in
two cases). Thirteen of the 32 total first arrests (40%) were for individuals released
during the first 5years of the Board’s operation from 1986 to 1990. The mean time
from PSRB discharge to first arrest was 5.8 years (range 0-29).

Felonies in the second arrest group consisted of three Class D felonies and one Class
C felony. The one felony in the third arrest was a Class D felony. In the fourth arrest,
there was one Class D and one Class B felony. The single felonies in the fifth and sixth
arrests were Class D felonies. Felonies accounted for 37% of all rearrests, misde-
meanors accounted for 50%, infractions for 8.6%, and 4.3% were unknown.

Table 7 illustrates the numbers rearrested among the group with the most frequent
acquittal charges, revealing a small numbers of rearrests. For example, of the 39 indi-
viduals acquitted of murder, only two (5%) were rearrested (for Assault 3 and Assault
on a Public Safety Worker) after discharge from the Board. Of the 40 individuals
acquitted of Assault 1, only two (5%) were rearrested (for Assault 2 and Possession
of Controlled Substance). Of 16 acquitted of Arson 1, two (12.5%) were arrested
(for Burglary 2 and Stalking/Harassment). Of the 15 acquitted of Manslaughter 1, only
one was rearrested (for Larceny). The original charges that most often resulted in rear-
rest after discharge were Robbery 1 (33%) and Assault 2 (25%). The mix of felony and
misdemeanor cases changed from the acquittal charge to the rearrest charge; felonies
accounted for 88% of the original charges, but only 53% of the first rearrests and
37% of the total rearrests.

The number of individuals who were and were not arrested in terms of whether they
had been on CR at the time of discharge is important to an analysis of the conceptual

Table 7. Most frequent original charges and rearrests

Original charge Acquittal charge frequency Number rearrested (%)
Assault 1 40 2 (5)

Murder 39 2(5.1)

Arson 1 16 2 (12.5)
Manslaughter 1 15 1(6.7)
Robbery 1 12 4 (33.3)
Assault 2 12 3 (25)

Sexual Assault 1 7 0 (0)

Arson 2 6 0 (0)
Manslaughter 1 with Firearm 5 0 (0)

Reckless Endangerment 5 0 (0)
Copyright © 2016 John Wiley & Sons, Ltd. Behav. Sci. Law (2016)
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Figure 3. Status at time of Psychiatric Security Review Board discharge.

Table 8. Arrest after discharge from the Psychiatric Security Review Board and conditional release (CR) at
time of discharge

Number on CR Percentage of subgroup Number not on CR
Arrest status at discharge (%) on CR at discharge at discharge (%)
Arrested (n=32) 15 (11.1) 46.9 17 (27.9)
Not arrested (7= 164) 120 (88.9) 73.1 44 (72.1)
Total (n=196) 135 (100) 68.9 61 (100)

7> =8.637; p=0.003.

Table 9. Primary diagnosis of 32 individuals arrested post-discharge from the Psychiatric Security Review

Board
Diagnosis Frequency Percentage
Schizophrenia 7 22
Schizoaffective disorder 7 22
Bipolar disorder 6 19
Personality disorder® 4 13
Antisocial personality disorder 2 6
Conduct disorder 1 3
Delusional disorder 1 3
Depression 1 3
Impulse control 1 3
Pathological gambling 1 3
Psychotic disorder 1 3
TOTAL 32 100

#Other than antisocial personality disorder.

model for the PSRB of the risk-mitigating effect of a period of CR supervision in the
community. Figure 3 displays the acquittees’ statuses at the time of discharge from
the PSRB for those who were arrested and those who were not arrested. The difference
between these groups is the percentage that were on CR. (The 19 acquittees who died
in hospital, and had no exposure to the community, are not included in Figure 3 or
Table 8.)

Table 8 displays the arrest/non-arrest status of the discharged acquittees compared
with their status at the time of discharge. Of the acquittees who were on CR at the time
of discharge (total=135), 15 (11%) were arrested. Of the acquittees who were not on
CR at the time of discharge (total=61 on either TL only or no CR/no TL), 17
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(27.9%) were arrested. This is a statistically significant difference (p=0.003). The
subgroup who were not arrested had a much higher percentage of acquittees on CR
at discharge than the subgroup who were arrested (73.1 vs. 46.9).

Table 9 illustrates the primary diagnoses of the 32 individuals arrested following
discharge from the PSRB. This was a group composed largely of individuals with
serious mental illnesses (~72%). A small minority (6%) had a primary diagnosis of
antisocial personality disorder, with another 13% having other personality disorders.
[These are the diagnoses given after long periods of observation in the hospital, and
do not necessarily match the diagnoses proffered at the individuals’ trials. In Connect-
icut, the insanity defense standard is that the defendant “lacked substantial capacity,
as a result of mental disease or defect, either to appreciate the wrongfulness of his
conduct or to control his conduct within the requirements of the law.” The statutory
exclusions of “mental disease” for purposes of the insanity defense are voluntary
intoxication and “an abnormality manifested only by repeated criminal or otherwise
antisocial conduct or... pathological or compulsive gambling” (Connecticut General
Statutes. 53a-13, n.d.).]

A majority of the individuals who were arrested had a co-occurring substance use
disorder (69%) with a significant proportion of co-occurring personality disorder
(34%). There were smaller numbers for co-occurring intellectual disability (16%)
and sexual disorder (6%). The two individuals with co-occurring sexual disorders were
not arrested for sexual assaults (Assault 3/Assault Public Safety Worker and Assault 3/
Larceny 2/Prostitution).

Length of stay in hospital and under the PSRB varied significantly between the
group not arrested (n=164) and the group arrested (z=32) (see Table 10).

Race was not a statistically significant variable in determining whether a former
acquittee was rearrested (p=0.1). Rearrest rates for African-Americans (8.9%) and
Hispanics (8.3%) were smaller than for Caucasians (18.5%). Gender trended toward
significance (p=0.06). Thirty out of 161 males (18.6%) and two out of 35 females
(5.7%) were rearrested.

DISCUSSION

The PSRB is an Executive Branch agency charged with the centralized monitoring of
insanity acquittees through its quasi-judicial procedures, backed by judicial authority.
The PSRB holds hearings approximately every 2weeks, and issues elaborate memo-
randa of decisions, granting or denying CR applications and detailing all aspects of
approved CR plans for insanity acquittees. The level of scrutiny that is applied by the
PSRB is preceded by layers of hierarchical decision-making at the hospital and commu-
nity mental health center levels about risk management in individual cases. The results

Table 10. Mean length of stay and arrest status

Arrested Not arrested
In Hospital 5.8 years (range 0—19) 10.7 years (range 0-39)
Under PSRB 7.75 years (range 0-21) 13.9 years (range 0-39)

Mann-Whitney U = 1,589, Wilcoxon W =2,117, p =0.000. PSRB, Psychiatric Security Review Board.
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of the examinations conducted here illustrate the several ways in which the PSRB sys-
tem appears to be highly effective.

Two-thirds of acquittees discharged from the hospital on CR have been able to suc-
cessfully maintain their release status. One-third of the acquittees (31.1%) had their
CR revoked, some more than once, most often for clinical reasons. Psychiatric decom-
pensation, substance use and failure to participate in treatment as required are consid-
ered serious risk factors for reoffense and result in rehospitalization in the vast majority
of revocations. But rehospitalization is not an automatic response in that 15% of revo-
cations result only in modification of the CR and 11% result in resumption of the re-
lease plan. This demonstrates the individualized nature of PSRB decisions and
reflects the adversarial nature of the proceedings. This rate of revocation is significantly
lower than in two reported studies (Kravitz & Kelly, 1999; Marshall et al., 2014), com-
parable to those reported in several other studies (Manguno-Mire er al, 2014;
Pasewark, Bieber er al., 1982; Vitacco er al., 2008), and slightly higher than the 29%
rate of revocation reported in CT in the first 5 years of the PSRB (Scott ez al., 1990).

These CR procedures are highly effective in that there have been no felony arrests
and only four misdemeanor arrests among the 177 acquittees who have been on CR
over a 30-year period, resulting in two misdemeanor convictions and two dismissed
charges. This is equivalent to the lowest rates of recidivism on CR observed in the
literature (2-3%) (Heilbrun & Griffin, 1993; Manguno-Mire et al., 2014), and signifi-
cantly lower than other reported rates, which ranged from 7% to 29% (Kravitz & Kelly,
1999; Pasewark, Bieber er al, 1982; Rogers et al., 1984; Vitacco et al., 2008;
Wiederanders ez al., 1997). The absence of felony arrests on CR is an important result
in that it demonstrates that clinicians and monitoring officials were able to offer com-
munity release to acquittees without compromising public safety. Most likely this was
due to heightened scrutiny of and alertness to individual risk factors, with revocation
employed swiftly when necessary to halt errant clinical and risk trajectories. The data
on CR confirm the first hypothesis: there is a low rate of rearrest on CR (2.3%), with
a higher rate of revocation and rehospitalization (31.1%).

The vast majority of acquittees discharged from the PSRB’s jurisdiction and scrutiny
were also not rearrested in the community (83.7%), with 91% not rearrested for a
felony charge, with a mean exposure time in the community of approximately 12 years.
This represents a rearrest rate approximating the 15% arrest rate for acquittees in one
study (Pasewark, Pantle ez al., 1982), but that study had only a 2-year follow-up period
and arrest rates generally rise with longer follow-up. The low rearrest rate in the current
PSRB sample signifies a higher rate of successful community adaptation than reported
in several other studies of acquittees in various types of community exposure, where
rearrest rates ranged from 24% to 54% with 2- to 15-year follow-up periods (Bloom,
Rogers ez al., 1986; Morrow & Peterson, 1966; Pantle er al., 1980; Rice ez al., 1990; Sil-
ver et al., 1989; Spodak ez al., 1984).

The total felony/misdemeanor mix in this sample was somewhat higher than that
reported by Bloom, Rogers er al. (1986) from those arrested after discharge from the
Oregon PSRB: CT felony portion of all arrests=37%; OR felony portion of
arrests = 29%. Felonies accounted for 53% of first rearrests in the Connecticut sample.

These results also compare favorably with rearrest rates for: convicted offenders in
Connecticut (16.3% for discharged acquittees over a 12-year approximate mean
duration of community exposure vs. 56% for released offenders in a 2-year follow-up)
(Annual Recidivism Report, 2011); mentally ill offenders released in Connecticut
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(28.3% rearrest rate over 6 months) (Kesten er al., 2012); mentally ill offenders released
in a specialized re-entry program in Connecticut (14.1% rearrest rate over 6 months)
(Kesten et al., 2012); and mentally ill and non-mentally ill offenders in studies in other
states with a range of 18-73% recidivism over 2- to 7-year follow-up periods (Pantle ez
al., 1980; Pasewark, Pantle ez al., 1982; Rice et al., 1990; Silver ez al., 1989).

The present results tend to confirm the third hypothesis that arrests after discharge
from the PSRB (16.3%) would be modestly higher than arrests during CR (2.3%),
but still represent a significant level of success in the community (83.7% not arrested).
The latter point is clearly true. It is possible to argue that the increase in the rate of
arrest is more than modest, even though the absolute arrest rate after discharge from
the PSRB compares quite favorably with other populations of offenders.

In the sample of 215 discharged acquittees, being on CR at the time of discharge
was a statistically significant factor in mitigating the risk of rearrest, confirming the
second hypothesis that CR experience would be associated with greater community
success after discharge from the PSRB. This finding is consistent with the substantial
literature demonstrating the value of a period of community supervision and
programming in reducing recidivism in criminal justice populations (Council of State
Governments Justice Center, 2014). Age, gender, and race did not demonstrate
statistically significant correlations with rearrest following PSRB discharge in this
study population.

In contrast to results in New York (Miraglia & Hall, 2011), this study reveals a
significant effect of length of stay in the hospital on rate of rearrest. There was a similar
effect in the present study with duration of PSRB commitment. The group who were
not arrested had mean lengths of stay in both conditions approximately 1.8 times
longer than the group who were arrested. Clearly, more time available for treatment
and supervision allows for enhanced stability prior to discharge. What has not yet been
analyzed is why the 32 individuals who were arrested were discharged so much earlier
than their more successful counterparts. It has thus not been determined whether the
arrested group was potentially less stable at discharge but discharged nonetheless for
some reason, or whether the group was discharged as recommended but with unappre-
ciated significant risk factors or unforeseeable circumstances which resulted in eventual
rearrest. Further analysis may help to determine the extent to which length of stay is a
proxy for increased age at discharge; the latter would be expected to have some mitigat-
ing effect on rearrest rates independent of the length of time in hospital or under the
PSRB.

The vast majority of the 32 former PSRB clients in the study who were rearrested
were diagnosed with serious mental illnesses. They were not a group of people with
antisocial personality, although a third of them had co-occurring personality disor-
ders. The study methodology did not examine the presence of criminogenic factors
in this population, however, which figured more prominently in the New York study
(Miraglia & Hall, 2011). It is unclear, therefore, whether other interventions might
have been employed to further decrease the rate of criminal rearrest following
discharge. Also unknown from this study is the status of clinical engagement of this
group at the time of rearrest, so the presence or effectiveness of clinical interventions
cannot be described. The present database did not include diagnostic information for
the 164 acquittees who were not arrested. In future efforts, it would be useful to
investigate whether there were diagnostic differences between the arrested and not
arrested subgroups.
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In future studies, it will be helpful to conduct idiographic analyses of the 32
rearrested individuals for actuarial (as well as individual circumstantial) risk factors that
were evident at the time of arrest. Such analysis could reveal common themes of missed
opportunities for enhanced intervention that might have prevented the rearrest. It
would also be helpful to reanalyze the results in discrete periods from 1991 to 2015,
which could then be compared with the first 5 years of the PSRB to look for trends over
time and what factors of acquittal, release or management may have influenced any de-
tected differences. Similarly, further analysis should be conducted of this discharged
population over specified time intervals following discharge; this would allow more di-
rect comparisons with other studies that have utilized durations of 2, 5 and 7 years or
longer to detail rearrest rates. Such an approach would also permit the calculation of
annual conviction rates and survival curve analysis.

Available comparisons with the analysis conducted thus far reveals that the invest-
ments in time, energy and resources in the PSRB mechanism, including significant pe-
riods of hospitalization, result in effective management of the risks of recidivism, both
during and subsequent to commitment to the PSRB. These results support the contin-
uation of current policies and procedures in addressing public safety goals. How these
policies and procedures affect the promotion of recovery principles in service to this
population is another important topic for future study. For example, it would be useful
to investigate whether earlier movement to CR and community reintegration would
achieve the same positive results on rate of rearrest. In other words, if the use of CR
could significantly mitigate the risk of rearrest even with shorter hospital length of stay,
public safety would be unaffected while promoting greater hope, autonomy and citizen-
ship for acquittees (Rowe & Baranoski, 2000; Rowe & Pelletier, 2012).

CONCLUSIONS

The hypotheses for the study were largely confirmed. This study reveals a very low rate
of arrest during CR (equal to the lowest rate reported in the literature), with no felony
arrests. This is achieved without excessive reliance on revocation of CR, as the revoca-
tion rates in this study are comparable to many other studies and lower than some. This
first examination of outcomes after discharge from the Connecticut PSRB demon-
strates that the vast majority of individuals are not rearrested (83.7%), with only 9%
rearrested for felonies. This 16.3% total rearrest rate compares favorably to other stud-
ies of discharged acquittees and to other offender populations, especially given the
shorter follow-up periods in nearly all the other studies. Acquittees who have experi-
ence on CR in the community show a statistically significant improvement in rearrest
rate after PSRB discharge compared with those acquittees discharged with no CR ex-
perience. The present results do not reveal whether the positive effects of CR experi-
ence could be achieved with shorter length of stay in the hospital and/or shorter
duration under the PSRB’s jurisdiction.
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
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On Jun 23, 2016, at 2:49 PM, Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org> wrote:
















Tobias,



As Simrat and I begin to think about our upcoming AAPL presentation together, I think it would be helpful if we reviewed your recent article about the CT PSRB. Do you have a copy you can send to me? Thanks,

 Juliet



 



Juliet Britton, J.D.



Executive Director



Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board



610 SW Alder St. Ste 420



Portland, OR  97205



Phone: (503) 229-5596



After-Hours Cell: (503) 781-3602



Fax: (503) 224-0215



 














From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: MOORE Sid * PSRB; MOELLER Laura * PSRB; BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: Send me CT study

Date: Thursday, April 20, 2017 1:18:16 PM

Recidivism

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
mailto:Laura.Moeller@oregon.gov
mailto:Shelley.Banfe@oregon.gov

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Psychiatric Security Review Board * PSRB
Subject: Accepted: Conf Call - Post-PSRB Recidivism Paper



mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
mailto:psrb@oregon.gov

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB
Subject: Accepted: PSRB Post-Recidivism Conference Call



mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
mailto:Ashley.Wilsey@oregon.gov

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB
Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper
Date: Monday, March 20, 2017 3:14:55 PM

No timeline but | don’t want it to go on forever in limbo. April is fine. Juliet

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

Sent: Monday, March 20, 2017 2:41 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

That was what | did for the doodle poll, and unfortunately it turned out no specific time worked for
everyone. I’'m going to try and see if there’s a general time on a certain day (mornings or afternoons)
that work best for everyone and see if they match up with your availability in April. If that makes any
sense. | think it’ll be easier to gauge a time that works for everyone using general timeframes vs the
doodle poll.

Was there a timeline for this — does it need to be done before a specific date in April?

Thanks —

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
mailto:ashley.wilsey@oregon.gov

Sent: Monday, March 20, 2017 2:38 PM
To: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB
Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

Next time, look at my calendar and pick dates and times that | am available and send out doodle
dates that work for me.

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
Sent: Monday, March 20, 2017 2:37 PM

To: Elena Balduzzi Psy. D. (ebalduzzi622@gmail.com); Wil Berry (Wil.Berry@deschutes.org); Sethi Simrat
(SIMRAT.SETHI@dhsoha.state.or.us); Joseph Bloom
Cc: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

Hi, all —

It looks like, judging from the Doodle Poll that there is no specific time between tomorrow and April
4 that works out for everyone. Could you guys let me know what dates and general times (morning
or afternoon) that you're available between April 4 and April 30?

Thank you —

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
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 2:56 PM


http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx
mailto:Juliet.britton@oregon.gov
mailto:ebalduzzi622@gmail.com
mailto:Wil.Berry@deschutes.org
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To: Elena Balduzzi Psy. D. (ebalduzzi622@gmail.com); Wil Berry (Wil.Berry@deschutes.orq); Sethi Simrat
(SIMRAT.SETHI@dhsoha.state.or.us)

Cc: Joseph Bloom; WILSEY Ashley * PSRB

Subject: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

Hi all,

The legislative session has be a bit distracted but | don’t want to lose momentum regarding our
previous discussions about studying post-PSRB recidivism. | wanted to see you all want to set up a
conference call to discuss some basic parameters so we can tag staff to start gathering data and get
OHSU approval. What | know so far:

1. We have Oregon State Police permission to pull criminal histories of former PSRB Clients

2. | have permission from my general counsel to share information with non-PSRB entities (Wil
and Simrat) if confidentiality agreements are signed.

3. OHA will likely have data and can let us know which clients have accessed mental health
services after PSRB ends (if we decide to study factors beyond just whether they were
rearrested or not — e.g. did they enter the civil commitment system or voluntarily in
services?)

4. Wil is the only author who can apply for OHSU IRB and since we will be dealing with non-
identifying info, it would be an expedited process. | think a 1 page application.

5. Below are the total discharges for the last 5, 10 and 15 years:

2001 | 2006 | 2011
Total Terms Discharged 74 71
No Mental Disease/Defect | 1 13 8
Not a Substantial Danger/No Longer a Danger 6 4 9
Lapsed | 43 54 47
Death 4 3 7
Suicide 0 0 0
Federal Court Order | 0 0 0
Oregon Court of Appeals/Supreme Court 1 0 0
Early Discharges 12 19 24
Total Clients Discharged | 55 73 70

| am going to ask Ashley to send you all a doodle poll so we can schedule a call discuss next steps. Let
me know if you have any questions,

Thanks,
Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director

Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St. Ste 420

Portland, OR 97205


mailto:ebalduzzi622@gmail.com
mailto:Wil.Berry@deschutes.org
mailto:SIMRAT.SETHI@dhsoha.state.or.us

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
Date: Monday, March 20, 2017 2:43:10 PM

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
or afternoon) that you’re available between April 4 and April 30?

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
No Mental Disease/Defect 1 13 8
Not a Substantial Danger/No Longer a Danger 6 4 9
Lapsed | 43 54 47
Death 4 3 7
Suicide | 0 0 0
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

Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Re: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper
Wednesday, March 15, 2017 8:37:16 AM

image001.jpg

Do we have their names?

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

On Mar 15, 2017, at 8:09 AM, BANFE Shelley * PSRB <Shelley.Banfe@oregon.gov> wrote:

Only what's in the discretionary discharges slide in the power point mastersfile.

Sent from my iPod

On Mar 15, 2017, at 7:49 AM, BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
<Juliet.Britton@aoregon.gov> wrote:

Do you have the SHRP discharges data? Broken down by type?

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
juliet.britton@or egon.gov

Begin forwarded message:

From: SETHI SIMRAT <simrat.sethi @state.or.us>
Date: March 14, 2017 at 4:01:53 PM PDT
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Health




To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

<Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov>, "Elena Balduzzi Psy. D.
(ebalduzzi622@gmail.com)"”
<ebalduzzi622@gmail.com>, "Wil Berry
(Wil.Berry@deschutes.org)”

<Wil.Berry@deschutes.org>

Cc: Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu>, WILSEY
Ashley * PSRB <Ashley.Wil oregon.gov>
Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB
Recividsm Paper

Hello All,

| think we should also include SHRP
(mostly but not all early discharges) and
GEI-Misdemeanor (mostly end of term
discharges or discharged prior to end of
term from OSH) patients, if not included
already.

Simrat.

Simrat Sethi, MD
Supervising Physician
Oregon State Hospital
simrat.sethi@state.or.us
Desk 503-945-8846

Cell 503-932-6361

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This email may contain information that is
privileged, confidential, or otherwise
exempt from disclosure under applicable
law. If you are not the addressee or it
appears from the context or otherwise that
you have received this email in error,
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please advise me immediately by reply
email, keep the contents confidential, and
immediately delete the message and any
attachments from your system.

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

[mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 2:56 PM

To: Elena Balduzzi Psy. D. (ebalduzzi622 @gmail.com)
<ebalduzzi622 @gmail.com>; Wil Berry
(Wil.Berry@deschutes.org) <Wil.Berry@deschutes.org>;
Sethi Simrat <SIMRAT.SETHI@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Cc: Joseph Bloom <bloomj@ohsu.edu>; WILSEY Ashley *
PSRB <Ashley.Wilsey@oregon.gov>

Subject: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm
Paper

Hi all,

The legislative session has be a bit distracted but | don’t
want to lose momentum regarding our previous discussions
about studying post-PSRB recidivism. | wanted to see you all
want to set up a conference call to discuss some basic
parameters so we can tag staff to start gathering data and
get OHSU approval. What | know so far:
<!|--[if IsupportLists]-->1. <!--[endif]-->We have Oregon
State Police permission to pull criminal histories of
former PSRB Clients
<I--[if IsupportLists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->] have
permission from my general counsel to share
information with non-PSRB entities (Wil and Simrat)
if confidentiality agreements are signed.
<I--[if IsupportLists]-->3.  <!--[endif]-->OHA will likely
have data and can let us know which clients have
accessed mental health services after PSRB ends (if
we decide to study factors beyond just whether they
were rearrested or not — e.g. did they enter the civil
commitment system or voluntarily in services?)
<I--[if IsupportLists]-->4. <!--[endif]-->Wil is the only
author who can apply for OHSU IRB and since we will
be dealing with non-identifying info, it would be an
expedited process. | think a 1 page application.
<|--[if IsupportLists]-->5. <l--[endif]-->Below are the
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total discharges for the last 5, 10 and 15 years:

2001 | 2006 | 2011
Total Terms Discharged 74 71
No Mental Disease/Defect | 1 13 8
Not a Substantial Danger/No Longer a Danger 6 4 9
Lapsed | 43 54 47
Death | 4 7
Suicide 0
Federal Court Order 0
Oregon Court of Appeals/Supreme Court 0
Early Discharges | 12 19 24
Total Clients Discharged | 55 73 70

| am going to ask Ashley to send you all a doodle poll so we
can schedule a call discuss next steps. Let me know if you
have any questions,

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

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 2016

Juliet.britton@oregon.gov

<image001l.jpg>
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: Fwd: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper
Date: Wednesday, March 15, 2017 7:49:40 AM

Attachments: image001.jpg

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

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB <Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov>, "Elena Balduzzi Psy.
D. (ebalduzzi622@gmail.com)" <ebalduzzi622@gmail.com>, "Wil Berry

(Wil.Berry@deschutes.org)" <Wil.Berry@deschutes.org>
Cc: Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu>, WILSEY Ashley * PSRB

<Ashley.Wil oregon.gov>
Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

Hello All,

| think we should also include SHRP (mostly but not all early
discharges) and GEI-Misdemeanor (mostly end of term
discharges or discharged prior to end of term from OSH)
patients, if not included already.

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

This email may contain information that is privileged,
confidential, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under
applicable law. If you are not the addressee or it appears from
the context or otherwise that you have received this email in
error, please advise me immediately by reply email, keep the
contents confidential, and immediately delete the message
and any attachments from your system.

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 2:56 PM

To: Elena Balduzzi Psy. D. (ebalduzzi622 @gmail.com) <ebalduzzi622 @gmail.com>; Wil

Berry (Wil.Berry@deschutes.org) <Wil.Berry@deschutes.org>; Sethi Simrat
<SIMRAT.SETHI@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Cc: Joseph Bloom <bloomj@ohsu.edu>; WILSEY Ashley * PSRB
<Ashley.Wilsey@oregon.gov>
Subject: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

Hi all,

The legislative session has be a bit distracted but | don’t want to lose momentum
regarding our previous discussions about studying post-PSRB recidivism. | wanted to
see you all want to set up a conference call to discuss some basic parameters so we can
tag staff to start gathering data and get OHSU approval. What | know so far:
<I--[if IsupportLists]-->1. <!--[endif]-->We have Oregon State Police permission to
pull criminal histories of former PSRB Clients
<I--[if IsupportLists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->| have permission from my general counsel
to share information with non-PSRB entities (Wil and Simrat) if confidentiality
agreements are signed.
<|--[if IsupportLists]-->3. <!--[endif]-->OHA will likely have data and can let us
know which clients have accessed mental health services after PSRB ends (if we
decide to study factors beyond just whether they were rearrested or not — e.g.
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did they enter the civil commitment system or voluntarily in services?)

<|--[if IsupportLists]-->4. <l--[endif]-->Wil is the only author who can apply for
OHSU IRB and since we will be dealing with non-identifying info, it would be an
expedited process. | think a 1 page application.

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->5. <!--[endif]-->Below are the total discharges for the last
5, 10 and 15 years:

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

| am going to ask Ashley to send you all a doodle poll so we can schedule a call discuss
next steps. Let me know if you have any questions,

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
Subject: Re: Your recent article with Joe Bloom
Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 7:58:27 PM

| would love to listen to your ideas on these civil topics....let me know when you have afree
hour so.....my next paper will be back in GEI land. Going to study recidivism a bit more.

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

On Mar 14, 2017, at 5:57 PM, Bob Joondeph <bob@droregon.org> wrote:

Hi Juliet,

Thanks for your thoughtful response. We should chat about this sometime since it has
a long history about which | am not particularly unbiased.

Best,

Bob

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 2:43 PM

To: Bob Joondeph
Subject: RE: Your recent article with Joe Bloom

Hi Bob,

I didn’t really view that article as pro-TAC necessarily. When | think of TAC, | equate
that to AOT — beyond that, I'm not sure what else TAC advocates for.

Believe it or not, | am pretty neutral on the policy of expanding CC. Frankly, I'm not
even sure an expansion is needed ....I think the paper questions whether the current
law has been implemented as intended. My contribution to the paper was more the
legal history of CC and how our legal colleagues are implementing the law. I'm most
interested in highlighting the attorney/judges’ compliance (or maybe lack thereof) with
the law. The CC standard was made easier in the 1980’s yet the number of CCs has
declined significantly and CC is getting overturned for judge and attorney actions at a
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phonemical rate compared to other appeals (judges can’t seem to read the AMIP their
rights correctly and attorneys are not creating a good record for the appeals court to
review). From a policy standpoint, | would like to see some further study as to why this
State has criminalized mental illness more, rather than less, in the last 20 years,
especially since overall crime is going down.

| liked the piece in the Oregonian about the Multnomah County Jail you all did.

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
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 9:08 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
Subject: Your recent article with Joe Bloom

Hi Juliet,
| didn’t know you area TAC fan. Are you going to be supporting an expansion of
civil commitment in Oregon?

http://jaapl.org/content/45/1/52

Best,
Bob
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: SETHI SIMRAT
Subject: RE: Post jurisdictional recidivism study
Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 4:40:49 PM

| like these data points, too. | think since it’s the first study, we should just study re-arrest and look at
characteristics you mention (length of PSRB supervision, reason for EQJ, length at OSH or CR, etc).

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

From: Sethi Simrat [mailto:simrat.sethi@state.or.us]
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 4:24 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: Post jurisdictional recidivism study

Just my thoughts today.
Thanks.
Simrat.

Simrat Sethi, MD
Supervising Physician
Oregon State Hospital
simrat.sethi@state.or.us
Desk 503-945-8846

Cell 503-932-6361

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE
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This email may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or
otherwise exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not
the addressee or it appears from the context or otherwise that you have
received this email in error, please advise me immediately by reply
email, keep the contents confidential, and immediately delete the
message and any attachments from your system.



From: Sethi Simrat

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: Post jurisdictional recidivism study
Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 4:24:18 PM
Attachments: Post jurisdictional recidivism study.docx

Just my thoughts today.
Thanks.
Simrat.

Simrat Sethi, MD
Supervising Physician
Oregon State Hospital
simrat.sethi@state.or.us
Desk 503-945-8846

Cell 503-932-6361

calth

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
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Post jurisdictional recidivism study



1. Does PSRB jurisdiction lead to a reduction in post-jurisdictional recidivism?

2. Does length of PSRB jurisdiction and age on discharge play a role in post jurisdictional recidivism?

3. Compare recidivism between early discharges (and compare not mentally/ dangerous v. mentally ill/not dangerous v. mentally ill and dangerous but no nexus) to end of jurisdiction discharges.



Do the findings support the assertion that GEI adjudication has a lasting effect on a decrease in recidivism post jurisdiction?



Do the findings differ pre and post 2012 requirements for GEI evaluations by certified evaluators? This gets at the appropriateness of the GEI pre and post 2012.



Does a history of repeated revocations or never being on conditional release during PSRB jurisdiction have a bearing on post jurisdictional recidivism?


From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: WILSEY Ashley * PSRB

Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper
Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 3:05:42 PM

Ask jane

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

Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 2:59 PM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Cc: BANFE Shelley * PSRB

Subject: RE: Getting back on track for Post-PSRB Recividsm Paper

Juliet — I've never used doodle before, is it something we have an account for? Shelley, are you
familiar with doodle? If you are, could you show me real quick how to use it?

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

2. 1have permission from my general counsel to share information with non-PSRB entities (Wil
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
Suicide
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

Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 3:01:01 PM

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

To: elena balduzzi
Subject: Re: if you have time....
Date: Wednesday, February 08, 2017 10:41:36 AM

See below......unrelated - have not forgot about the recidivism study --1 just need to get
through our budget process in Feb then will reach out to revisit and get going on that paper.

Bloom, J., Britton, J. & Berry, W. (expected March 2017), The Oregon Court of
Appeals and the Evolution of Oregon's Civil Commitment Statute, Behavioral
Sciences and the Law

Novosad, D, Banfe, S., Britton, J., Boom, J. (2016), Conditional Release
Placements of Insanity Acquitteesin Oregon: 2012-2014, Behavioral Sciences and
the Law. DOI:10.1002/bsl.2218

Britton, J.& Bloom, J. (2015), Oregon’s Gun Relief Program for Adjudicated
Mentally Il Persons: The Psychiatric Security Review Board, Behavioral Sciences
and the Law. DOI: 10.1002/bsl.2167

Novosad, D, Follansbee (Britton), J., Banfe, S., Boom, J. (2014), Statewide Survey
of Living Arrangements for Conditionally Released Insanity Acquittees, Behavioral
Sciences and the Law. DOI: 10.1002/bsl.2139

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

On Feb 8, 2017, at 10:25 AM, elena balduzzi <ebalduzzi622@gmail.com> wrote:
...can you send me articles you co-authored with Bloom about the PSRB? | need
to write up a description of the PSRB and want to make sure | am accurate.

Thanks

Elena Balduzzi, Psy.D.
Licensed Psychologist
SOTB Certified
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4110 SE Hawthorne Blvd., #622
Portland, OR 97214
503.232.3646

NOTICE: This email, including any attachments, may be privileged and/or
confidential. The contents are intended solely for the addressee(s). If you are not
one of the intended recipients and you believe you received thisin error, please
contact me immediately and del ete the message. Please do not print, disseminate,
or duplicate. Thank you kindly.



From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: RE: paper.
Date: Friday, February 03, 2017 10:19:39 AM

Tuesday works best - I'm pretty open. Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director

Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St. Ste 420

Portland, OR 97205

Phone: (503) 229-5596

After-Hours Cell; (503) 781-3602

Fax: (503) 224-0215

http://www.oregon.gov/prb/Pages/index.aspx

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 2016
Juliet.britton@oregon.gov

----- Original Message-----

From: Joseph Bloom [mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu]
Sent: Friday, February 03, 2017 9:55 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: paper.

Juliet

tied up al am.....any time this afternoon or early next week?
Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Friday, February 03, 2017 8:53 AM

To: Joseph Bloom

Subject: RE: paper.

Hi Joe
I’min the office al morning if you want to call. Juliet

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

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 2016 Juliet.britton@oregon.gov

From: Joseph Bloom [mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu]
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 8:56 AM

To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
Cc: berrywil17@gmail.com


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

Sorry to hear about the discharged cases. On the deaths were these suicides, other, Let me know if you would like to
talk about them.

On the appeals cases.....meant the 2016 civil commitment cases
Hard to believe they did nothing on the 421 appeal

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]

Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 6:39 AM

To: Joseph Bloom

Cc: berrywil 17@gmail.com<mailto:berrywil 17@gmail.com>

Subject: Re: paper.

Sadly, we have had three deaths as a result of two discharged clientsin the last month (both were early discharges
for no mental illness). Thereis some talk to close that gap but | have not seen anything yet.

For the appeal cases- do you mean PSRB appealsin 20167 We don't have any- all were remanded with no option
including a SB 421 civil commitment appeal.

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

On Jan 30, 2017, at 5:22 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote;

Juliet,

Understand about recidivism issues. | have been saying from the beginning that it is difficult....too many variables
but | would suggest that if the legislative issues allow that you get together with the people on the ground there
including Wil and Simrat and see what they want to study. | am happy to advise the group.

Are there legidative issues that you could send to me that you think | would be interested in?

Also, if someone from you office can collect the 2016 appeals ct. cases and send the references to me and to Wil. |
would like to look at them and see if we find any trends as aresult of the legal changes.

thanks.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov<mailto:Juliet.Britton@aoregon.gov>]
Sent: Sunday, January 29, 2017 4:57 PM

To: Joseph Bloom

Cc: berrywil 17@gmail.com<mailto:berrywil 17@gmail.com>

Subject: Re: paper.
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Thanks for the follow up Joe. Legislative Session is getting underway so I'm busy with that- | still want to give
Shelly some guidance to start looking up discharge recidivism. Juliet

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

On Jan 29, 2017, at 3:46 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote:
Juliet and Wil,

Got the proofs last week and took care of the issues raised (not too many since Juliet did work on this earlier). Paper
should be out in March.

Had one new idea (at least for this month)....the 2015 legislature passed the new definition of unable to provide for
basic personal needs......we ought to at least look at the appeals cases from july 2015 thru 2016 and see if we can see
any differencein their interpretation....(may be too short of atime but would be good to |ook)

Joe


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom

Subject: RE: paper.

Date: Friday, February 03, 2017 8:58:00 AM
Hi Joe

I’'m in the office all morning if you want to call. Juliet

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

Cc: berrywill7@gmail.com

Subject: RE: paper.

Juliet,

Sorry to hear about the discharged cases. On the deaths were these suicides, other, Let me know if you
would like to talk about them.

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
berrywill7@gmail.com
Subject: Re: paper.

Sadly, we have had three deaths as a result of two discharged clients in the last month (both
were early discharges for no mental illness). There is some talk to close that gap but | have not
seen anything yet.

For the appeal cases- do you mean PSRB appealsin 2016? We don't have any- al were
remanded with no option including a SB 421 civil commitment appeal .


mailto:/O=ETS EXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRITTON JULIET * PSRB62F
mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu
mailto:berrywil17@gmail.com

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

On Jan 30, 2017, at 5:22 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet,

Understand about recidivism issues. | have been saying from the beginning that it is
difficult....too many variables but I would suggest that if the legislative issues allow that
you get together with the people on the ground there including Wil and Simrat and see
what they want to study. | am happy to advise the group.

Are there legislative issues that you could send to me that you think | would be interested
in?

Also, if someone from you office can collect the 2016 appeals ct. cases and send the
references to me and to Wil. I would like to look at them and see if we find any trends as a
result of the legal changes.

thanks.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Sunday, January 29, 2017 4:57 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
berrywill7@gmail.com
Subject: Re: paper.

Thanks for the follow up Joe. Legidlative Session is getting underway so I'm busy
with that- | still want to give Shelly some guidance to start looking up discharge
recidivism. Juliet

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

On Jan 29, 2017, at 3:46 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:
Juliet and Wil,

Got the proofs last week and took care of the issues raised (not too many
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since Juliet did work on this earlier). Paper should be out in March.

Had one new idea (at least for this month)....the 2015 legislature passed the
new definition of unable to provide for basic personal needs......we ought to
at least look at the appeals cases from july 2015 thru 2016 and see if we can
see any difference in their interpretation....(may be too short of a time but
would be good to look)

Joe



From:
To:

BRITTON Juliet * PSRB
Joseph Bloom

Subject: Re: paper.

Date:

Monday, January 30, 2017 8:16:21 PM

We will get the appeal casesin the next couple of weeks, Juliet

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

On Jan 30, 2017, at 8:59 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet,

Sorry to hear about the discharged cases. On the deaths were these suicides, other, Let me
know if you would like to talk about them.

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

Sadly, we have had three deaths as a result of two discharged clientsin the last
month (both were early discharges for no mental iliness). Thereis sometalk to
close that gap but | have not seen anything yet.

For the appeal cases- do you mean PSRB appealsin 2016? We don't have any- all
were remanded with no option including a SB 421 civil commitment appeal .

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

Understand about recidivism issues. | have been saying from the beginning
that it is difficult....too many variables but | would suggest that if the
legislative issues allow that you get together with the people on the ground
there including Wil and Simrat and see what they want to study. | am happy
to advise the group.

Are there legislative issues that you could send to me that you think | would
be interested in?

Also, if someone from you office can collect the 2016 appeals ct. cases and
send the references to me and to Wil. I would like to look at them and see if
we find any trends as a result of the legal changes.

thanks.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Sunday, January 29, 2017 4:57 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
berrywill7@gmail.com
Subject: Re: paper.

Thanks for the follow up Joe. Legidative Session is getting underway
so I'm busy with that- | still want to give Shelly some guidance to
start looking up discharge recidivism. Juliet

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

On Jan 29, 2017, at 3:46 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu>
wrote:

Juliet and Wil,

Got the proofs last week and took care of the issues raised (not
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too many since Juliet did work on this earlier). Paper should be
out in March.

Had one new idea (at least for this month)....the 2015
legislature passed the new definition of unable to provide for
basic personal needs......we ought to at least look at the
appeals cases from july 2015 thru 2016 and see if we can see
any difference in their interpretation....(may be too short of a
time but would be good to look)

Joe



From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Joseph Bloom

Cc: berrywill7@gmail.com

Subject: Re: paper.

Date: Monday, January 30, 2017 9:26:46 AM

The deaths were outright intentional - two stabbings and a high speed chase that |eft another
driver dead (who happened to be the brother of a psychiatrist who works with our clients).
Google Anthony Montwheeler and Charles Longjaw. Sort of related, google '‘Reynaldo Rios
Aloha, Oregon.'

OSH is requesting discharge hearings for individuals with questionabl e diagnoses.

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

Are there legislative issues that you could send to me that you think I would
be interested in?

Also, if someone from you office can collect the 2016 appeals ct. cases and
send the references to me and to Wil. | would like to look at them and see if
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

Date: Monday, January 30, 2017 6:39:55 AM

Sadly, we have had three deaths as a result of two discharged clients in the last month (both
were early discharges for no mental illness). There is some talk to close that gap but | have not
seen anything yet.

For the appeal cases- do you mean PSRB appealsin 20167 We don't have any- all were
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
difficult....too many variables but | would suggest that if the legislative issues allow that
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
references to me and to Wil. 1 would like to look at them and see if we find any trends as a
result of the legal changes.

thanks.

Joe

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Sunday, January 29, 2017 4:57 PM

To: Joseph Bloom
berrywill7@gmail.com
Subject: Re: paper.

Thanks for the follow up Joe. Legidative Session is getting underway so I'm busy
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

Date: Sunday, January 29, 2017 4:57:11 PM

Thanks for the follow up Joe. Legidlative Session is getting underway so I'm busy with that- |
still want to give Shelly some guidance to start looking up discharge recidivism. Juliet

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

Got the proofs last week and took care of the issues raised (not too many since Juliet did
work on this earlier). Paper should be out in March.

Had one new idea (at least for this month)....the 2015 legislature passed the new definition
of unable to provide for basic personal needs......we ought to at least look at the appeals
cases from july 2015 thru 2016 and see if we can see any difference in their
interpretation....(may be too short of a time but would be good to look)

Joe
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From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB
Subject: Data recidivism
Date: Thursday, January 05, 2017 6:39:01 AM

Also check the box whether they were in or on CR when they discharged.

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

To: BANFE Shelley * PSRB; MOORE Sid * PSRB
Subject: Starting to work on recidivsm post PSRB
Date: Wednesday, December 28, 2016 4:15:48 PM
Shelley

| know you are focused on getting year end stats done....in early Jan, | want to sit down and
talk about how we as an agency want to start tracking recidivism post-psrb. This is separate
from the paper....I would at least like to have some data soon about re-arrest...We have a lot
of discharged clients but | want to study early discharged clients since 2012 to see how many
were re-arrested and to see how many non early discharge were rearrested. | want to have
this data going into the legislative session.

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

To: PSRB_DL_All Users
Subject: Charles Longjaw recent murder
Date: Monday, December 19, 2016 10:54:51 AM

Shelley - for recidivism tracking, please note that above was just charged with a stabbing
murder. If we get mediainquires, call me. This stabbing isin the paper. Juliet

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

To: Elena Balduzzi, PsyD; Wil Berry, MD; Joseph Bloom; SIMRAT.SETHI@dhsoha.state.or.us
Subject: N for Post-Jurisdiction Recidivism Study

Date: Tuesday, November 29, 2016 7:29:08 PM

Hi all

At last, we have some initial numbersto get your feedback on the paper we discussed at the
AAPL conference. | believe we were interested in studying several Ns based on the number of
years post-jurisdiction: 5, 10, 15 and 20 years after jurisdiction. Here are the total number of
discharges by category. That isatotal N of 240. | like the idea that for this paper, we keep it
real simple: were they re-arrested and did they access mental health services or were civilly
committed. | spoke with the data people at OHA - if it issimply a"did they access community
service post jurisdiction, they can pretty easily get us the data.

| want to schedule a conference call after the new year to discuss the factors we want to link
(e.g. Diagnosis or crime category or years at OSH or years on CR) to these folks.

2011
NoMD/D | 8
No Danger [ 9
Lapsed | 47
Death | 7
Total | 70

2006
NoMD/D | 13
No Danger | 4
Lapsed | 54
Death | 3
Total | 73

2001
NoMD/D| 1
No Danger | 6
Lapsed | 43
Death | 4
AppealsCourt | 1
Total | 55

1996
NoMD/D | 4
No Danger | 11
Lapsed | 33
Death | 2
Total | 50
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

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS.: juliet.britton@aoregon.gov


mailto:juliet.britton@oregon.gov

From:
To:
Subject:
Start:
End:

Location:

BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Johnson Heather N

Accepted: Confer: Juliet | Jon | Chris | Geralyn - Data Needs For Post PSRB Recidivism

Wednesday, November 23, 2016 1:00:00 PM

Wednesday, November 23, 2016 1:30:00 PM

HSB-556 and by phone: Participant: 1-877-810-9415,,1773452# Host: 1-877-810-9415,,6771657# (Jon to Host)
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mailto:HEATHER.N.JOHNSON@dhsoha.state.or.us

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

To: Psychiatric Security Review Board * PSRB
Subject: RE: Non Response from Geryln and Chris
Date: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 10:42:42 AM

Not really - if | don't have anything going on work wise, | might take off early
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

From: Psychiatric Security Review Board * PSRB
Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 10:25 AM
To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Subject: RE: Non Response from Geryln and Chris

Areyou taking any time off during the week of Thanskgiving?
Jane

----- Original Message-----

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 10:05 AM
To: Psychiatric Security Review Board * PSRB
Subject: FW: Non Response from Geryln and Chris

Hi
Can you schedule this - 30 min phone is fine - or if you can schedule it when I'm aready in Salem. Juliet

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

----- Origina Message-----

From: Johnson Heather N [mailto:HEATHER.N.JOHNSON@dhsoha.state.or.us]
Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 9:46 AM

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

| am happy to set up this meeting. Would you like to meet in person in Salem or have a phone conference? Also,
would you like 30 or 60 minutes for this discussion?

Jon, Chris and Geralyn have the following availability:

11/23: 1-2 by phone

11/29: 830-9 by phone

11/30: 8:30-9 by phone

12/1: 8-9, 1-2, 3-4 in person in Salem or by phone
12/2: 3-4 in person in Salem or by phone

Please let me know if you would like more dates and times.
Thank you,

Heather Johnson
Executive Assistant to Jon Collins, PhD, Director of Health Analytics Office of Health Policy and Analytics Mobile
Phone: 503-508-8276 heather.n.johnson@state.or.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This email may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under
applicable law. If you are not the addressee or it appears from the context or otherwise that you have received this
email in error, please advise meimmediately by reply email, keep the contents confidential, and immediately delete
the message and any attachments from your system.

----- Origina Message-----

From: CollinsJon C

Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 9:01 AM
To: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB

Cc: Johnson Heather N

Subject: RE: Non Response from Geryln and Chris

Hi Juliet,
| apologize for that and | will talk to them to see what the deal is. But, | think you're right. We should sit down and
talk it through.

I've cc'd Heather Johnson she can find us atime and include whoever you think needs to be involve. From our side it
would include me and Chris and Geralyn.

Again, sorry about the inconvenience.
Jon

Jon C. Callins, PhD

Director Office of Health Analytics

Office of Health Policy and Analytics
Oregon Health Authority



Desk: 503 945 6429
Cell: 503 569 0044

----- Original Message-----

From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 8:58 AM

To: Coallins Jon C <JON.C.COLLINS@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Subject: Non Response from Geryln and Chris

Jon

I've now sent two different emails to your staff regarding some data my agency needs to study post PSRB
recidivism. Neither have responded. I'm unsure the reason but would like to sit down with someone in your shop to
ascertain what is needed (e.g. confidentiality agreement and IAA) before Elaine can pull the data.

Please advise,
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
Date: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 10:07:18 AM
Hi

Can you schedule this - 30 min phone isfine - or if you can schedule it when I'm aready in Salem. Juliet

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

From: Johnson Heather N [mailto:HEATHER.N.JOHNSON @dhsoha.state.or.us]
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

Thisemail may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under
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

From: Collins Jon C

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

Jon C. Coallins, PhD

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

To: Collins Jon C
Subject: Re: Non Response from Geryln and Chris
Date: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 9:05:32 AM

Sounds good. Juliet

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

> On Nov 9, 2016, at 9:00 AM, Callins Jon C <JON.C.COLLINS@dhsoha.state.or.us> wrote:

>

> Hi Juliet,

> | apologize for that and | will talk to them to see what the deal is. But, | think you're right. We should sit down and
talk it through.

>

> |'ve cc'd Heather Johnson she can find us atime and include whoever you think needs to be involve. From our side
it would include me and Chris and Geralyn.

>

> Again, sorry about the inconvenience.

>

> Jon

>

> Jon C. Collins, PhD

> Director Office of Health Analytics

> Office of Health Policy and Analytics

> Oregon Health Authority

>

> Desk: 503 945 6429

> Cell: 503 569 0044

> Origina Message-----

> From: BRITTON Juliet * PSRB [mailto:Juliet.Britton@oregon.gov]

> Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 8:58 AM

> To: Callins Jon C <JON.C.COLLINS@dhsoha.state.or.us>

> Subject: Non Response from Geryln and Chris

>

> Jon

> |'ve now sent two different emails to your staff regarding some data my agency needs to study post PSRB
recidivism. Neither have responded. I'm unsure the reason but would like to sit down with someone in your shop to
ascertain what is needed (e.g. confidentiality agreement and IAA) before Elaine can pull the data.

>

> Please advisg,

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
Date: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 9:00:47 AM
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

To: Collins Jon C <JON.C.COLLINS@dhsoha.state.or.us>
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

To: COLLINS JON C

Subject: Non Response from Geryln and Chris

Date: Wednesday, November 09, 2016 8:57:37 AM
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

To: BRENNAN Geralyn; Coon Christopher W

Subject: Re: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients
Date: Tuesday, October 25, 2016 5:03:12 PM
Geralyn and Christopher,

Just checking in on this project to see if we can chat about an interagency agreement. | do
have a new email addressisin the reply line.

Thanks, juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

PLEASE NOTEMY NEW EMAIL ADDRESS: juliet.britton@oregon.gov

On Oct 19, 2016, at 1:52 PM, SWEET Elaine <Elaine. SWEET @dhsoha.state.or.us> wrote;

| have co-copied the individuals you can work with from our offices to get the data you
need. Thanks,

Elaine Sweet
Voice: 503-947-5068
Mobile: 503-931-4985

From: Collins Jon C

Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 1:48 PM

To: SWEET Elaine <Elaine.SWEET@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Cc: BRENNAN Geralyn <Geralyn.BRENNAN@dhsoha.state.or.us>; Coon Christopher W

<CHRISTOPHER.W.COON@dhsoha.state.or.us>
Subject: RE: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients

She should work with Geralyn and Chris Coon. | honestly think we already have access
to this info through the integrated client services data.

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

From: SWEET Elaine
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 1:38 PM

To: Collins Jon C <JON.C.COLLINS@dhsoha.state.or.us>
Subject: FW: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients

Who should | send Juliet to for this data request? Thanks

Elaine Sweet
Voice: 503-947-5068
Mobile: 503-931-4985

From: Juliet Britton [mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org]
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2016 12:31 PM

To: SWEET Elaine <Elaine. SWEET@dhsoha.state.or.us>
Subject: Non-ldentifying Study about Post PSRB clients

Hi Elaine

| have signed an agreement with OSP to use LEDS to determine re-
arrest/recidivism of post-PSRB clients. | may want to incorporate data on whether
our clients access community mental health services, are civilly committed or re-
hospitalized in lieu of arrest. My understanding is that OHA has access to the
mental health database which would answer these questions. | suspect we are
going to go back 5 or 10 years....I'll know more soon as to how many “clients” that
will be.

What sort of permissions or agreements does your agency require before we can
access the database. My typically process is to have Shelley give the agency the
names with an assigned identifying number and the agency returns the data with
the data and the number.

Thanks, Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director

Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St. Ste 420

Portland, OR 97205


mailto:JON.C.COLLINS@dhsoha.state.or.us
mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org
mailto:Elaine.SWEET@dhsoha.state.or.us

Phone: (503) 229-5596
After-Hours Cell: (503) 781-3602
Fax: (503) 224-0215



From: SWEET Elaine

To: Juliet Britton (juliet.britton@psrb.or:

Subject: FW: Non-ldentifying Study about Post PSRB clients
Date: Tuesday, October 25, 2016 2:49:51 PM

FYI

JON.C.COLLINS@state.or.us

Elaine Sweet
Voice: 503-947-5068
Mobile: 503-931-4985

From: SWEET Elaine

Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 1:51 PM

To: Juliet Britton (juliet.britton@psrb.org) <juliet.britton@psrb.org>

Cc: BRENNAN Geralyn <Geralyn.BRENNAN@dhsoha.state.or.us>; Coon Christopher W
<CHRISTOPHER.W.COON@dhsoha.state.or.us>

Subject: FW: Non-ldentifying Study about Post PSRB clients

| have co-copied the individuals you can work with from our offices to get the data you need.
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

She should work with Geralyn and Chris Coon. | honestly think we already have access to this info
through the integrated client services data.

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

| have signed an agreement with OSP to use LEDS to determine re-arrest/recidivism of post-
PSRB clients. | may want to incorporate data on whether our clients access community mental
health services, are civilly committed or re-hospitalized in lieu of arrest. My understanding is
that OHA has access to the mental health database which would answer these questions. |
suspect we are going to go back 5 or 10 years....I'll know more soon as to how many “clients”
that will be.

What sort of permissions or agreements does your agency require before we can access the
database. My typically process is to have Shelley give the agency the names with an assigned
identifying number and the agency returns the data with the data and the number.

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
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From: Juliet Britton

To: SWEET Elaine

Cc: BRENNAN Geralyn; Coon Christopher W

Subject: Re: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients
Date: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 1:56:46 PM

Hi Geralyn and Chris - let me know if it is best that | set up ameeting to discuss or just a
phone call. Thanks, Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On Oct 19, 2016, at 1:52 PM, SWEET Elaine <Elaine. SWEET @dhsoha.state.or.us> wrote:

I have co-copied the individuals you can work with from our offices to get the data you
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
Subject: RE: Non-ldentifying Study about Post PSRB clients

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
Subject: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients

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

To: Juliet Britton

Cc: BRENNAN Geralyn; Coon Christopher W

Subject: FW: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients
Date: Wednesday, October 19, 2016 1:52:42 PM

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

suspect we are going to go back 5 or 10 years....I'll know more soon as to how many “clients
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
Cc:

Juliet Britton

Shelley Banfe
Sid Moore

Subject: Fwd: Salem man gets 35 years in prison for rape

Date:

Friday, October 14, 2016 5:01:21 PM

Post PSRB recidivism

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

From: Sethi Simrat <SIMRAT.SETHI @dhsoha state.or.us>
Date: October 14, 2016 at 4:22:46 PM PDT

To: Britton Juliet <juliet.britton@psrb.org>
Subject: Salem man gets 35 yearsin prison for rape

http://www.statesmanj ournal .com/story/news/crime/2016/09/30/salem-man-gets-
35-years-prison-rape/91352020/

L]

Simrat Sethi MD
Physician Supervisor
Oregon State Hospital
Cell: 503932 6361

***x* CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE ****

This e-mail may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise
exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the addressee or it
appears from the context or otherwise that you have received this e-mail in error,
please advise me immediately by reply e-mail, keep the contents confidential and
immediately del ete the message and any attachments from your system.
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Elena Balduzzi Psy. D.
Subject: Dr will berry and Joe bloom MD
Date: Friday, October 14, 2016 9:02:49 AM

Do you have any objection to these two joining us on the recidivism paper- |'ve written several articles with both
and they are collaborators. Will brings the community MD perspective....he was an OHSU fellow.

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

To: Elaine SWEET

Subject: Non-Identifying Study about Post PSRB clients
Date: Thursday, October 13, 2016 12:30:39 PM

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

”

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


mailto:elaine.sweet@state.or.us

From: Juliet Britton
To: Wil Berry

Cc: Joseph Bloom; Shelley Banfe
Subject: Re: aapl submission.
Date: Tuesday, October 04, 2016 6:37:17 PM

That sounds good - Thursday afternoon. Do you want to set atime now or just talk at the
conference?

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On Oct 4, 2016, at 4:40 PM, Wil Berry <berrywil 17@gmail.com> wrote:

| will be there and would love to meet...I will makeit apriority at whatever time
isthe best for the two of you! Thursday afternoon after Juliet's presentation
sometime would aso work fine,

Wil

On Tue, Oct 4, 2016 at 3:04 PM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:
Juliet
Y our presentation appears to be. thursday at 10:15. Y ou probably want to meet
with the co-presenters before the presentation. | can meet at 2 or after. Could
come to your office. or meet another day ..

Let's see what Wil wants to do.

From: Juliet Britton [juliet.britton@psrb.org]
Sent: Tuesday, October 04, 2016 9:31 AM

To: Joseph Bloom
Cc: Wil Berry; Shelley Banfe
Subject: Re: aapl submission.

Hi

| believe my presentation is 9am on Wed. Would be glad to meet around then.
Shelley can give you the most current numbers as she should be finishing the
August stats thisweek. Juliet

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

> On Oct 4, 2016, at 8:38 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

>

> Juliet

> | am meeting with some residents here in Phoenix and would like to know
some PSRB numbers. Can you just tell me the current breakdown on the
clients, just the number in the hospital and the number on CR. Thanks.

>

> Also would like to meet sometime during the AAPL meeting. What time and
day isyour presentation? Maybe we could meet around that time.

>

> Wil, | still have not heard about a publication date. | have not heard from
you since the last email | wrote to you. Areyou interested in meeting?

>

> Joe

>

> From: Joseph Bloom

> Sent: Wednesday, September 07, 2016 2:06 PM

> To: Juliet Britton; Wil Berry

> Subject: RE: aapl submission.

>

> Let's plan on avisit during the meeting.

>

> Will, assume you are coming to the meeting?

>

> Joe

>

> From: Juliet Britton [juliet.britton@psrb.org]

> Sent: Wednesday, September 07, 2016 6:26 AM

> To: Wil Berry

> Cc: Joseph Bloom

> Subject: Re: aapl submission.

>

> Alohaall devious colleagues,

>

> The agreement with OSP to use LEDS to grab criminal histories on ex clients
has been submitted (waiting for approval). They move slow.

>

> What do you think of a paper on outpatient civil commitment likein New
York. | get callsall the time about dangerous folks (one step away from hurting
someone) who do not meet the SB 421 criteria.

>

> Looking forward to seeing you two at the conference. I'm presenting a PSRB
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thing with Mike Norko - CT PSRB and Oregon PSRB.
>

>

>

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
>

>
>

> On Sep 6, 2016, at 9:34 PM, Wil Berry <berrywil17@gmail.com<mailto:b
errywil17@gmail.com>> wrote:
>

> Hi everyone! Just wanted to touch base...Joe, do you know when our paper is
scheduled for publication? Also, I'm itching to go on the next one now...so
what should we do? Juliet, how is your recidivism stuff going?

>

> | was in acommitment hearing today, where the client clearly had no
capacity...and yet thereisno "Aid and Assist” for commitment (of course, it
might be odd to force treatment on someone so that they can participatein a
hearing about getting forced treatment, but still)...I feel like | want to keep
going on the commitment angle.

>

> Joe, what are your thoughts? What is exciting you the most currently asa
next project?

>

> On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 11:33 AM, Joseph Bloom

<bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto: bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote:

> Juliet,

>

> when you have afew minutes maybe you can get the 2015 and 2016
decisions so we can look at them. Be good if you got on their list to get notice
when their decisions come out....maybe you already are on that list.

>

> Recidivism is atough topic.....involving both design of the study and the
human subjects question.....we can talk more as you progress in getting
permission.

>

> Joe

>

> From: Juliet Britton [juliet.britton@psrb.org<mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org>|
> Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 9:14 AM

> To: Joseph Bloom

> Cc: Wil Berry

> Subject: Re: aapl submission.
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>

> Sounds good. | really want to write about recidivism post PSRB jurisdiction. |
am in the process of getting permission to use LEDS from state police for
research purposes.

>

> Juliet Britton, J.D.

> Executive Director

> Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board

> 610 SW Alder St., Suite 420

> Portland, Oregon 97205

> (503) 229-5596<tel:%28503%29%20229-5596> (office)

> (503) 781-3602<tel :%28503%29%20781-3602> (after hours cell)

> (503) 224-0215<tel :%28503%29%20224-0215> (fax)

>

>

> On Jul 27, 2016, at 8:33 AM, Joseph Bloom

<bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto: bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote:
>

> Wil

>

> Sorry, but, never let regjection get you down in thisbusiness. Did they say
anything about the proposal ?

>

> After it is published, which should be soonish, you would be free to present it
to OPPA. Itisimportant for the state.

>

> Juliet, we should also keep an eye out for any new decisions that reflect the
2015(?) changes in definition of gravely disabled.

>

> Joe

>

>

>

> From: Wil Berry [berrywil 17@gmail.com<mailto:berrywil 17@gmail.com>]
> Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:20 AM

> To: Joseph Bloom; juliet.britton@psrb.org<mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org>
> Subject: Re: aapl submission.

>

> Yeah, it was not accepted...disappointing! | would still really like to present
on it...perhaps at one of the upcoming OPPA meetings...

>

> Wil

>

>

> On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 6:55 AM Joseph Bloom

<bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto: bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote:

> Wil

>

> Have we heard anything from AAPL about our proposal for the annual
meeting?
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> Joe



From: Juliet Britton

To: Joseph Bloom

Cc: Wil Berry; Shelley Banfe

Subject: Re: aapl submission.

Date: Tuesday, October 04, 2016 9:31:17 AM
Hi

| believe my presentation is 9am on Wed. Would be glad to meet around then. Shelley can give you the most current
numbers as she should be finishing the August stats this week. Juliet

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

> | am meeting with some residents here in Phoenix and would like to know some PSRB numbers. Can you just tell
me the current breakdown on the clients, just the number in the hospital and the number on CR. Thanks.

>

> Also would like to meet sometime during the AAPL meeting. What time and day is your presentation? Maybe we
could meet around that time.

>

> Wil, 1 still have not heard about a publication date. | have not heard from you since the last e-mail | wrote to
you. Areyou interested in meeting?

>

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

>

> The agreement with OSP to use LEDS to grab criminal histories on ex clients has been submitted (waiting for
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approval). They move slow.

>

> What do you think of a paper on outpatient civil commitment likein New Y ork. | get calls all the time about
dangerous folks (one step away from hurting someone) who do not meet the SB 421 criteria.

>

> Looking forward to seeing you two at the conference. I'm presenting a PSRB thing with Mike Norko - CT PSRB
and Oregon PSRB.

>

>

>

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

>

>

>

> On Sep 6, 2016, at 9:34 PM, Wil Berry <berrywil 17@gmail.com<mailto:berrywil 17@gmail.com>> wrote:
>

> Hi everyone! Just wanted to touch base...Joe, do you know when our paper is scheduled for publication? Also,
I'm itching to go on the next one now...so what should we do? Juliet, how is your recidivism stuff going?

>

> | was in acommitment hearing today, where the client clearly had no capacity...and yet thereis no "Aid and
Assist” for commitment (of course, it might be odd to force treatment on someone so that they can participatein a
hearing about getting forced treatment, but still)...I feel like | want to keep going on the commitment angle.

>

> Joe, what are your thoughts? What is exciting you the most currently as a next project?

>

> On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 11:33 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj@ohsu.edu<mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote:
> Juliet,

>

> when you have afew minutes maybe you can get the 2015 and 2016 decisions so we can look at them. Be good
if you got on their list to get notice when their decisions come out....maybe you aready are on that list.

>

> Recidivism is atough topic.....involving both design of the study and the human subjects question.....we can talk
more as you progress in getting permission.

>

> Joe

>

> From: Juliet Britton [juliet.britton@psrb.org<mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org>]

> Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 9:14 AM

> To: Joseph Bloom

> Cc: Wil Berry

> Subject: Re: aapl submission.

>

> Sounds good. | really want to write about recidivism post PSRB jurisdiction. | am in the process of getting
permission to use LEDS from state police for research purposes.

>

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

> (503) 781-3602<tel:%28503%29%20781-3602> (after hours cell)

> (503) 224-0215<tel:%28503%29%20224-0215> (fax)

>

>

> On Jul 27, 2016, at 8:33 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto: bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote:

>

> Wil

>

> Sorry, but, never let rejection get you down in this business. Did they say anything about the proposal?
>

> After it is published, which should be soonish, you would be free to present it to OPPA. It isimportant for the
state.

>

> Juliet, we should also keep an eye out for any new decisions that reflect the 2015(?) changes in definition of
gravely disabled.

>

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

>

> Yeah, it was not accepted...disappointing! | would still really like to present on it...perhaps at one of the upcoming
OPPA meetings...

>

> Wil

>

>

> On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 6:55 AM Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu<mailto: bloomj @ohsu.edu>> wrote;
> Wil

>

> Have we heard anything from AAPL about our proposal for the annual meeting?

>

> Joe

>
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Shelley Banfe
Subject: Recidivism and other stats for Dr. Sethi
Date: Thursday, September 22, 2016 9:21:08 AM

Good Morning

Dr. Sethi and | are presenting with some MDsin CT regarding our PSRBs and our slides are due. Soon. Dr. Swill
need some recidivism stats and maybe other stats so he can complete his slides - can you send him the recidivism
slides (both adult and juvenile) and inquire what else he needs. Read the CT recidivism paper that | sent to you a
month ago and if we have that data, give that to him. | think it may interesting to include our average length of
jurisdiction - but check with him if he thinks that is relevant. Can you reach out to him today.

Also - | wanted to make sure that you and Sid finalizing the OSP agreement. | guess| will need to sign it. Thanks,
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

Whitfield, Patricia

Sid Moore; Shelley Banfe; Bowden, Lauren C
Re: LEDS Research Agreement

Thursday, September 15, 2016 9:01:33 PM

Wonderful. Thank Y ou, Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On Sep 15, 2016, at 5:46 PM, Whitfield, Patricia <patricia.whitfield@state.or.us> wrote:

Good afternoon Juliet, Sid and Shelley,

Lauren Bowden will have the final agreement and documents to you for signature

tomorrow. The final agreement copy will look largely the same as the initial copy |

provided.

Since we do not have users change the actual document, other than to provide input

regarding the PROJECT PURPOSE | wanted to point out the few things | thought
appeared to have been changed in the document you sent back:

<!--[if 'supportLists]-->1. <!--[endif]-->The title has been changed back to the
original “Criminal Justice Research Project Agreement” (removing the word
Forensic)

<!--[if 'supportLists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->The Project Scope has been reworded
to incorporate the additional information you provided such as the
”community behavioral health resources...” portion and that the intent is for
ongoing research.

<!--[if 'supportLists]-->3. <!--[endif]-->The Project Beginning/Termination
section was changed back to the original language. We will need to renew
each year —however | promise it will not take a long as this initial process. ©

<!--[if 'supportLists]-->4. <!--[endif]-->Regarding your question about the
numbering at the top —the “3” is simply the internal tracking for OSP. It is not
a version number, but | can certainly see where that would have been helpful
in this case. Sorry for any confusion, again we don’t normally ask users to
make changes that would require version control.
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Thank you all for your patience!

Tricia Whitfield, Director

Criminal Justice Information Services Division

Oregon State Police

3565 Trelstad Ave. SE ***please note our new address
Salem, OR 97317

503-934-2305

503-378-2121 fax

patricia.whitfield@state.or.us

“Premier Public Safety Services for Oregon”

From: Sid Moore [mailto:Sid.Moore@psrb.org]
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 3:30 PM

To: Whitfield, Patricia
Cc: Shelley Banfe; Juliet Britton
Subject: RE: LEDS Research Agreement

Tricia,

I’'m sorry about that. Shelley wanted to make sure there wasn’t anything else | wanted
sent before she sent out the agreement. Here it is. | do have one question, though: the
form seems to be entitled “Forensic Criminal Justice Research Project Agreement 2016-
3.” I'm wondering if the “3” stands for “version 3” or something else (or whether | can
get rid of it).

Thanks!

Sid

Sid Moore, J.D., Deputy Director
Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder Street, Suite 420
Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596

From: Whitfield, Patricia [mailto:patricia.whitfield@state.or.us]
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 11:39 AM

To: Sid Moore
Cc: Bowden, Lauren C
Subject: RE: LEDS Research Agreement

Good morning Sid,

| have not received anything since we spoke. | had asked that you send me language
to add to the project purpose indicating the duration of your research — since these are
typically for a project and not long-term.
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| went ahead and added the RED TEXT below. If this looks good, | will have Lauren get
the documents to you today. | will be out of the office until Friday this week.

PROJECT PURPOSE:

The Psychiatric Security Review Board (PSRB) is tasked by the Legislature with
the supervision of those persons determined to be guilty and responsible except
for insanity of a crime in the state of Oregon. The PSRB maintains records on
these individuals throughout the length of their jurisdiction under the Board,
however there is currently no way to track subsequent criminal conduct once a
client isno longer under PSRB supervision.

In an effort to evaluate the program’s efficiency, rate of success or failure in
comparison with other programs such as the parole and probation system in
Oregon and the Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity programs in other states around
the county. This evaluation can help with program development to improve the
success of these individuals after their term ends. The PSRB intends to research
recidivism of former clients on an ongoing basis and compile aggregate data (no
personal or confidential datatied to specific individuals) for reporting purposes.

Thank you

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
Sent: Saturday, August 27, 2016 10:31 AM

To: Whitfield, Patricia
Subject: LEDS Research Agreement
Tricia,

| was out most of Thursday and all day Friday, so | thought I'd check in to
confirm that Shelley sent you a copy of the LEDS research agreement. | suspect
she did, but it's possible she wanted to run it back by Juliet or me beforehand, so |
thought 1'd check.

Thanks!
Sid

Sd Moore, J.D., Deputy Director
Psychiatric Security Review Board


mailto:patricia.whitfield@state.or.us
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610 SW Alder Street, Suite 420
Portland, OR 97205

Sent from my iPad
<DRAFT_PSRB 2016- Research Agreement_Final.doc>



From: Juliet Britton

To: Wil Berry

Cc: Joseph Bloom

Subject: Re: aapl submission.

Date: Wednesday, September 07, 2016 6:26:22 AM

Alohaall devious colleagues,

The agreement with OSP to use LEDS to grab criminal histories on ex clients has been
submitted (waiting for approval). They move slow.

What do you think of a paper on outpatient civil commitment likein New York. | get calls al
the time about dangerous folks (one step away from hurting someone) who do not meet the SB
421 criteria.

Looking forward to seeing you two at the conference. I'm presenting a PSRB thing with Mike
Norko - CT PSRB and Oregon PSRB.

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On Sep 6, 2016, at 9:34 PM, Wil Berry <berrywil17@gmail.com> wrote:

Hi everyone! Just wanted to touch base...Joe, do you know when our paper is
scheduled for publication? Also, I'm itching to go on the next one now...so what
should we do? Juliet, how isyour recidivism stuff going?

| was in acommitment hearing today, where the client clearly had no
capacity...and yet thereisno "Aid and Assist” for commitment (of course, it
might be odd to force treatment on someone so that they can participatein a
hearing about getting forced treatment, but still)...I feel like | want to keep going
on the commitment angle.

Joe, what are your thoughts? What is exciting you the most currently as a next
project?

On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 11:33 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet,

when you have a few minutes maybe you can get the 2015 and 2016 decisions so we
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can look at them. Be good if you got on their list to get notice when their decisions
come out....maybe you already are on that list.

Recidivism is a tough topic.....involving both design of the study and the human subjects
guestion.....we can talk more as you progress in getting permission.

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

On Jul 27, 2016, at 8:33 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Wil

Sorry, but, never let rejection get you down in this business. Did they say
anything about the proposal?

After it is published, which should be soonish, you would be free to
present it to OPPA. It is important for the state.

Juliet, we should also keep an eye out for any new decisions that reflect
the 2015(?) changes in definition of gravely disabled.

Joe

From: Wil Berry [berrywill7@gmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:20 AM

To: Joseph Bloom; juliet.britton@psrb.org

Subject: Re: aapl submission.

Y eah, it was not accepted...disappointing! | would still really liketo
present on it...perhaps at one of the upcoming OPPA meetings...

Wil
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On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 6:55 AM Joseph Bloom

<bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:
Wil

Have we heard anything from AAPL about our proposal for the annual
meeting?

Joe


mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

From: Juliet Britton

To: Sid Moore

Subject: Additional LEDS Research Question
Date: Monday, August 29, 2016 11:51:24 AM
Hi

I just left Trish a message to answer her questions below. Juliet

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

From: Whitfield, Patricia [mailto:patricia.whitfiel d@state.or.us]
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2016 4:40 PM

To: Shelley Banfe; Sid Moore

Cc: Juliet Britton

Subject: FW: Using LEDS for Research

Shelly, Sid and Juliet,

Y ou were out this afternoon when | called, so | am forwarding a copy of the DRAFT agreement | sent to Juliet for
your research work.

Using the information from a few emails and the request letter Juliet provided, | inserted a"Project Purpose'”.
Please review and let me know if it isaccurate. One thing | would like to include is the timeframe intended for the
project, so if you have that kind of detail that would be helpful.

| do want to talk with one of you regarding a few things:

1. Who will be conducting the queries and reviewing the data? All staff will need to pass a CJI'S background check
if not already done.

2. Destruction of the records. Once the agreement purpose is completed Lauren will send afinal copy for signature
and other reference documents like the CJI'S Security Policy and Media Destruction Policy, etc.

3. How you anticipate this working long-term as these agreements are essentially for a one-year term.
Thank you

TriciaWhitfield, Director

Criminal Justice Information Services Division Oregon State Police
3565 Trelstad Ave. SE ***please note our new address
Salem, OR 97317

503-934-2305

503-378-2121 fax

patricia.whitfiel d@state.or.us

"Premier Public Safety Services for Oregon”
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----- Original Message-----

From: Whitfield, Patricia

Sent: Monday, August 22, 2016 3:14 PM
To: 'Juliet Britton'

Subject: RE: Using LEDS for Research

Juliet,
DRAFT copy of atypical research agreement. [I'll call you to discuss...thanks

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
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:50 PM

To: Whitfield, Patricia

Subject: Using LEDS for Research

Hi Trish
We want to study recidivism after jurisdiction ends and my reading of your OAR. My reading is that our agencies
need to sign an agreement. How can we get that process started.

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

Subject: Re: Using LEDS for Research

Date:

Thursday, August 25, 2016 9:07:23 AM

Sounds good. I'll stop in before my 3:30 meeting

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On Aug 25, 2016, at 9:05 AM, Sid Moore <Sid.Moore@psrb.org> wrote:

Y ep. It'son my "to-do" list for today (I'll be in by about 9:25 and leaving for the
game around 11:00).

Thanks!
Sid

Sd Moore, J.D., Deputy Director
Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St., Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205
503-229-5596

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 25, 2016, at 9:03 AM, Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@jpsrb.org> wrote:

Can you work with Shelley to help draft this up before she leaves for
her two week vacation. Thanks

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

From: "Whitfield, Patricia’
<patriciawhitfield@state.or.us>

Date: August 22, 2016 at 4:40:22 PM PDT
To: Shelley Banfe <shelley.banf srb.org>,

"Sid.Moore@psrb.org” <Sid.Moore@psrb.org>
Cc: "Juliet Follansbee (juliet.britton@psrb.org)”

<juliet.britton@psrb.org>
Subject: FW: Using LEDSfor Research

Shelly, Sid and Juliet,

Y ou were out this afternoon when | called, so | am
forwarding a copy of the DRAFT agreement | sent to
Juliet for your research work.

Using the information from a few emails and the request
letter Juliet provided, | inserted a " Project Purpose”.

Please review and let me know if it isaccurate. One
thing | would like to include is the timeframe intended
for the project, so if you have that kind of detail that
would be helpful.

| do want to talk with one of you regarding afew things:

1. Who will be conducting the queries and reviewing the
data? All staff will need to pass a CJIS background
check if not already done.

2. Destruction of the records. Once the agreement
purpose is completed Lauren will send afinal copy for
signature and other reference documents like the CJIS
Security Policy and Media Destruction Policy, etc.

3. How you anticipate this working long-term as these
agreements are essentially for a one-year term.

Thank you

TriciaWhitfield, Director

Criminal Justice Information Services Division Oregon
State Police

3565 Trelstad Ave. SE *** please note our new
address

Salem, OR 97317

503-934-2305

503-378-2121 fax
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patriciawhitfield@state.or.us
"Premier Public Safety Services for Oregon”

----- Origina Message-----

From: Whitfield, Patricia

Sent: Monday, August 22, 2016 3:14 PM
To: 'Juliet Britton'

Subject: RE: Using LEDS for Research

Juliet,

DRAFT copy of atypical research agreement. I'll call
you to discuss...thanks

TriciaWhitfield, Director

Criminal Justice Information Services Division Oregon
State Police

3565 Trelstad Ave. SE ***please note our new
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

We want to study recidivism after jurisdiction ends and
my reading of your OAR. My reading is that our
agencies need to sign an agreement. How can we get that
process started.

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
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<DRAFT_PSRB 2016- Research Agreement.doc>



From: Juliet Britton

To: Sid Moore

Subject: Fwd: Using LEDS for Research

Date: Thursday, August 25, 2016 9:03:05 AM
Attachments: DRAFT_PSRB 2016- Research Aareement.doc

ATTO00001.htm

Can you work with Shelley to help draft this up before she leaves for her two week vacation.
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

From: "Whitfield, Patricia’ <patriciawhitfield@state.or.us>
Date: August 22, 2016 at 4:40:22 PM PDT

To: Shelley Banfe <shelley.banf srb.org>, "Sid.Moore@psrb.org"
<Sid.Moore@psrb.org>

Cc: "Juliet Follansbee (juliet.britton@psrb.org)" <juliet.britton@psrb.org>
Subject: FW: Using LEDS for Research

Shelly, Sid and Juliet,

Y ou were out this afternoon when | called, so | am forwarding a copy of the
DRAFT agreement | sent to Juliet for your research work.

Using the information from afew emails and the request letter Juliet provided, |
inserted a " Project Purpose”. Please review and let me know if it is accurate. One
thing | would like to include is the timeframe intended for the project, so if you
have that kind of detail that would be helpful.

| do want to talk with one of you regarding afew things:

1. Who will be conducting the queries and reviewing the data? All staff will
need to pass a CJIS background check if not already done.

2. Destruction of the records. Once the agreement purpose is completed Lauren
will send afinal copy for signature and other reference documents like the CJIS
Security Policy and Media Destruction Policy, etc.

3. How you anticipate this working long-term as these agreements are essentially
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CRIMINAL JUSTICE RESEARCH PROJECT


AGREEMENT


2016 - 3

This agreement is by and between the Department of State Police Criminal Justice Information Services Division, hereinafter referred to as OSP and the Psychiatric Security Review Board hereinafter referred to as PSRB.

PROJECT PURPOSE:

The Psychiatric Security Review Board (PSRB) is tasked by the Legislature with the supervision of those persons determined to be guilty and responsible except for insanity of a crime in the state of Oregon.  The PSRB maintains records on these individuals throughout the length of their jurisdiction under the Board; however there is currently no way to track subsequent criminal conduct once a client is no longer under PSRB supervision.


In an effort to evaluate the program’s efficiency, rate of success or failure in comparison with other programs such as the parole and probation system in Oregon and the Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity programs in other states around the county.   This evaluation can help with program development to improve the success of these individuals after their term ends. The PSRB intends to research recidivism of former clients and compile aggregate data (no personal or confidential data tied to specific individuals) for reporting purposes.

PROJECT SCOPE:

In accordance with Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 257-010-0030, this project involves Oregon Criminal Record Information from the OSP, Criminal Justice Information Services Division, Computerized Criminal History (CCH) Files, be provided to the PSRB by OSP. PSRB will utilize the criminal record information as described under “Project Purpose”.


ACCESSING CCH FILES:

Access to CCH Files by the PSRB will be according to procedures and methods determined by OSP. Use of the “R” code will be required when accessing Criminal History information for this research project. If OSP is to conduct the inquiries and gather the data needed, the fee charged will be that stated in OAR 257-010-0025 (1.b.B).

SECURITY AND PRIVACY:

It is agreed by all parties that employees of the PSRB will be screened to insure compliance with OAR 257-010-0025 and that it is the responsibility of the PSRB to screen such employees. In addition, the PSRB agrees that their personnel who review complete CCH information (documents containing a person’s name and charge information) will complete a CJIS Security Background Check prior to reviewing the documents. Prior to implementing this agreement PSRB will provide a list to OSP of the PSRB employees who will be reviewing CCH information. This list will contain the employee’s name, sex, race, and date of birth.

It is agreed by all parties that the benefits derived from such a research project can be reasonably anticipated to outweigh any potential harm to system security and individual privacy.


The PSRB further agrees that criminal record information received from OSP will not be disseminated to any person or agency outside of this agreement where such dissemination identifies by name any person whose criminal record is reviewed during this project.


The PSRB further agrees to destroy by burning or shredding criminal information when no longer needed for the purpose of this project.


The PSRB further agrees that in the event that CCH data containing personal information, as described in ORS 646A.602, is lost, stolen, or otherwise breached while in the possession of the PSRB, then the PSRB will assume responsibility for the notification requirements under ORS 646A.604.

All parties further agree that criminal record information obtained from OSP during this project will not be used for any purpose other than that for which it was obtained as described under “Project Purpose”.


MONITORING:

It is understood by all parties that OSP retains the right to monitor the project activities as described above and to terminate access to criminal record information if violation or OAR    257-010-0025 and/or 257-010-0030 is detected.


PROJECT BEGINNING/TERMINATION:

Access by the PSRB to criminal record information through OSP will begin when this agreement is properly executed and the original information is returned to OSP and terminated one year from date of signed agreement or terminated as set out above under “Monitoring”. The termination date of this agreement may be extended upon written agreement of all parties.

OREGON STATE POLICE
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OFFICIAL
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Director
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for aone-year term.
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

We want to study recidivism after jurisdiction ends and my reading of your OAR.
My reading is that our agencies need to sign an agreement. How can we get that
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
Date: Monday, August 22, 2016 3:57:10 PM
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
Date: August 22, 2016 at 3:13:53 PM PDT

To: Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org>
Subject: RE: Using LEDS for Research

Juliet,
DRAFT copy of atypical research agreement. I'll call you to discuss...thanks

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

Date: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 9:14:47 AM

Sounds good. | really want to write about recidivism post PSRB jurisdiction. | amin the
process of getting permission to use LEDS from state police for research purposes.

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

Sorry, but, never let rejection get you down in this business. Did they say anything about
the proposal?

After it is published, which should be soonish, you would be free to present it to OPPA. It
is important for the state.

Juliet, we should also keep an eye out for any new decisions that reflect the 2015(?)
changes in definition of gravely disabled.

Joe

From: Wil Berry [berrywill7@gmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2016 8:20 AM

To: Joseph Bloom; juliet.britton@psrb.org

Subject: Re: aapl submission.

Y eah, it was not accepted...disappointing! | would still really like to present on
it...perhaps at one of the upcoming OPPA meetings...

Wil

On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 6:55 AM Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:
Wil
Have we heard anything from AAPL about our proposal for the annual meeting?

Joe


mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=JULIET FOLLANSBEE5F3
mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu
mailto:berrywil17@gmail.com
mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu
mailto:berrywil17@gmail.com
mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org
mailto:bloomj@ohsu.edu

From: Juliet Britton

To: Tricia Whitfield

Subject: Using LEDS for Research

Date: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:50:23 PM
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

Subject: Re: Kudos

Date: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:43:15 PM
I'll do it

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

On Jul 12, 2016, at 12:34 PM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banf srb.org> wrote:

Nothing. Want me to bug her again?

Shelley Banfe

Research Analyst

Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:34 PM
To: Shelley Banfe

Subject: Re: Kudos

Very nice! | want to start working on the recidivism paper soon. Any word from OSP?

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

OnJul 12, 2016, at 12:21 PM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banfe@psrb.org> wrote:

Good Afternoon,
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| wanted to pass on to everyone some positive feedback | received from a
researcher back east who is collaborating with our Board member, Elena
Balduzzi, on a paper.

Elena’s project is a replication of a study that the researcher, Mike, has
previously done with data from 4 other states and he said that our data
(i.e. database) is by far the best in the country and because we have such
robust data, he thinks the paper will be accepted into the premier
psychology journal in the nation.

So, thanks to everyone for your continued efforts in keeping the
information in our databases as up to date as possible, and the next time
you’re grinding your teeth over how mundane data entry can be,
remember that literally the whole country is watching and benefitting
from your efforts.

Thanks all!

Shelley

Shelley Banfe

Research Analyst

Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596



From: Juliet Britton

To: Shelley Banfe
Subject: Re: Kudos
Date: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:34:04 PM

Very nicel | want to start working on the recidivism paper soon. Any word from OSP?

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

On Jul 12, 2016, at 12:21 PM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banf srb.org> wrote:

Good Afternoon,

| wanted to pass on to everyone some positive feedback | received from a researcher
back east who is collaborating with our Board member, Elena Balduzzi, on a paper.

Elena’s project is a replication of a study that the researcher, Mike, has previously done
with data from 4 other states and he said that our data (i.e. database) is by far the best
in the country and because we have such robust data, he thinks the paper will be
accepted into the premier psychology journal in the nation.

So, thanks to everyone for your continued efforts in keeping the information in our
databases as up to date as possible, and the next time you’re grinding your teeth over
how mundane data entry can be, remember that literally the whole country is watching
and benefitting from your efforts.

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

Cc: Elaine SWEET; Gordon Norman (normanga@jacksoncounty.orq)
Subject: FW: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Board

Date: Friday, July 08, 2016 9:12:08 AM

Attachments: image001.png

For recidivism tracking — former client.

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director

Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St. Ste 420

Portland, OR 97205

Phone: (503) 229-5596

After-Hours Cell: (503) 781-3602

Fax: (503) 224-0215

From: Google Alerts [mailto:googlealerts-noreply@google.com]
Sent: Friday, July 08, 2016 9:00 AM

To: Juliet Britton

Subject: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Board

Psychiatric Security Review Board

NEWS

Police: Man shot had history of mental health
issues

Statesman Journal

... to a state mental hospital" and placed him under the jurisdiction
of the state's Psychiatric Security Review Board for care and
treatment for five years.

You have received this email because you have subscribed to Google Alerts.
Unsubscribe

Receive this alert as RSS feed

Send Feedback
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Joseph Bloom

Cc: Wil Berry; Shelley Banfe

Subject: Re: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft Request
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:35:02 AM
Joe

Sounds great. On another note- I'm having Shelley get a signed agreement with Oregon State
Police so we can use LEDS for research purposes. After reading Mike Norkao's paper, | now
more than ever want to study recidivism of post PSRB discharge.

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

On Jun 14, 2016, at 10:49 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Wil and Juliet.

Here is my suggestion for two papers in which each of you would be lead author in one of
the papers and all three of us would work on the papers.

1. For Juliet.....let's review the civil commitment appeals in the small western states and
compare the appeals to Oregon over a similar timeperiod..... I did a quick look at Arizona
and found very few cases. My hypothesis, as we discussed, is that Oregon will have an
inordinate # driven by the public defenders office in Mult. County.... (no proof of this) but
the contrast would be very interesting. | have written papers in the past in which we
compared Oregon to smaller western states, Idaho, Montana, Arizona, New Mexico,
Washington,Nevada, Wyoming....after getting some rough data we can decide how detailed
we want to make the review of cases. This is a good one for a lawyer to lead.

2. For Wil.....look at our cases, pull out the one's that specially deal with physical illness
and maybe just those dealing with just with diabetics and see how the court has handled
these cases. diabetes is a big problem with people, especially young people refusing their
insulin.....there should be a literature on this also....it would make an interesting paper, |
think....and it is not too much to tackle for you in a brief report...for AAPL or for Psych
services. This would be a good one to cut your teeth on.

Wil ...l assume that you are talking about above is competency to make treatment
decisions for treatment before the person hits the hospital....been interested in that for
years.....and it applies to both civil commitment and competency to stand trial... Look at
the paper | wrote with past fellows M. Epson and L. Rodol published in JAAPL in 2013. Also
wrote a bill for OPA in last big leg. session on this topic especially in regard to competency
..what exists now in Oregon is a nightmare developed by DRO with the help of AMH.. You
can get the proposal from OPA. futile gesture as we got nowhere with it. take a look at
this stuff and see what you think.....also APA model civil commitment law has a specific
incompetency within the criteria for civil commitment....I am always taking about that
proposal ...Alan Stone was the main author of that one. Also, Utah has that incompetency
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in its commitment law. Look at that stuff and see what you think

Good to hear from you both. Learning more about Arizona mental health law and starting
to meet with some residents here.....

Joe

From: Wil Berry [berrywill7@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 10:13 AM

To: Juliet Britton; Joseph Bloom
Subject: Re: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft Request

| am very happy about this...what is our next step? Juliet, | am hoping to keep
learning and getting more involved about all this stuff throughout the state...
taught the civil commitment seminar for the OHSU fellows last week, and
realized | have much moreto learn

Joe, | know you have some good ideas for the next paper...one ideal have, given
we have aready done some analysis of the actual cases reviewed, would beto try
and seeif we could find away to raise hte issue of competency at these
commitment hearings based on available testimony from clients etc.

On Tue, Jun 14, 2016 at 7:38 AM Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org> wrote:
Thank you both - I'm excited to see if AOC gets momentum next session. | am
hearing rumblings there may be political will. Juliet

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

On Jun 14, 2016, at 6:29 AM, Joseph Bloom <bloomj @ohsu.edu> wrote:

Juliet and Wil

Received the e-mails you see here from the American Journal of Psychiatry
and the Law. After a clarification that | sent back to them yesterday you
see the final note from E, = Ezra Griffith, the editor. The paper is
accepted.

I will do one final run thru and send it in next week with minimal changes
from last edit. | don't believe it is necessary to send that final to you
before I send it, but will send the final copy. It probably will be published
in the early fall (my guess) but we still can't release it. It is now the
property of the Journal. | will send you the one review they did send to
me yesterday that prompted by request for clarification. Let me know if
you have any questions.
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Congratulations, this was alot of work.

Joe

From: Sara Elsden [selsden@ssmqgt.com]
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2016 11:27 AM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: FW: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft Request

Joe,

Here is Ezra’s reply

" Joe: You havethe choice of making the changesyou believe
will improvethe paper. That isall you haveto do. | have
accepted the piece. E"

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 13, 2016, at 7:51 PM, Sara Elsden <selsden@ssmgt.com>
wrote;

Hi Ezra,

Joe requested that I send his response along
to you. Let me know if you need anything
further.

Sara

From: Joseph Bloom [mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu]
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2016 1:00 PM

To: Sara Elsden <selsden@ssmgt.com>
Subject: RE: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft
Request

Sara, please pass this on to Ezra. thanks,

Joe
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Dear Ezra.

Thanks for your comments and the review. Let me just
clarify a few things and make sure we are on the same page
with this paper.

1. Agree that the paper is not a traditional article. | have
not seen one like it. We would have no problem with this
being a commentary as you wish as long as we don't have
more reviews.

2. This is the key area....This is not a law review article and
should not be considered as one. Personally, | don't see
myself as qualified to write one. We wanted to use a
psychiatric perspective and a psychiatric research report
format to present a look at the Court of Appeals in various
perspectives, legislative history of civil commitment
(legislative intent) as well as a look at the Court as very busy
with most of the civil commitment cases decided over many
years decided by a few judges etc.,. Very reluctant to leave
out the suggested pages as this cuts out much of our original
intent in writing this from a different perspective.

3. We can make the format changes as suggested on italics
and dates.

4. For many reasons, we can't, at this point, go back and try
to do interviews or open up a whole area of research in the
law library. However, we can deal with this issue by
suggestions for future research etc.

Please let me know if this summary is acceptable and we can
get you the paper in a week or so.

Happy to talk to you if you want to discuss this.

Many thanks

Joe

From: Sara Elsden [selsden@ssmqgt.com]
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2016 6:52 AM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: RE: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft Request
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Thanks for confirming this Joe.

From: Joseph Bloom [mailto:bloomj @ohsu.edu]
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2016 9:50 AM

To: Sara Elsden <sal sden@ssmat.com>
Subject: RE: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft
Request

Sara

thanks....will take a look at the paper again and may write
back to Ezra. will be in touch.

Joe

From: Sara Elsden [selsden@ssmgt.com]
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2016 6:09 AM

To: Joseph Bloom
Subject: JAAPL MS 160102 - Final Draft Request

Hi Joe,

Please see Ezra’s note to you below and the
attached comments from the reviewer he
refers to in that note.

If you have any questions, please don’t
hesitate to contact me.

Thanks very much,

Sara

Dear Joe: The second review of your paper
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has just been completed. The reviewers have
been uniformly pleased with your revisions
and have recommended that the work be
accepted for publication. As you will see
from the attached review, one reviewer is
suggesting an approach to tighten and
improve the piece, while considering it
worthy of publication. Please consider those
suggestions as you prepare the final
submission. | believe some of them deserve
your attention in the interest of
strengthening the Ms. Please return the final
draft as soon as you can. Ezra.”

Sara L. Elsden
Editorial Assistant

The Journal of the American Academy of
Psychiatry and the Law

One Regency Drive PO Box 30
Bloomfield, CT 06002
Tel: 800-331-1389

Fax: 860-286-0787

office@aapl.org
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Shelley Banfe
Subject: Re: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 6:15:09 PM

Please reach out to OSP get some guidance on a request and sample agreement to get the ball
rolling. | have zero doubt it will be approved. Thanks, Juliet

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

On May 31, 2016, at 3:47 PM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banfe@psrb.org> wrote:

So I think this is what the ORS has that gives DOC the right to track individuals after
release:

(although, in talking with the person who tracks recidivism for Brenda Carney, he does
not do so through LEDS.)

ORS 423.557 “Recidivism” defined for statistical evaluations. (1) Asused in
this section, “recidivism” means the arrest, conviction or incarceration of a person
who has previously been convicted of acrime, if the arrest, conviction or
incarceration is for anew crime and occurs:

(a) Threeyears or less after the date the person was convicted of the previous
crime; or

(b) Three years or less after the date the person was released from custody, if
the person was incarcerated as aresult of the conviction for the previous crime.

(2) When the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, the Department
of Corrections, the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission or any other public body
as defined in ORS 174.109 conducts a statistical evaluation of the rate at which
persons convicted of acrime recidivate, the public body shall include an
evaluation of recidivism as that term is defined in subsection (1) of this section.
[2013 ¢.649 845; 2015 ¢.143 81]

LEDS only allows 15 types of criminal history transactions. They are:

CODE | PURPOSE ORIS PERMITTED TO USE CODE
A Administrative purposes OROSBIOOO
C Criminal justice purposes All Criminal Justice Agencies
D Domestic violence and stalking ORIl ending in "D", "A", or "J"
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E Non-criminal justice agency All
employment (Oregon CCH only)

F Firearms and related permits All Law Enforcement

H Public housing authority Any PHA

| Non-criminal justice agency OROSBIOOO
applicant cards

J Criminal justice agency All Criminal Justice Agencies
employment

L Licensing (Oregon CCH only) All

M Money related inquiries where a OROSBIOOO
fee is collected (Oregon CCH only)

(0] Used for authorized Oregon only ORI's ending in A
purposes when another purpose
code is not appropriate

R Research (Oregon CCH only) Any ORI approved by OSP ID
Services

S National Security ORI not starting with ORO, ORDOA,
ORDI, ORSP or ORVA

Vv Visa applicants ORI beginning with ORINS

X Emergency placement of children ORI ending in "T"

in exigent circumstances

Being a criminal justice agency, we can be authorized to query criminal history
information under C, E, J, L and R transaction types.

Of those, the relevant transaction codes for this discussion are:

C — Criminal Justice Purposes,

Used for official duties in connection with the administration of criminal justice.

The term —administration of criminal justicell is defined as the performance of any of the
following activities: detection, apprehension, detention, pretrial release, prosecution,
adjudication, correctional supervision, or rehabilitation of accused persons or criminal
offenders.

Purpose code C may also be used in situations that are not part of a criminal justice
investigation but are duties of the agency where a criminal check is necessary to
accomplish the agency’s mission. For example:

1. The security of the criminal justice facility

(a) Vendors or contractors at the criminal justice agency who are NOT involved with the
actual administration of criminal justice at the criminal justice agency, e.g. carpet cleaner,
individuals responsible for maintaining vending machines, janitors, cooks, etc.

(b) Volunteers at the criminal justice agencies who are NOT involved with the actual
administration of criminal justice at the criminal justice agency, e.g. participants in
community ride-along programs, volunteers at a confinement facility who are providing
social or community services rather than rehabilitative services etc.

(c) Confinement facility visitors.

(d) Inmates of a confinement facility.

(e) Inmate mail — a prisoner’s list of names and addresses of those wishing to correspond
with the prisoner. (I11 may be used when there is reason to believe that criminal activity is



occurring or has occurred)
2. A domestic violence investigation conducted by a law enforcement agency. (LEDS
Manual, 19.5.2

R —Research,

To be utilized when a specific agreement is executed between qualified persons and the
OSP; the agreement will state the scope of the project, the permissible dissemination of
information. Refer to OAR 257-010-0030 for complete details. This purpose code will only
return Oregon records.

257-010-0030
Criminal Justice Research and Evaluation Projects

Criminal offender information will be made available to qualified persons for research and
evaluation related to criminal justice activity, or in exigent circumstances for temporary
access, upon written application to the Superintendent of the Oregon State Police but
authorization to utilize such information will be conditioned upon:

(1) The execution of nondisclosure agreements by all participants in the program.

(2) When such qualified persons acknowledge a fundamental commitment to respect
individual privacy interests with the identification of subjects of such information divorced as
fully as possible from the data received, and agree to comply with any additional
requirements and conditions found necessary to assure the protection of personal privacy
and system security interests.

(3) When a specific agreement is executed between such qualified persons and the OSP,
the agreement stating the scope of the project, the permissible dissemination of information
for any purpose other than that for which it was obtained.

(4) Where temporary access is authorized by the Superintendent of the OSP, he shall
report the reasons for such temporary grant to the Governor. No temporary grant of access
shall be valid for more than 30 days.

(5) OSP will retain the right to monitor and audit any approved criminal justice research and
evaluation project and to terminate access to CCH or criminal offender information if a
violation of this rule is detected.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 181.555, ORS 181.560(4), ORS 183.310 - ORS 183.550, ORS 192.440 &
ORS 194.164

Stats. Implemented: ORS 166.291, ORS 166.412 & ORS 181.880

Hist.: DSP 2, f. 6-14-74, ef. 7-11-74; DSP 4, f. 4-22-76, ef. 4-30-76; DSP 1-1981, f. & ef. 5-
1-81; OSP 4-1993, f. & cert. ef. 12-20-93

Regardless of what the Legislature tells us to do, | don’t think we can do research using
criminal history information from LEDS except through the “Research” transaction
which can be authorized by OSP without a legislative concept.

Shelley Banfe
Research Analyst
Psychiatric Security Review Board



610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 2:22 PM

To: Shelley Banfe

Subject: Re: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

Step 1 is getting the Legislative Authorization which requires a LC. | just added it to one
of our other concepts by using a DAS computer. It was a tight deadline because LC
concepts were already due.

| understand that we would later need to get OSP but I"m confident they would
approve the authorization if the Legislature authorized us to study this and we assure
them non-identifying info would be released.

Juliet

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On May 31, 2016, at 1:08 PM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banfe@psrb.org> wrote:

Right, and it isn’t the legislature that can give us that authorization. It’s
OSP.

Shelley Banfe

Research Analyst

Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:08 PM

To: Shelley Banfe

Subject: Re: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

| think we need to chat because I'm not being understood. I'm trying to
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get our ORS changed that would give us the legislative mandate. For now,
| simply need some language that would authorize us to use LEDS for
recidivism studies.

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On May 31, 2016, at 11:51 AM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banfe@psrb.org>
wrote:

I’'m sorry, it doesn’t work that way. What | said, or meant to
say, was that the only agencies who can have access to LEDS
are those who have a Legislatively mandated reason to have
access. What can be done with the information obtained
from LEDS is governed by the CJIS steering committee and
OSP.

| put a call in to the LEDS policy guy and he says requests to
disseminate information for research purposes are reviewed
by Dave Piercy and Tricia Whitfield and we need to send
them a request for authorization. It can be emailed, but it
should probably be a little more formal that what you’ve got
written below!

Shelley Banfe

Research Analyst

Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 11:04 AM

To: Shelley Banfe

Subject: Fwd: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED
ASAP.

Please email some language ASAP that we should have in
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ORS that would authorize the use of LEDS for professional
journals and research.

Need it by 12 today. Thanks, Juliet

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

From: WILLIAMS Amy * DAS

<Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Date: May 31, 2016 at 10:58:08 AM PDT

To: Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org>, Sid
Moore <Sid.Moore@psrb.org>

Cc: LISPER Michelle * DAS
<Michelle.LISPER@oregon.gov>, WILLIAMS
Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive
Justice

Juliet/Sid,

The Governor’s office is finishing its review of all
agency concepts right now (hoping to be done by
noon today). Then | have to process everything
and deliver to Legislative Counsel on Thursday.
Can you submit an updated placeholder for LC #4
to me today? I'll get Michelle, Jeremy and the
Gov’s Legislative Director to approve and get it
into the process with all other LCs. Thank you!

Amy

From: LISPER Michelle * DAS
Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 10:55 AM
To: VANDEHEY Jeremy * GOV

<Jeremy.VANDEHEY@oregon.gov>; SINNER
Kate * GOV <Kate.SINNER@oregon.gov>


mailto:Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov
mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org
mailto:Sid.Moore@psrb.org
mailto:Michelle.LISPER@oregon.gov
mailto:Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov
mailto:Jeremy.VANDEHEY@oregon.gov
mailto:Kate.SINNER@oregon.gov

Cc: BRITTON Juliet <Juliet.Britton@psrb.org>;
MOORE Sid <Sid.moore@psrb.org>; WILLIAMS
Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive
Justice

Sorry | missed 3 steps. 1) PSRB will need to take
the LC and resubmit it as a place holder to our
office ASAP; 2) | will need to approve it and
Jeremy you will need to approve it as well in the
system; and, 3) the LC will still go to Leg Counsel
they will sit on it until we update the placeholder (

no later than June 24th) for submittal.

Michelle Lisper
503-378-3195

From: LISPER Michelle * DAS

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 10:46 AM

To: VANDEHEY Jeremy * GOV
<Jeremy.VANDEHEY@oregon.gov>; SINNER
Kate * GOV <Kate.SINNER@oregon.gov>

Cc: 'Juliet Britton' <juliet.britton@psrb.org>;
'Sid Moore' <Sid.Moore@psrb.org>; WILLIAMS
Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Subject: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice
Importance: High

God Morning Jeremy,

You may not be familiar with me since we have
not met. | am the CFO analyst assigned to the
Psychiatric Security Review Board (PSRB).
PSRB has discovered that they are missing
some language in their LC 39900-004 involving
retroactive justice. | am proposing that we change
this LC to a placeholder, which would give the
agency time to add the new language. By making
it a placeholder it would not go to Leg Counsel for
drafting later today. | am hoping you can respond
ASAP so Amy in our office can make the change
in the Bill tracker system.

Sincerely,

Michelle A Lisper, MBA, CPM
Policy & Budget Analyst

Oregon Chief Financial Office
Budget & Management
503-378-3195
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Shelley Banfe
Subject: Re: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 2:22:18 PM

Step 1 is getting the Legidative Authorization which requiresa L C. | just added it to one of
our other concepts by using a DAS computer. It was atight deadline because L C concepts
were already due.

| understand that we would later need to get OSP but 1"m confident they would approve the
authorization if the Legisature authorized us to study this and we assure them non-identifying
info would be released.

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

Right, and it isn’t the legislature that can give us that authorization. It’s OSP.

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

| think we need to chat because I'm not being understood. I'm trying to get our ORS
changed that would give us the legislative mandate. For now, | simply need some
language that would authorize us to use LEDS for recidivism studies.

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

On May 31, 2016, at 11:51 AM, Shelley Banfe <shelley.banfe@psrb.org> wrote:

I’'m sorry, it doesn’t work that way. What | said, or meant to say, was that
the only agencies who can have access to LEDS are those who have a
Legislatively mandated reason to have access. What can be done with the
information obtained from LEDS is governed by the CJIS steering
committee and OSP.

| put a call in to the LEDS policy guy and he says requests to disseminate
information for research purposes are reviewed by Dave Piercy and Tricia
Whitfield and we need to send them a request for authorization. It can be
emailed, but it should probably be a little more formal that what you've
got written below!

Shelley Banfe

Research Analyst

Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, OR 97205
503-229-5596

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 11:04 AM

To: Shelley Banfe

Subject: Fwd: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

Please email some language ASAP that we should have in ORS that would
authorize the use of LEDS for professional journals and research.

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

From: WILLIAMS Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Date: May 31, 2016 at 10:58:08 AM PDT

To: Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org>, Sid Moore
<Sid.Moore@psrb.org>

Cc: LISPER Michelle * DAS <Mlichelle.LISPER@oregon.gov>,
WILLIAMS Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice

Juliet/Sid,

The Governor’s office is finishing its review of all agency
concepts right now (hoping to be done by noon today). Then |
have to process everything and deliver to Legislative Counsel
on Thursday. Can you submit an updated placeholder for LC #4
to me today? [I'll get Michelle, Jeremy and the Gov’s Legislative
Director to approve and get it into the process with all other
LCs. Thank you!

Amy

From: LISPER Michelle * DAS

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 10:55 AM

To: VANDEHEY Jeremy * GOV
<Jeremy.VANDEHEY@oregon.gov>; SINNER Kate * GOV
<Kate.SINNER@oregon.gov>

Cc: BRITTON Juliet <Juliet.Britton@psrb.org>; MOORE Sid
<Sid.moore@psrb.org>; WILLIAMS Amy * DAS
<Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>

Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice

Sorry | missed 3 steps. 1) PSRB will need to take the LC and
resubmit it as a place holder to our office ASAP; 2) | will need to
approve it and Jeremy you will need to approve it as well in the
system; and, 3) the LC will still go to Leg Counsel they will sit

on it until we update the placeholder ( no later than June 24th)
for submittal.

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

Cc: 'Juliet Britton' <juliet.britton@psrb.org>; 'Sid Moore'
<Sid.Moore@psrb.org>; WILLIAMS Amy * DAS
<Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>

Subject: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice
Importance: High

God Morning Jeremy,

You may not be familiar with me since we have not met. | am
the CFO analyst assigned to the Psychiatric Security Review
Board (PSRB). PSRB has discovered that they are missing
some language in their LC 39900-004 involving retroactive
justice. | am proposing that we change this LC to a placeholder,
which would give the agency time to add the new language. By
making it a placeholder it would not go to Leg Counsel for
drafting later today. | am hoping you can respond ASAP so Amy
in our office can make the change in the Bill tracker system.

Sincerely,

Michelle A Lisper, MBA, CPM
Policy & Budget Analyst

Oregon Chief Financial Office
Budget & Management
503-378-3195

michelle.lisper@state.or.us
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Laura Moeller

Subject: Re: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:54:24 PM

Thanks

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On May 31, 2016, at 1:45 PM, Laura Moeller <laura.moeller@psrb.org> wrote:

Sorry if this is stupid. Wasn'’t entirely sure what | was doing because
fast but can easily amend.

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->1. <!-[endif]-->Problem (Completely describe the problem
you propose to solve.)

The PSRB is on the forefront of positive change in the forensic mental health setting
and has triggered much interest from academics and other professionals who are
interested in writing about its impact (positive or negative). The PSRB encourages the
review of its programs, however, because of the criminal nature of the offenses that our
jurisdiction is based on, access to an individual's criminal history is limited which is a
barrier to researchers collecting reliable, informative data. This is especially true with
respect to recidivism rates, statistical analysis, and scoring an individual to carry out
PSRB'’s legislative responsibilities. Although the Law Enforcement Data System (LEDS)
is highly reliable, due to very specific restrictions, the Board would need legislative
permission to allow access to this information after it has been received by the PSRB.

Currently, the information relevant to criminal histories is gleaned from a client’s file
from other non-LEDS documents such as a psychosocial history from a licensed social
worker or previous police reports. Because this information is not taken directly from
the source (LEDS) it is unknown how much of the data is accurate as it is often taken
verbally from the client or police.

<!--[if IsupportLists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->Proposed Solution (Completely describe
what the concept does to fix the problem. Do not include proposed statute
changes here.)

PSRB proposes to amend the relevant statute that prohibits the Board from re-
releasing this information and allow for re-release certain specified parties for research
and statistical analysis purposes. Such a change would allow interested individuals who
are performing a review or writing a report on the PSRB to obtain accurate data directly
from the primary source. This would make research more reliable and allow for helpful
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feedback to the PSRB based on actual data.

Laura R. MOELLER, JD

Psycuiatric SEcurITY REVIEW BOARD

610 SW Alder St., Suite #420, Portland, OR 97205
Office: (503) 229-5596

Fax: (503) 224-0215

Work Cell: (503) 709-8861

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:40 PM

To: Laura Moeller

Subject: Re: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

| have form in my LFO office now - just email the language please

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420
Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On May 31, 2016, at 1:18 PM, Laura Moeller <laura.moeller@psrb.org> wrote:

I found instructions and am filling out form

Laura R. MOELLER, JD

Psycriatric SecuriTy REviEw Boarp

610 SW Alder St., Suite #420, Portland, OR 97205
Office: (503) 229-5596

Fax: (503) 224-0215

Work Cell: (503) 709-8861

From: Juliet Britton

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:10 PM

To: Laura Moeller

Subject: Fwd: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

Ignore Shelley's comments...read email chain and give me a para of
language that would be draft legislation that would give us authority to
use LEDS for client and former client recidivism for statistical purposes.
..... need it very very soon.
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

From: Shelley Banfe <shelley.banfe@psrb.org>

Date: May 31, 2016 at 11:51:47 AM PDT

To: Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org>

Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED
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
to me today? [I'll get Michelle, Jeremy and the
Gov's Legislative Director to approve and get it
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
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:39:42 PM

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

Laura R. MOELLER, |D

Psycuiatric SecuriTy REviEw BoaRrD

610 SW Alder St., Suite #4 20, Portland, OR 97205
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

Ignore Shelley's comments...read email chain and give me a para of language that
would be draft legislation that would give us authority to use LEDS for client and former
client recidivism for statistical purposes. .....need it very very soon.

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

Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

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


mailto:shelley.banfe@psrb.org
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
Cc: LISPER Michelle * DAS <Miichelle.LISPER@oregon.gov>,

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
Cc: Juliet Britton' <juliet.britton@psrb.org>; 'Sid Moore'

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
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:10:00 PM

Ignore Shelley's comments...read email chain and give me a para of language that would be
draft legislation that would give us authority to use LEDS for client and former client
recidivism for statistical purposes. .....need it very very soon.

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

From: Shelley Banfe <shelley.banf srb.org>

Date: May 31, 2016 at 11:51:47 AM PDT

To: Juliet Britton <juliet.britton@psrb.org>

Subject: RE: PSRB L C 39900-004 Retroactive Justice - NEED ASAP.

I’'m sorry, it doesn’t work that way. What | said, or meant to say, was that the only
agencies who can have access to LEDS are those who have a Legislatively mandated
reason to have access. What can be done with the information obtained from LEDS is

governed by the CJIS steering committee and OSP.

| put a call in to the LEDS policy guy and he says requests to disseminate information
for research purposes are reviewed by Dave Piercy and Tricia Whitfield and we need to
send them a request for authorization. It can be emailed, but it should probably be a
little more formal that what you’ve got written below!

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

Please email some language ASAP that we should have in ORS that would authorize the
use of LEDS for professional journals and research.

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

Cc: LISPER Michelle * DAS <Michelle.LISPER@oregon.gov>, WILLIAMS
Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>

Subject: RE: PSRB LC 39900-004 Retroactive Justice

Juliet/Sid,

The Governor’s office is finishing its review of all agency concepts right now
(hoping to be done by noon today). Then | have to process everything and
deliver to Legislative Counsel on Thursday. Can you submit an updated
placeholder for LC #4 to me today? I'll get Michelle, Jeremy and the Gov’s
Legislative Director to approve and get it into the process with all other LCs.
Thank you!

Amy

From: LISPER Michelle * DAS

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 10:55 AM

To: VANDEHEY Jeremy * GOV <Jeremy.VANDEHEY@oregon.gov>; SINNER
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

Sorry | missed 3 steps. 1) PSRB will need to take the LC and resubmit it as a
place holder to our office ASAP; 2) | will need to approve it and Jeremy you

will need to approve it as well in the system; and, 3) the LC will still go to Leg
Counsel they will sit on it until we update the placeholder ( no later than June

24 for submittal.

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

You may not be familiar with me since we have not met. | am the CFO analyst
assigned to the Psychiatric Security Review Board (PSRB). PSRB has
discovered that they are missing some language in their LC 39900-004
involving retroactive justice. | am proposing that we change this LC to a
placeholder, which would give the agency time to add the new language. By
making it a placeholder it would not go to Leg Counsel for drafting later today.
I am hoping you can respond ASAP so Amy in our office can make the
change in the Bill tracker system.

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
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 1:07:52 PM

| think we need to chat because I'm not being understood. I'm trying to get our ORS changed
that would give us the legidative mandate. For now, | simply need some language that would
authorize usto use LEDS for recidivism studies.

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

241 for submittal.
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

To: LISPER Michelle * DAS

Cc: Sid Moore

Subject: Re: Additional Legislative Concept
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 10:38:39 AM

Can we use the same concept that would authorize Restorative Justice. We don't have LC
numbers yet.

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Psychiatric Security Review Board
Executive Director

610 SW Alder, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)
(503) 224-0215 (fax)

On May 31, 2016, at 10:27 AM, LISPER Michelle* DAS <Michelle.l | SPER@oregon.gov>
wrote:

Okay, the only way we could possibly make this work would be for me to know which LC
number you want to alter. Next | would request the Gov policy advisor (Jeremy Vandehey)
to turn that LC into a placeholder. This would give you time to make the change and it
would not be sent to Leg counsel for drafting. Right now all approved LCs are on their way
to Leg counsel. If you want to do what | am suggesting | need to know the LC number
ASAP. If you don’t know the LC number then you can either call me describe the LC to me
so | can get the number from the system or you can describe the LC to me via email so |
can go into the system and find it to make the change to placeholder.

Michelle Lisper

503-378-3195

From: WILLIAMS Amy * DAS

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2016 8:17 AM

To: LISPER Michelle * DAS <Michelle.LISPER@oregon.gov>
Cc: WILLIAMS Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Subject: RE: Additional Legislative Concept

If they had submitted any concepts as placeholders they could have done this, but
unfortunately all of their LCs were submitted as final concepts.

From: LISPER Michelle * DAS

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2016 2:08 PM

To: WILLIAMS Amy * DAS <Amy.WILLIAMS@oregon.gov>
Subject: FW: Additional Legislative Concept
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Amy, Once the Gov office reviews the initial LC can’t the agency update it with additional
info by June 3017

Michelle Lisper
503-378-3195

From: Sid Moore [mailto:Sid.Moore@psrb.org]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2016 2:09 PM

To: LISPER Michelle * DAS <Michelle.LISPER@oregon.gov>
Cc: BRITTON Juliet <Juliet.Britton@psrb.org>
Subject: Additional Legislative Concept

Michelle,

| wanted to ask you a quick question: in order to use LEDS to track ex-clients, we would
need specific statutory authority. Is there any way we can add that authority to another
one of our concepts? It would be relatively simple provision that would allow us to
access LEDS to gather data to track trends in recidivism post-supervision. | understand
if it’s too late, but | thought I'd ask.

I’'m including Juliet here since | will be on vacation next week and will only rarely be
checking e-mail.

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
Subject: another legislative concept
Date: Thursday, May 26, 2016 4:39:46 PM

In order to use LEDS to track ex clients, we need specific statutory authority....ask Michelle if
we can add to one of our concepts a simple provision that would allow for LEDS to be
accessed to gather data to track trends in recidivism post supervision. If she says it is too late,
we will do a dash amendment once we get it in committee and add it to one of our concepts.

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

Subject: FW: joint PSRB presentation?

Date: Thursday, May 26, 2016 1:26:05 PM

Attachments: PSRB Panel mission Pr | dre line 1-27-16.docx

The CT study did study post PSRB....Mike, Simrat and Tobias have teamed up to present at the APIL conference in the fall....I'm sure | could get a copy of
the article...here is the preview:

http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1002/bsl.2222/epdf?
r3_referer=wol&tracking_action=preview_click&show_checkout=1&purchase_referrer=onlinelibrary.wiley.com&purchase_site_license=LICENSE_DENIED

Juliet Britton, J.D.

Executive Director

Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St. Ste 420

Portland, OR 97205

Phone: (503) 229-5596

After-Hours Cell: (503) 781-3602

Fax: (503) 224-0215

From: Norko, Michael [mailto:Michael.Norko@ct.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 12:39 PM

To: Juliet Britton; ‘Joseph Bloom *

Cc: Wasser, Tobias

Subject: RE: joint PSRB presentation?

Juliet and Joe,

Tobias and | have worked on a draft outline of a possible proposal for an AAPL presentation on comparing PSRBs this October in Portland - attached.

Please forward this to Dr. Sethi as well, so you can all consider it. (I don’t have his email)

We're open to any suggestions/modifications you have.

Panels are 1.75 to 2.0 hours so we have to be careful about planning the panel.

Also, | think we would want to emphasize new data about outcomes, recidivism and rehabilitation, as well as ideas for a future research agenda re acquittees, to
attract the program committee’s interest.

Please take a look and let us know what you think.

Best wishes,

Mike

From: Juliet Britton [mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org]
Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 6:24 PM

To: Norko, Michael

Cc: Wasser, Tobias

Subject: RE: joint PSRB presentation?

Hi Mike,

I'd love to — I, along with Dr. Sethi (Oregon State Hospital) are very interested in this topic. We reached out to the PSRB Executive Directors in CT and AZ
a couple of months ago to talk policy, common challenges and possible solutions — it was sort of a “how does your state handle x issue, and y issue. It
was helpful.

Joe lives primarily in AZ now. I'm currently writing a paper on civil commitment with him and could ask him if you would like me to.
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
Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 2:48 PM

To: Juliet Britton

Cc: Wasser, Tobias

Subject: joint PSRB presentation?

Juliet,

Would you be interested in joining a panel discussion about PSRB outcome data in CT and Oregon for the AAPL meeting in Portland in October?

We could compare and contrast data looking at recidivism, rehospitalization, etc. from 1985-2015 in a paper we just submitted, comparing to data from Joe
Bloom’s 2013 JAAPL paper with Mary Clare looking at Oregon PSRB outcomes from 1978-2012. We could also discuss what is different/similar about the
operation of each PSRB, oversight of acquittees under each model, and how people think about whether improvements in these outcomes are worth the
incredible resources dedicated to PSRB implementation.
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[bookmark: _GoBack]
AAPL Panel Submission Proposal – DRAFT OUTLINE 1/27/16


I. Past and Present: 

1. Origin and brief history of the state's PSRB 

2. Current models of design, supervision, and number of acquittees under supervision cumulatively and at each level.  Include data LOS in hospital and under PSRB to compare between OR and CT
3. Current challenges facing each PSRB and efforts to overcome those challenges
4. Present most recent outcome data (CT - our study in press, OR - Bloom 2013 in JAAPL)

5. Clarifying questions

II. Future: 
	1. Lessons learned from most recent outcome data and how that might influence 	change for each state's practices
 	2. Thoughts for further research/inquiry based on most recent data

III. Discussion/questions from audience

I imagined in Parts I and II we might go back and forth between presenters representing each state to allow the audience to more easily identify similarities and differences. For example, OR would describe their Past and Present, then CT review its Past and Present, then OR does Future, etc. 

This model would allow space for Joe Bloom, Juliette and Dr. Sethi to decide which topics they might wish to present based on their interest and experiences.



A few questions for Juliette and Dr. Sethi regarding knowledge of the Arizona PSRB in considering whether it would be worthwhile to make space for the AZ PSRB as well in this presentation: 

1. How much info do you have about the AZ PSRB?  

2. Is there an AAPL member associated with the AZ PSRB system that should be invited as a representative/participant in the presentation? 


We would probably want to invite Joe Bloom as well, given his long history with the topic in Oregon.
Tobias Wasser, a forensic psychiatrist in Connecticut was a co-author on the recent CT paper, and would be willing to write the abstract submission.

Let me know what you think.
The deadline for submission is March 1.

Best wishes for the new year.
Mike

This correspondence contains proprietary information some or all of which may be legally privileged,; it is for the intended recipient only. If you are not the intended recipient you must not use, disclose, distribute, copy, print,
or rely on this correspondence and completely dispose of the correspondence immediately. Please notify the sender if you have received this email in error. NOTE: Messages to or from the State of Connecticut domain
may be subject to the Freedom of Information statutes and regulations.

This correspondence contains proprietary information some or all of which may be legally privileged; it is for the intended recipient only. If you are not the intended recipient you must not use, disclose, distribute, copy, print,
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
Subject: Tracking ex clients
Date: Monday, May 09, 2016 7:01:43 AM

If I cc you on ex clients re entry into crim justice, please track somewhere. I'm going to study after jx ends
recidivism.

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
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From: et iton
o

Stephane Lopez
Subject: e Google ert - Peyhiaic Securty Revew Board

Date: Friday, May 06, 2016 157:18 it

Or evenjust says whether post PSRB - I'm curiousif

uliet Britton, 1.
Executive Director

Oregon Psychiaric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)

(503) 224-0215 (fa)

>0nMay 6, 2016, a 1:21 P, Stephanie L opez <siopez@luke-dorf.org> wrote:

>Oh--yes, IRB for that....So y records for re-offenders?
>
> Regards.

> STEPHANIE MAYA LOPEZ, M.D. | Meical Director
> slopez@luke-dorf.org

>T 5035015278 F 502-501-5279

> Visit Luke-Dorf.org
>

> addressee. 1f you are not

~Original Message--
> From: et Bitton [maltojuliet b

> Sent: Friday, May 06, 2016 1:19 PM

> To: Stepharie Lopez

> Subject: Re: Google Alert - Paychiatric Security Review Board

> 1 thought through the OHSU 1RB we could get the data that ly doub infofor us.

> et Britton, 4.
> Executive Director

> Oregon Peychiatric Security Review Board
> 610 SW Alder S, Site 420

> Portland, Oregon 97205

> (503) 229-5596 (office)

> (503) 781-3602 (after hours cal)

> (503) 224-0215 ({ax)

>>On May 6, 2016, at 1:12 PM, Stephanie Lopez <slopez@|uke-dorf org> wrote:
>

>>That 1/am ot sure how O the data. that?

>> Sent from my iPad
>

>>0n May 6, 2016, at 10:26 AM, Juliet
>

>>Hi

by reply emal

>> | wantto study ex clients for ey y
write something with me and Simrat?

>

>> liet Britton, 10,

>> Executive Director

>> Oregon Poychiatric Security Review Board
>> 610 SW Alder S, Suite 420

>> Portland, Oregon 97205

>> (503) 229-5506 (office)

>> (503) 781-3602 (ater hours cel)

>> (503) 224-0215 (fax)

>
>> Begin forwarded message:

>> From: Google Alerts

>> m>>
>> Date: May 6, 2016 a 9:30:43 AM PDT
>>To.
>> Subject: Google Alert - Peychiatric Security Review Board

et QUNTMOMTESMg>

[Google]
> Psychiatric Security Review Board Daily update - May 6, 2016

>
> NEWS

AEY

>> ACOTNT) QONT!

MOMTESMj Q4ZGQN
> g=AFQICNHIKSEL KWY UFPUXQa9- NGTwX 2GQ>

>> Yale News

recidivism rates of insanity acaitteesin

>> ACOTNT/ QONTMOMTESMj QUZGQ
>> g=AFQICNHIK5EL KWY UFPUixQad-NgmiX 2GQ>
>> YaeNews
> ecticut . asiale agency
>> [Google Plus]<https:/Amw.google com/alerts/share?

Hizenggl=t

nei full length of jurisdiction. | kr EDS and OHA datebases). I

[Facebook] <https:/www google comvaertsishare?
hl=eng gl=l

[Twitter] <https://www. google.com/alerts/share?

10 that data D

IMDUWMZQyM] WNDQIMZQM TkyMhpiZTU.

i

DVINjY 20

JHsmU.

JMGAWINCSBNW>

1M DUWMZQyMjIWNDQIMZQxM TkyMhpiZTU:

) GENT,

o

o

NjY 2O

U sp=AMHsm

JhMGAWINCEBNwW>

1MDUWM2QyMjIwNDQIMZQxM TkyMhpiZTU1Y]
QONTMOM

Nz,

> en&gl=U G=NT; ITMOM
> X1nvsMP2P5vg>

>
>> [RSS] Receivethis dert as RSS feed

>>21417922>
=Us G=NTA

> QONTMON

19H:

JIhMGAWINCSBNW>
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From: et iton
o

‘Stephane Loper
Re: Google lert - Psychiatic Security Review Board

Subject:
Dae: Friday, My 06, 2016 119:11 PA
1 thought OHSU IRB we could get the is confidential? | doubly infofor us.

uliet Britton, 1.
Executive Director

Oregon Psychiaric Security Review Board
610 SW Alder St, Suite 420

Portland, Oregon 97205

(503) 229-5596 (office)

(503) 781-3602 (after hours cell)

(503) 224-0215 (fa)

>0nMay 6, 2016, a 1:12 P, Stephanie L opez <siopez@luke-dorf.org> wrote:

> That sounds interesting. | am not sure how OHSU can help get the data. Did you have any ideas about that?

> Sent from my iPad

>On May 6, 2016, a 10:26 AM, Jiet Britton

>Hi
MH services |

their full length of jurisdiction. | know the deta exists (LEDS and OHA databases). 'm wondering if OHSU can help us get access to that data. Do you have any thoughts? Do you want to

> I want to study ex cientsfor
write something with me and Sirmrat?

> et Britton, JD.
> Executive Director

> Oregon Psychiatric Security Review Board
> 610 SW Alder S, Site 420

> Portland, Oregon 97205

> (503) 2295596 (office)

> (503) 7813602 (alter hours cel)

> (503) 224-0215 (faw)

>

> Begin forwarded message:

> From
> Date: May 6, 2016 a 9:30:43 AM PDT
>To

> Subject: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Board

DOONTMOMTESMG>

> [Googe] iy
> Poychiatric Security Review Board
> Dally update - May 6, 2016

> NEws
> QONTMOMTESMjlaY mUINWIXMZQ4ZGQ) (CNHIKSELKWY UEPLixQ:
>
> YaeNews
> Yale study assesses recicivism retes o insaniy acquittees in Connecticut <itps/funw google conurl?
EYACGTNT TMOMTESM; o KWyUFRy o
> YaleNews
> peopl Review Board (PSRB), astate agency ...
> [Google Plus|<https:/lwww.googie com/alertsishare?
hizenggl=t y IMDUWMZQyM] WNDQIMZQxM TkyMhpiZTU1Y, DVNjY: HsmL JMGAWINCSBNW>
[Facebook] <hitps:/fwww.google.con/alerts/share?
hizengl=t IMDUWM ZQyMjIWNDQIMzQxM TkyMhpiZTU: DVNjY 2O W SP=AMHSL WINCSBN>
[Twitter] <https:/Awew. google com/alerts/share?
hizenggl=L IMDUWMZQyMj WNDQIM2QxM TkyMhpiZTULY, DV{NjY 20 sl JAMGAWINCSBNw>

A o

> You have received this email because you have subscribed to Google Alerts

Su hizenggi=U:

(ENTAIMDMOMIyN

>[RsS|

(d=NTATMDMOMjlyMDQONTMOM

> Send Feedback.
>


mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=JULIET FOLLANSBEE5F3
mailto:slopez@luke-dorf.org
mailto:juliet.britton@psrb.org
mailto:googlealerts-noreply@google.com
mailto:juliet.follansbee@psrb.org
https://www.google.com/alerts?source=alertsmail&hl=en&gl=US&msgid=NTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5Mg
https://www.google.com/url?rct=j&sa=t&url=http://medicine.yale.edu/psychiatry/newsandevents/archive/article.aspx%3Fid%3D12665&ct=ga&cd=CAEYACoTNTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5MjIaYmU1NWIxMzQ4ZGQ1YzY2Mzpjb206ZW46VVM&usg=AFQjCNHIK5ELKWYUFPuixQa9-jNgnwX2GQ
https://www.google.com/url?rct=j&sa=t&url=http://medicine.yale.edu/psychiatry/newsandevents/archive/article.aspx%3Fid%3D12665&ct=ga&cd=CAEYACoTNTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5MjIaYmU1NWIxMzQ4ZGQ1YzY2Mzpjb206ZW46VVM&usg=AFQjCNHIK5ELKWYUFPuixQa9-jNgnwX2GQ
https://www.google.com/url?rct=j&sa=t&url=http://medicine.yale.edu/psychiatry/newsandevents/archive/article.aspx%3Fid%3D12665&ct=ga&cd=CAEYACoTNTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5MjIaYmU1NWIxMzQ4ZGQ1YzY2Mzpjb206ZW46VVM&usg=AFQjCNHIK5ELKWYUFPuixQa9-jNgnwX2GQ
https://www.google.com/alerts/feedback?ffu=http://medicine.yale.edu/psychiatry/newsandevents/archive/article.aspx%3Fid%3D12665&source=alertsmail&hl=en&gl=US&msgid=NTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5Mg&s=AB2Xq4jqt7EOk8A4wc4cihslV7X1mvsMP2P59vg
https://www.google.com/alerts/remove?source=alertsmail&hl=en&gl=US&msgid=NTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5Mg&s=AB2Xq4jqt7EOk8A4wc4cihslV7X1mvsMP2P59vg
https://www.google.com/alerts/feeds/14902851253824313846/14852827813121417922
https://www.google.com/alerts?source=alertsmail&hl=en&gl=US&msgid=NTA1MDM0MjIyMDQ0NTM0MTE5Mg&s=AB2Xq4jqt7EOk8A4wc4cihslV7X1mvsMP2P59vg&ffu=

From: Juliet Britton

To: slopez@Iluke-dorf.or!

Subject: Fwd: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Board
Date: Friday, May 06, 2016 10:29:51 AM

Hi

| want to study ex clients for recidivism and whether they have accessed community MH
services. | would like to study early discharges versus folks who were supervised for their full
length of jurisdiction. | know the data exists (LEDS and OHA databases). I'm wondering if
OHSU can help us get accessto that data. Do you have any thoughts? Do you want to write
something with me and Simrat?

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

From: Google Alerts <googleal erts-norepl oogle.com>
Date: May 6, 2016 at 9:30:43 AM PDT

To: <juliet.follansb srb.org>

Subject: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Board

E.

Psychiatric Security Review Board

NEWS

Yale study assesses recidivism rates of insanity
acquittees in Connecticut

Yale News

The researchers also examined records of people who were
discharged by the Connecticut Psychiatric Security Review
Board (PSRB), a state agency ...
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From: Juliet Britton

To: Sethi Simrat

Subject: Fwd: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Board
Date: Friday, May 06, 2016 9:47:02 AM

We should do this

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

Subject: Google Alert - Psychiatric Security Review Boar d

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
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